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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

EEME
Caring for Society

RATAP [EFBIEE - RELE — BRAEREHREREASINER
BRAREIN10BERET REZH—KBERERLLEREE
BIHAETFHIE  WELRPANSEELETAR

The “Glory of the Overseas Chinese - Exhibition of Tan Kah Kee’s Legacy
and Contributions of Overseas Chinese to the Development of Motherland”
was successfully held by the Bank in October. The exhibition demonstrated
the relentless efforts of Mr Tan, an eminent leader of the overseas Chinese
communities, to assist in the educational and national development, aiming to
foster among the public a sense of affinity with our motherland.

BITEBIENEZBELEFHBEBABK
E | UESEMREBE2EHEBERELIRE o
Our sponsorship to the “9th Hong Kong Student
Knowledge Contest on China’s National Situation”
was also part of our continuous efforts to enhance
the local students’ understanding of the conditions
and history of our motherland.

- £ RRITEMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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As the title sponsor of the “Hong
Kong Inter-School Rope Skipping
Championship 2019”, we aimed to
motivate the younger generation to take
part in rope skipping as an exercise.
We also sponsored the “Hong Kong
Rope Skipping Club 10th Anniversary
Charity Show”, encouraging the hearing-
impaired students to participate in the
activity and spreading the message of
disability inclusion.

AITEM [PMREBEELRRT | R FEIES - FOHA
REBACHEZBRRITWEREF  RPEILE
HNFHERIEGEE

The Bank organised “Go Banking with Auntie Piggy”, a
parent-child educational activity that allowed children
to gain exposure to basic banking operations through
role-play activities and develop a positive attitude towards

savings and managing personal finances.

AEBBEEAE  NTEHE
EIRFBEEREEERIR
SHEEBAREE  FRAE
B2HEH[BEEHERLXES
BERTH] RFEABE
REo

To spread the message of caring,
the Bank encourages employees
and their family members to serve
as volunteers and participate
actively in various community
service activities, such as the
“Caring for the Elderly in the
Southern District”.

3R 2019 Annual Report -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

ETHR
Employee Engagement

ERBATHLRAEMBERRITREBRIL [ ERBREBEINHO] BOBFEFEHAT o

Xiamen International Bank, the parent bank of Chiyu Bank, established the Hong Kong Training Centre of the Institute of Finance in Hong
Kong to cultivate talents in finance.

FTERFERERE  RBEFEIRER  RAEILTRRREES -
Outstanding staff and distinguished teams are recognised at our annual award presentation, which motivates
staff to strive for excellence.

- £ RRITEMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
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A thanksgiving event was held to
commend all our branch staff for their
commitment and sense of duty to help
meet various challenges during the year.

FREST ZEXRKOSMEBRMFEBHLE  BFEERERK
HE  EREBEMRTASINN[2019FTHRERLE | BEEE -
The Bank motivates the staff to take part in a wide range of sports matches
organised by the Group and other organisations, such as the “Basketball
Competition in the Greater Bay Area”. In 2019, the Bank won the champion in the
basketball competition organised by the Chinese Banks’ Association.

RTEPZENETRERED - 81
ERRITED RREEHS - BB
FHEMER  IRE TEBME -

A diverse range of recreational activities,
such as hiking and Bowling Fun Day,
have been organised to advocate work-
life balance and strengthen the bonding
among all levels of staff.

3R 2019 Annual Report -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

RERE

Awards & Recognition

ZR{T8 % (CTgoodjobs) 82 2019 F [ RIFHE XS T
KE | 2BEERBR [REETFEANARE | 2£88 » LIRS
RAEHTEECSSTNESE T A EASHEERE -

The Bank was presented the Grand Prize of “Best Corporate Social Responsibility Award” and
Gold Prize of “Best Compensation & Benefits Award” by CTgoodjobs in acknowledgement of our
efforts to fulfill corporate social responsibility and implement caring employment practices.

BERTSMASTBERZIIERE  NMTEEMFLE
{JobMarket REEEIS ) MHMEE [ SMEERE] -

With our outstanding performance in talent acquisition and
development, the Bank received the “Employer of Choice
Award” from JobMarket for 2 years in a row.

RMIEBEFEEI A ER)  BETEBH [BEEFFREEIR -

The Bank endeavoured to nurture young talents and received the “Youth Nurturing
Employer Award” from the Labour Department.

- £ RRITEMAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.



TTERBCELESENRERLEEZRD  RE(BR) [FN\BHELCELESSEE] -
Our commitment to CSR has earned us wide recognition. The Bank was granted the “8th Outstanding Corporate
Social Responsibility Award” by The Mirror magazine .

Rt REE — BEEETAERARTETHRED
MHRFEE > FTEERBRTNEBRBERASERBAAA  F
BREBIETE ©

China Lianhe Credit Rating Co., Ltd., an authoritative rating agency
on the Mainland, affirmed the “AAA” long-term issuer credit rating
on Chiyu Bank upon a comprehensive analysis and assessment of
the Bank. The Bank’s outlook is stable.

3R 2019 Annual Report -
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FINANCIAL CHARTS

EFERKREZRE
ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS
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ey S Financial Highlights
g1k
2019 2018 Change
24 For the year ﬁﬁfﬁg—g ﬁ;ﬁtgg e %
FEHURE EF T 2 5221 A Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,776,623 2,019,739 +37.47
Bt =prayil] Operating profit 1,486,368 1,210,250 +22.81
CRIp Nl Profit before taxation 1,493,937 1,204,742 +24.00
eyl Profit for the year 1,262,568 1,002,447 +25.95
PREEEH At year-end ﬁfi,:gjg ’E;ﬁitgg e %
e Total equity 14,122,989 11,603,196 +21.72
CBTTREUERA Issued and fully paid up share capital 3,245,980 1,772,988 +83.08
B Total assets 149,854,781 102,872,627 +45.67
WMSEER Financial ratios % % +- %
gL R Return on average total assets ' 0.95 1.12 -0.17
SRS RS ] 2 Return on average shareholders’ equity 10.61 10.40 +0.21
PASHIUA R Cost to income ratio 34.03 33.23 +0.80
j=vidie Loan to deposit ratio ° 65.41 61.89 +3.52
FEN S LR ¢ Average value of liquidity coverage ratio *
FFE First quarter 218.71 152.06 +66.65
ot slicy Second quarter 191.46 186.29 +5.17
B=FE Third quarter 205.53 250.75 -45.22
£ iEicy Fourth quarter 210.17 244.69 -34.52
B EESFHELERIZEE 445 Quarter-end value of net stable funding
@ ratio °
HFE First quarter 123.50 121.23 +2.27
HoFHE Second quarter 127.14 124.96 +2.18
E=FF Third quarter 131.08 134.05 -2.97
SBUUETE Fourth quarter 142.42 140.22 +2.20
SRR © Total capital ratio ® 17.71 20.99 -3.28
TR

1. P HEEE R R
Return on average total assets

2. PHRHER IR

Return on average shareholders’ equity

Profit for the year

H & s E

Daily average balance of total assets

AR TRERIEAS 5]

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank

A FRITHE SRIEAS R A (78 2 A 1)) S A R EREREY P39 (E

Average of the beginning and ending balance of capital and reserves

attributable to equity holders of the Bank
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2018 4 1 H & 9 ARUmEN I EE A LRI H9E
ToiE (GRITE CREMME) BRI RIEEeR
EHE ("ER ) REEREERRAR T
MR IR S M TR & BT -

2018 £ 10 H % 2019 4 12 ARV et
HREPPHIE AR GRITE CRiEntt) HAD K&
e BB UE ZOR I ARSRT Z At =
&~ ANITT B I o SRR AR SRR
At > HECi & RHR A e EREHE TR RL

- 20184 AR I H 2018 EE P ERERR E A G0
HHLLARTIIRE (BRIT3E OREe) MR Kol
P B R BB UE ZOR (R ARSRAT Z At =
J S 1T SR & B RE R AR SRTT 2 A
HESR R ~ SN TT T A RIAH A AR S AR
SHE o NIt > LSRR SR E R TR

- SEEALERT IR (SRIT3E (A KA Koy
Bl E R B E EOR AR T Z A st
IR N TT R AR T L S TR A B

55 -

Financial Highlights (continued)

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross advances
to customers.

4. The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the unconsolidated
basis which comprises the positions of local offices and overseas branches from
January to September 2018 of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“‘HKMA”) for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules.

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis
which comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries
starting from October 2018 to December 2019 of the Bank specified by the HKMA
for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
Hence, the comparative information is not directly comparable.

5. The net stable funding ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which
comprises the positions of local offices and overseas branches in the first half of
2018 and consolidated basis which comprises the positions of local offices,
overseas branches and subsidiaries starting from the second half of 2018 of the
Bank specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules. Hence, the comparative information is not directly
comparable.

6. Total capital ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
positions of local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries of the
Bank specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.
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2019 4 » SNBSS BREREOT I H P
K SR - N ORI RAR R BB
B R e R 1 L AR g SRR
R HERACERET K T S A RERE -

HEZRRITSRACE THIENR S PRER - A BB 4
SEALE T o AN A SRR S TR AR
B AGERARE T BB - AR S IaAS
R - IREES e SREE -

2019 4 » R S IAZEFAAR AT LT RAR
2 BERACE P EN ISR RCR © It5h - A
SR T L P T A B A A TR AR
HUSH iR - B R R A PR =] HE
e — & FERAESE - U fTIER
JEBAEE » ARG RSB R ST

KREBWREEE 2T £ PEEER R
RAEARDILT  FRREEFELURY] - 8
o BEE ~ EEEAVIRISHES > MRS T THER
fE PR S i Y i AR - (B (LA EAP
5 B RE P IRMEE RIS TIRE AR -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2019, the external economic environment became more complex and
uncertain. The global economy suffered due to the ongoing trade conflict
between China and the United States, China’s economic growth slowing down
and the uncertainty of the Brexit withdrawal agreement. Meanwhile, the tense
social atmosphere in Hong Kong also caused the overall business
environment to be more unstable.

In view of uncertainties and challenges in the operating environment, the
Group aims to strengthen its risk management and set forward-looking
management strategy. Also, the Group plans various measures such as
structural optimisation to encourage quality of growth and efficiency, these
efforts have enabled the Group to tackle the challenges.

In 2019, the Group's businesses maintained a promising development and
achieved remarkable operating results. During the year, the Group’s recently
established subsidiary, Chiyu Asset Management Limited, and Shenzhen
branch both had relatively good development, including Chiyu Asset
Management Limited issuing its first self-managed fund and Shenzhen branch
beginning to operate, from which supporting the Group’s sustainable
development.

With branches in Hong Kong, together with 3 branches and 2 sub-branches in
Fujian and Shenzhen in the Mainland China, the Group remains committed to
enhancing facilities of our branches in order to improve our corporate image as
well as to provide better services to our customers. This is also to represent
our ongoing pursuit of sincere, flexible, customized and professional
cross-border banking and financial services for our customers.
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2019 M AL SR 15 B R TE AL 5 Fl Ry s
1,262,568,000 7T » ®r A 4ERE 11 25.95% » %
A EFF B AR AT o PR R s
[E 3 %8 R S A [Pl 5 1 By 10.61% K2
0.95% -

FEPPFF SRR 2,018,573,000 T - 2
2018 4411 29.53% » LH YL B & E
R BT 48.39% - [MFH B R Al A
Tk 23 fERE T 1.56% o s sl
AN ELE T 73.40% 24 642,998,000
T © &8 Ry s 944,910,000 T - [FIELIE
i 40.81% - MERASHUC A LA A2 4R F
7+ 0.80 {#EE4rBEE 34.03% -

BT RO E R R R R
345,345,000 JT - LG5 4 [F 13 0 8 W
206,916,000 JT - 7 iE SRR E B PR
2018 £RJE T 0.14 {43 #i2E 0.39% -

BE 2019 K AEEGEREE KB
149,854,781,000 7T > ¥ 2018 4F J& # i
45.67% - % F &R Ry 76,066,959,000
JL > BESFIE ETT 56.91% © FE{ERK AR
116,291,434,000 7T - @ 25 & & I8 & 7+
48.46% -

RIS

JES 2020 £F - hEHE FEE R AMEORYE &
TR BT AR - U AR AR D
TSI AT E R - [EI A R FR S A L
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ABLOBATRAYVE RS - 2GBTS R (2R
SRR - IR R E T o R A EREL
Frioleg b & RELS > ST ETHEEE - B
s E PN RV -

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2019, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$1,262,568,000, increased by 25.95% from last year. This was mainly due to
increase in net interest income. The return on average shareholders’ equity and
the return on average total assets were 10.61% and 0.95% respectively.

Net interest income for the year was HK$2,018,573,000, increased by 29.53%.
It was mainly due to increase in average interest bearing assets by 48.39%,
with net interest margin decreased by 23 basis points to 1.56% compared with
2018. Net fee and commission income increased by 73.40% to
HK$642,998,000. Operating expenses increased by 40.81% to
HK$944,910,000, while the cost to income ratio increased by 0.80 percentage
points to 34.03%.

In 2019, net charge of loan impairment allowances was HK$345,345,000,
increased by HK$206,916,000 as compared with last year. The classified or
impaired loan ratio decreased by 0.14 percentage points to 0.39% compared
with the end of 2018.

As of 31 December 2019, the total consolidated assets of the Group increased
by 45.67% to HK$149,854,781,000 compared with the end of 2018. Advances
to customers increased by 56.91% to HK$76,066,959,000. Customer deposits
also increased by 48.46% to HK$116,291,434,000.

Prospect

Looking forward to 2020, the trade conflict between China and the United
States and China’s slow economic growth is likely to continue. Therefore, it is
still crucial to beware of these factors’ impact on financial markets. Meanwhile,
the local society still need time to recover, along with the new coronavirus
continues to spread, the local economic outlook remains volatile. The Group will
pursue a more stable and steady development strategy, and strengthen its risk
management at the same time, the Group will continue to fulfil its commitment
to corporate social responsibilities and a dedicated customer service.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Providing convenient banking services

We endeavour to offer quality and convenient banking services to people from
all walks of life, in an effort to assume our responsibilities to the community. In
the course of developing our businesses, we actively respond to the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority’s call to pursue financial inclusion. Our initiatives
include abolition of minimum monthly balance fee with effect from August
2019, for mid-segment and grassroot customers who maintain personal
accounts with us. In order to serve the needs of the public for basic banking
services, some of our branches are situated in public housing estates.

Continuous enhancement of customer experience is also one of our key
focuses. We have launched a variety of deposits promotion campaigns to
expand our customer base while encouraging children to kick-start their
savings plans and develop positive concepts towards financial management.
In addition, we have been working closely with our subsidiaries, i.e. Chiyu
International Capital Limited and Chiyu Asset Management Limited, to provide
more comprehensive corporate financial services. We have rolled out
structured loan services for corporate customers to meet their liquidity needs.
A number of funds and investment seminars were held at our branches during
the year with a view to deepening our relationships with personal and company
customers. Financial experts were invited to share with customers their
analysis on market trends and investment strategies.

To serve customers’ increasing demand for electronic service channels, we
have continuously upgraded our mobile banking functions. These include to
raise the maximum transaction limit for small-value payments and to
streamline the authentication process of non-registered third-party fund
transfers. In 2019, a new QR code payment function was also introduced on
our mobile banking platform, enabling customers to settle P2P and
government bill payments, etc. more flexibly and efficiently. In addition to
constantly enhancing “Chiyu Wechat official account”, we launched our brand
new “Chiyu Instagram official account” in 2019 to provide customers with our
latest corporate information, product and service offers to further enhance
customer experience.

In line with the growing use of Open Application Programming Interface (API),
we implemented Open APl and completed the first and second phases of
development according to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s framework.
Currently, information of our personal financial products, covering deposits,
loans, investments, insurance and safe deposit box details, is now available
via open APIl. Going forward, we will cooperate with third-party service
providers to enhance our open API platform that will allow customers to
complete account opening as well as mortgage and insurance applications. On
top of accessing real-time, comprehensive and accurate information,
customers can also enjoy one-stop financial services on this new platform.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Contributing to society

Over the years, Chiyu Bank spares no effort in organising and sponsoring
different community activities with a view to fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility. In October 2019, the Bank held an exhibition named “The Glory
of the Overseas Chinese - Exhibition of Tan Kah Kee’s Legacy and
Contributions of Overseas Chinese to the Development of Motherland". It was
an activity presented by the All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese and the Hong Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Associations,
supported by the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the Home Affairs Bureau of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government, and assisted by Tan
Kah Kee Memorial Museum. By displaying over 500 pictures and precious
exhibits and texts, the exhibition demonstrated the relentless efforts of Mr. Tan
Kah Kee, a patriotic leader in the overseas Chinese communities, to support
the social and education development in China with the revenue from his
businesses. The exhibition also highlighted the contributions of the overseas
Chinese to the Reform and Opening-up of China as well as the national
development in the new era. While aiming to educate the young generation
about the civic awareness and civic responsibility, the activity succeeded in
bringing positive energy to the society by promoting “Kah Kee’s spirit”.
Meanwhile, we maintain our commitment to support charitable causes. We
facilitated the establishment of the Tan Kah Kee Fund Association and the
donation of HKD5 million from the Fund Association to the Overseas Chinese
Charity Foundation of China. This move aims to connect the charitable
organisations relating to Mr Tan Kah Kee from around the world and combine
their efforts to organise different charitable activities for on-going promotion of
“Kah Kee’s spirit”.

Moreover, in 2019, we were the title sponsor of the two events held by the
Hong Kong Rope Skipping Club to help raise the ability and confidence of
students through rope skipping. We also invited staff and their families to
participate in our charitable activities organised jointly with community
organisations, such as visiting the elderly in Southern District in Hong Kong
under the Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association’s programme, proactively
spreading the message of caring for society.

Supporting Education

We remain committed to supporting the development of local education. It is
the faith we developed as early as the Bank was established. During the year,
the Bank sponsored the "9th Hong Kong Student Knowledge Contest on
China's National Situation”. It aimed to help strengthen local students’ skills of
independent analysis and critical thinking through deepening their
understanding of the conditions and history of our motherland. As for younger
kids, we organised a parent-child educational activity named “Go Banking with
Auntie Piggy” for them to gain exposure to basic banking operations through
role-play games. With this kind of activities, younger kids would be able to
develop a positive attitude towards savings and managing personal finances.

Advocating environmental awareness

To raise the public awareness of environmental protection and reduce paper
consumption, the Bank continuously promotes its internet banking, mobile
banking and e-cheque services among customers. We see a wider use of
these electronic platforms that offer customers secured, convenient and
environment-friendly services to manage their finances. As at the end of 2019,
the Bank recorded an increase of 20% in the respective numbers of customers
using Chiyu Internet Banking and Mobile Banking as compared with the
previous year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Advocating environmental awareness (continued)

In addition, we have implemented a number of proactive measures to protect
our environment. These include reducing waste, avoiding disposable items,
promoting wider use of energy-efficient products as well as supporting
recycling, energy saving, water resources and shark fin-free menus, etc. The
Bank also continued to participate in the “Charter on External Lighting”
organised by the Environment Bureau by switching off external lighting
installations at night to minimise light nuisance and energy wastage.

Caring for employees

Nurturing financial talents

People are the Group’s most important asset and we put great emphasis on
nurturing talents and helping staff upgrading their qualifications. During the
year, Xiamen International Bank, our parent bank, set up a brand new Institute
of Finance Hong Kong Training Centre to provide staff with internationalised
training resources and diversified business training classes. Moreover, we
have designed and launched tailored training programmes, such as exchange
meetings for management personnel at the financial institutions in New York
and San Francisco in US to further enrich their business knowledge. We have
also developed a well-structured officer trainee programme for younger talents.
In 2019, we recruited over 100 university graduates and offered them officer
trainee opportunities of learning and career development. Apart from taking
part in local practical training, these officer trainees also participated in the
one-month Elite Training Camp organised in Xiamen by our parent bank. This
was to help broaden their horizons through enhanced cross-border exchange.
All of these comprehensive training programmes enable us to lay a solid
foundation for our future business development. In addition, we continuously
strengthen our compliance culture and enhance our staff’s related knowledge
by providing them with compliance and anti-money laundering seminars and
online training during the year. Selected staff also enrolled in the ECF ARWP
programme organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers to be qualified as
retail wealth management professionals. That is a qualification well recognised
by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Promoting Core Values

Our Corporate Culture Development Task Force continues to advocate the
Bank’s core values of “Integrity, People-oriented, Innovative Development and
Caring for the Society” by implementing various initiatives and motivate our
employees to excel. We publish internal e-magazines respectively named
“Chiyu’'s Wisdom” and “Striving for Success”, to provide staff with updates of
the Bank’s innovation and development, as well as to promote the can-do spirit
among our staff by commending role models and sharing their success stories.

Enhancing our staff’s sense of belonging

Based on a people-oriented philosophy, we constantly optimise benefits for our
employees. In 2019, we increased the number of annual leave days and the
amount of meal allowance, enhanced the medical benefits for both staff and
their families, and offered a range of employee care initiatives, such as red
packets for Chinese New Year and gifts for festivals and birthday, etc.
Moreover, weekly gatherings are organised to reward staff with delicious food.
We strive to provide a harmonious and friendly working environment for our
employees.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Caring for employees (continued)

Enhancing our staff’s sense of belonging (continued)

The Bank reviews its remuneration packages periodically and formulates a
competitive scheme to retain and attract talents. An incentive programme has
also been introduced to reward outstanding staff. Another initiative to
recognise our employees for their remarkable performance is our Award
Presentation Ceremony. It is held annually to boost morale and increase our
staff’'s sense of belonging.

To advocate work-life balance at the Bank and strengthen the bonding
between departments, we organised a variety of recreational activities during
the year, such as hiking and bowling for staff and their families. Different sports
teams have been formed and employees are encouraged to enthusiastically
participate in various sports competitions organised by the Group, the banking
industry and Chinese enterprises. In 2019, our team was the champion in the
“Interbank Basketball Match” organised by the Chinese Banks’ Association. All
our team members demonstrated their team spirit and perseverance at these
events.

Awards and recognition

Our commitment to fulfil our corporate social responsibility has earned us wide
recognition. The Bank has been named a Caring Company by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for over five consecutive years. The Bank was also
presented the “8th Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility Award” and
the Grand Prize of “Best Corporate Social Responsibility Award” by The Mirror
magazine and CTgoodjobs respectively. In acknowledgement of our diversified
caring employment practices as well as comprehensive talent recruitment and
training strategies, we received the “Employer of Choice Award” from
JobMarket for two years in a row, and also the Gold Prize of “Best
Compensation & Benefits Award” and the "Youth Nurturing Employer Award”
from CTgoodjobs and the Labour Department respectively.
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are
pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the
Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019 (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in Note 37 to
the Financial Statements.

Business Review

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to the
“Management’s  Discussion and Analysis” and “Unaudited
Supplementary Financial Information — Risk Management” section of
this annual report. The above section forms part of this report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 34.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend (the “2019 Final
Dividend”) of HK$0.2 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Bank at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2019 AGM”).

Shares Issued and Subdivision of Shares

In order to further enhance the capital strength for future development,
the Bank issued 368,247 and 368,248 ordinary shares on 31
December 2018 and 29 January 2019 respectively at HK$4,000 each
to shareholders of the Bank.

At the annual general meeting of the Bank held on 29 May 2019, an
ordinary resolution has passed, whereas, every existing issued share
in the share capital of the Bank be subdivided into 500 subdivided
shares in the share capital of the Bank (the “Share Subdivision”) and
the Share Subdivision was effective on 30 May 2019. After the Share
Subdivision, the shareholding ratio of shareholders remain unchanged,
but the total number of issued shares has increased from 3,736,495
shares to 1,868,247,500.

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 30 to the
Financial Statements.

Donations

The Bank spares no effort in organising and sponsoring different
community activities with a view to fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility. In October 2019, we facilitated the establishment of the
Tan Kah Kee Fund Association and the donation of HKDS million from
the Fund Association to the Overseas Chinese Charity Foundation of
China. This move aims to connect the charitable organisations relating
to Mr Tan Kah Kee from around the world and combine their efforts to
organise different charitable activities for on-going promotion of “Kah
Kee’s spirit”. Moreover, in 2019, we were the title sponsor of the two
events held by the Hong Kong Rope Skipping Club to help raise the
ability and confidence of students through rope skipping. We remain
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Donations (continued)

committed to supporting the development of local education. It is the
faith we developed as early as the Bank was established. During the
year, we sponsored the "9th Hong Kong Student Knowledge Contest
on China's National Situation". It aimed to help strengthen local
students’ skills of independent analysis and critical thinking through
deepening their understanding of the conditions and history of our
motherland. Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$60,000.

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”)
during the year and up to date of this report are:

Chairman Lyu Yaoming
Vice Chairman Zheng Wei

Yu Kwok Chun *
Directors Tsoi Lai Ha #

Chen Cheng #

Tan Wan Chye #

Woo Chia Wei *

Cheung Wai Hing *

Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *

Chiu Ming Wah* (appointed on 19 February 2019)
Chan Yiu Fai

# Non-executive Directors
* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank, the
appointment of directors will be approved by ordinary resolution or by
the decision of the Board of Directors. Approval from the HKMA will
also be obtained in accordance with the Banking Ordinance.

The term of office for each Director of the Bank is approximately three
years. All Directors are subject to retirement and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Bank, and the re-election of retiring directors should be subject
to the recommendation and review from the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board before approval is sought
from shareholders at the AGM.

In accordance with Articles 24(2) and 25 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cheung Wai Hing and Prof. Woo Chia Wei shall retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Save for Mr Chan Yiu Fai being also director of certain subsidiaries of
the Bank, other directors of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year
and up to date of this report are:

Fung Chi Lap

Wong Siu Man

Tang Chu, Leonard

Kwong Kei Man

Don Wayne Ebanks (appointed on 22 February 2019)
Wong Wai Shan (appointed on 22 February 2019)
Lee Yuen Hung Kevin (appointed on 22 February 2019)
Ye Xin (appointed on 19 November 2019)

Liu Xiaoji (appointed on 19 November 2019)

Shen Chengjie (appointed on 12 December 2019)
Chan Chun Him (resigned on 12 December 2019)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other
body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall
be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liability incurred by
him/her as Director. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit
of Directors against liability which may lawfully be incurred by the
Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2019 have been audited by
KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lyu Yaoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 April 2020
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Biographical Details of Directors

Board of Directors

Mr. LYU Yaoming
Chairman and Executive Director

PhD in Economics, Senior Economist, was appointed as the Chairman and is a
member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank.
Currently, Mr. Lyu serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Board of Luso International Banking Limited,
Director of Xiamen International Investment Limited, Deputy Director of Institute
of Finance, Xiamen University. Mr. Lyu had successively served as Branch
Manager of Fuzhou Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Deputy Branch Head of Fujian Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. Since December 1997, Mr. Lyu had successively held the posts of
Executive Director, Vice Executive President and President of Xiamen
International Bank. Mr. Lyu serves as the Vice Chairman and President of
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. since December 2012, and resigned from
the post of President in May 2018.

Mr. ZHENG Wei
Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the Xiamen University and is a
senior economist, was appointed the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Bank in March 2017 and was appointed the Chief Executive of the Bank in
June 2017 and is a member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Zheng is an Executive
Director and Vice President of Xiamen International Bank. Mr. Zheng was the
Deputy General Manager of Xiamen International Bank and the General
Manager of the Shanghai Branch of Xiamen International Bank from July 2007
to February 2017. Mr. Zheng had also previously served Xiamen International
Bank as the Deputy Manager of the Credit Department, the Deputy Manager
and Manager of the Credit Management Department, the General Manager of
the Zhuhai Branch and the Assistant General Manager of Xiamen International
Bank.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. YU Kwok Chun
Vice Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the MacQuarie University,
Honorary University Fellow of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
of the City University of Hong Kong, he was appointed Independent
Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2002 and appointed as Vice
Chairman in December 2018. He is also the Chairman of the Strategy and
Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of
the Bank. Mr. Yu is Chairman of the Yue Hwa Group and Chairman of Yue
Hwa Chinese Products Emporium Limited. Mr. Yu is active in various social
services in Hong Kong as well as in the PRC. Mr. Yu is Executive Member of
the National Committee of The 13th Chinese National People’s Political
Consultative Conference and Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of
Returned Overseas Chinese. He is Member of the Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Founding Chairman and First President of
the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organizations Limited,
Permanent Honorary Chairman and Vice Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong
Association Limited, Principal Chairman of The Hong Kong Federation of
Overseas Chinese Associations, Committee Member of The Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce, Permanent Honorary Advisor of the Hong Kong
Meizhou Federation, Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Overseas Chinese
General Association, Permanent Honorary President of Ka Ying Chow
Commercial Association Limited, Permanent Honorary President and Founding
Chairman of the Unified Association of Kowloon West Limited, and Honorary
President of the Hong Kong and Kowloon General Merchandise Merchants’
Association Limited. Mr. Yu is the Vice President of Overseas Exchange
Association of Guangdong Province, Vice Honorary President of the
Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Association of
Guangdong Province, Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of the Jinan
University, Guangzhou, Vice President of the Jinan University Education and
Foundation Fund Limited, Guangzhou, Honorary President of the Board of
Directors of Jiaying University, Meizhou, Guangdong Province, Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Beijing Chinese Language and Culture College, and
Director of the First Board of Advisory Directors of Sun Yat Sen University,
Guangzhou. Mr. Yu was awarded the honour of Justice of the Peace, Silver
Bauhinia Star, Gold Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region successively in
1998, 1999, 2006 and 2019.

Ms. TSOI Lai Ha
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Management Accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant and
Certified Financial Planner, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Bank in March 2017 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tsoi is the Chief Financial
Officer of Xiamen International Bank. From June 1995 to May 2013, Ms. Tsoi
served Xiamen International Bank as Group Financial Controller. Prior to joining
Xiamen International Bank, she was Manager at the Financial Planning
Department of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Deputy Manager of the Accounting
Department of Asian Oceanic Group and Group Financial Controller of Mbf Asia
Capital Corporation Holding Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. CHEN Cheng
Non-executive Director

Graduated from the Hunan Changsha Third Artillery Academy majoring in
Communications and has completed a degree in Economics and Management
at the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China,
he was appointed a Non-executive Director of the Bank in May 2017. Mr. Chen
is the Vice Director of the Committee of Jimei Schools and has been the Curator
of Tan Kah Kee Museum since October 2008. He was an Officer at the Nanjing
Military Region from 1982 to 1989. Mr. Chen was the Head of the Fourth Office
of the Xiamen Municipal Government from February 1989 to September 1996.
Since September 1996, Mr. Chen had been the Vice Principal of the Economy
Department of the Xiamen Chamber of Commerce, until November 2005.

Mr. TAN Wan Chye
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree from Manchester College of Science
and Technology, University of Manchester, England and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Industrial Administration, he was appointed a Non-executive Director
of the Bank in June 1982. He is also a member of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee and the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the
largest individual shareholder of the Bank and is the son of Mr. Tan Kong Piat,
the former Chairman of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the Chairman of Tan Kong Piat (Pte)
Ltd, which is a holding company, Tan Kong Piat & Co Pte Ltd, which is an
investment trading company, Asia Industrial Development (Pte) Ltd and Asia
Property Development (Pte) Ltd, which are both property development
companies. He had previously served as a Director of the following companies
importing Chinese canned food and herb, Chung Nam Company (Pte) Ltd, Bin
Hong Co Pte Ltd, Tiong Wan Pte Ltd and Nam Leong Co Sdn Bhd. He took part
in the design & construction of Central Power Stations in England and
Singapore. He is a Chartered Engineer, a Member of the Institute of Mechanical
Engineers, England, and a Member of Institute of Engineers, Singapore. Mr. Tan
is active in the charitable activities in Singapore. He is a board member of
Buddhist Lodge Education Foundation, a board member of Mee Toh School, a
Trustee of Kwan Im Thong Hood Cho Temple and Mee Toh Foundation, they
distribute donations that amount to millions of Singaporean Dollars to schools,
hospitals and charitable organisations.

Prof. WOO Chia-Wei
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Master’s Degree and a PhD in Physics from Washington University in
St. Louis in the United States, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank in April 2002. He is also a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank. Prof. Woo is also the Senior Advisor to
Shui On Holdings Limited and the President Emeritus of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, an Independent Non-executive Director
of each of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited and First Shanghai Investments
Limited. Prof. Woo was previously the President, Provost, Department Head,
and a Professor of several prominent universities in the United States of
America. Prof. Woo was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of
Hong Kong, the Commander of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire
by the United Kingdom, as well as Chevalier de la Legion d’Honneur by the
President of France.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Hing
Independent Non-executive Director

LLB (Hon.), HKU, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Bank in November 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank.
Mr. Cheung is a senior partner of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo, Solicitors and the Head
of its Litigation Department. Mr. Cheung is currently the Chairman of Applied
Research Council of the HKSAR Government. He also serves as the Honarary
Legal Advisor of Po Leung Kuk, The Hong Kong Tuberculosis, Chest and Heart
Diseases Association and Wai Yin Association. He is a member of Po Leung
Kuk Youth Oasis Preparatory Consultative Committee and panel member of the
Disciplinary Committee of Association for China-Appointed Attesting Officers
Limited. Mr. Cheung is a trustee of The D. H. Chen Foundation and was a
trustee of the Association for Celebration of Reunification of Hong Kong with
China Charitable Trust until the winding up of its operation. Mr. Cheung is a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong and qualified to practise in England and Wales,
Australia (Victoria) and Singapore. He is also a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages of the Government of Hong Kong.

Mr. LEE Hoi Yin, Stephen
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Accountancy from City of London
Polytechnic, a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and an Associate Member of The Institute of Internal Auditors, he was
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank in November
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Risk
Management Committee of the Bank. Mr. Lee has over 30 years’ experience
in accounting, auditing and financial management, at KPMG in London and
Hong Kong. He was an audit partner of KPMG Hong Kong before becoming
the Partner-in-Charge of the Risk & Compliance Advisory practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, the PRC and the Asia Pacific region. He retired from
KPMG in 2011,and is currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and as Immediate Past President of The
Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong Limited. He is a Non-executive
Director of the Board of the Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong and an
Independent Director of Prime Property Fund Asia GP Pte Limited.

Mr. CHIU Ming Wah
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from Lincoln
University, U.S.A and was a Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) during 2000 to
2014. Mr. Chiu was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Bank in February 2019. He is also the Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee of the Bank. He is at present a Non-executive Director of Shanghai
Electric Hong Kong Co. Ltd. During 2001 to 2014, he was the Head of Audit
(General Manager) of Bank of China (HK) Limited as well as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of Chiyu Bank. He was
member of the Shenyang Chinese National People’s Political Consultative
Conference during 2013 to 2017 and successively been a member of the
National People’s Congress Election Committee of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. CHAN Yiu Fai
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Corporate Governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong, he was appointed an Executive Director of
the Bank in March 2003 and as the Deputy Chief Executive (formerly known as
Deputy General Manager) of the Bank in December 2002. Presently he is
mainly responsible for the business support and internal control functions of the
Bank. Between 1981 and 2001, Mr. Chan had served in the Hua Chiao
Commercial Bank in various positions as the Branch Manager, the Head of
Business Development Department, China Business Department, Strategic
Planning Department and Project Research Department. He was the Head of
the Mainland Branch Business Department of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited after the merger of BOCHK Group in October 2001.
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has followed the guidelines as set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is committed to
maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and considers such
commitment essential in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Senior
Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises eleven Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, three are Executive Directors, remaining eight
are Non-executive Directors. Of the eight Non-executive Directors, five are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 95%. The
Board authorises the Senior Management to implement the strategies as
approved by the Board. The Senior Management is responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. Senior
Management implements important policies and develops strategies as
adopted by the Board. In order to focus on strategic and material issues that
have significant impact on the Group’s operation, financial performance, risk
management and long-term development, four committees have been
established under the Board to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details
of the committees are given below:
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee
(“SC”)

The SC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of the
strategy management and corporate governance of the Group:

+ study and formulate the Group's development strategy, business objectives,
risk management strategy, capital management strategy, human resource
management strategy, technology development strategy, organisation and
new business development strategy and medium and long-term
development plan;

+ review and evaluate the implementation process of strategies; make
proposal on strategic adjustments in accordance with the changes in the
business environment;

- exercise decision making and monitoring power on behalf of the Board
during the period between the Board meetings;

+ recommend on the setup plan proposed by senior management;

+ monitor corporate governance system, evaluate regularly and make
suggestions to improve the corporate governance of the Group; and

+ check the implementation of the Group's annual business plan and major
investment plans, make recommendations on major investment projects of
the Bank, and report to the board of directors for consideration and
approval.

The members of SC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Yu Kwok Chun (Chairman)
Mr Lyu Yaoming

Mr Tan Wan Chye

Mr Zheng Wei

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Yu Kwok Chun is
Independent Non-executive Director. Four SC meetings were held in the year
with an attendance rate of 94%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the
following areas:

+ integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;
+ internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the
General Manager of Audit Department;

+ appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,
independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

+ corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof.

The members of AC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr Cheung Wai Hing

Mr Tan Wan Chye

Mr Yu Kwok Chun

Ms Tsoi Lai Ha

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Lee Hoi
Yin, Stephen, Mr Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Yu Kwok Chun are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Four AC meetings were held in the year with an
attendance rate of 95%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of the
risk management of the Group:

- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group;
+ monitoring of various types of risks faced by the Group;
+ review and monitoring of the changes in the Group’s risk profile;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system, internal control procedures and regulatory requirements;

- review and approval of significant risk-related policies and risk limits of the
Group; and

+ review of risk-related information submitted by the Group.

The members of RC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Chiu Ming Wah (Chairman) (appointed on 19 February 2019)

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen
Mr Zheng Wei

Mr Yu Kwok Chun (resigned as Chairman and member on 19

February 2019)

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Chiu Ming Wah and Mr.
Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen are Independent Non-executive Directors. Four RC
meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group
in the following areas:

+ human resources strategy, remuneration strategy and incentive
framework of the Group,

+ group governance and bank culture promotion,

- selection, nomination and appointment of Directors, Board Committee
members and senior Management,

- structure, size and composition (including skills, experience and
knowledge) of the Board and Board Committees,

+ remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior
Management and Key Personnel,

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees, and

+ training and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management.

The members of the NRC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Cheung Wai Hing (Chairman)
Ms Tsoi Lai Ha
Mr Woo Chia Wei

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr
Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Woo Chia Wei are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Three NRC meetings were held during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%.

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board):

+ review the amendment and formulation on the major human resources
and remuneration policies;

+ review on the performance appraisal result and bonus payment for the
year 2018 and the proposal on the salary adjustment for the year 2019 of
the Senior Management and Key Personnel,

+ proposal on the Annual Review of the Four Type of Staff as delineated in
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” of HKMA,

+ review on the change of Senior Management/Key Personnel of the Bank,
members of the Board of Directors and their remuneration package.
Review on the appointment of an Independent and non-executive
Director as the Vice Chairman of the Bank and Chairman of the Strategy
and Corporate Governance Committee, and review on the change of
Chairman of the Bank from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director,

+ review on the adjustment of organization chart and the reallocation of job
duties among Senior Management due to the change of its members,

+ review on the 2019 KPI framework of Senior Management and Key
Personnel of the Bank, and

+ review on the proposal for the build up of the bank culture of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with perfformance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the board principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries
(including the branches and institutions within and outside Hong Kong).

1. Senior Management and Key Personnel

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA's “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

+ “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the
Board who are responsible for oversight of the bank-wide strategy or
material business lines, including Executive Directors, Chief
Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Risk Officer and Chief
Financial Officer.

+ “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
directly and materially linked to the risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the profit, including General Managers of
material business lines, General Manager of Financial Markets
Department, as well as General Managers of risk control functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing the
Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed remuneration strategy and planning is submitted to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to
the Board for approval.

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

(1) Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism
to formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group,
units and individuals. For individual staff at different levels, annual
targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the
performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals
will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their
contribution towards performance of their units, fulfiment of risk
management duties, execution of the bank culture and compliance.
Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk
exposure involved during the course of work and their core value
could also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal
operation of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration
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To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with
risk into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of the Group,
the key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the
performance management mechanism. Credit risk, market risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance
risk and reputation risk form the framework of the risk adjustment
method.

(3) Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and
“variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles,
responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that
balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion, so
as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk
management and sound long-term financial stability. Generally
speaking, the higher the grading / responsibility of the individual staff,
the bigger the portion of variable pay will be in his/her total
remuneration.

As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and
non-financial indicators.

The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Bank is
determined by the Board of the Bank on the basis of its financial
performance and the achievement of non-financial strategic business
targets under the long-term development of the Group. Thorough
consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of
the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attached to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, which is independent from the business they
oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting
and performance management system is applied to ensure the
suitability of performance-based remuneration. The better the
performance of the Department and the individual staff, the higher will
be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time

horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time
horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout,
payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred
in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The
Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral. The higher
the job grade of the individual staff, the higher will be the proportion of
deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.
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NEEE (8) Corporate Governance (continued)
N BB (48) Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
3. FHl s EEIRY F B R (8) 3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
(4) e ERRE B AEENE (4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time
BEMEAE (8) horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group (continued)
A S A R B A A [ s (A The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
ﬁ@%oﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁégﬂ%ﬁﬁzﬁgiﬁ long-term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
i o linked to the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the
K3 T4 S T
g,; , i%gg?%%;&g;j%qgg Group in the next 3 years and the bahavior of the individual staff to

the effect that the variable remuneration could only be vested to such
extent as set for the relevant year in that 3-year period subject to the
condition that the Group’s performance has met the threshold
requirement in the corresponding year. In case of material revision of

FIERRIFAVIEILT - B LHIRIE T HRIER
LB & FERVIRAE 4 - AR =
BAAVSEERRMEERFEAEER - BT

?ﬁgﬁ%ég’ﬁxlﬁ ) E%?Zﬁ‘%}i@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@% the original estimates of the performance of the Group or individual
Rt;ﬁ%{%@ﬁy/ﬁanzﬁm%mﬁ units, or if a staff is found to commit fraud, or found to be of
SR > AT malfeasance or in violation of internal control policies, the unvested
portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff will
be forfeited.
BAPEAERALE > ol S B FE R A T R Compared with the previous years, there was no material change in
R A G TR I s > (R the nature and type of above mentioned measures during the year, so
TR E RS G 75 B A B o it had no significant influence on the remuneration system of the
Bank.
4. FIBEREEER 4. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy
(1) AEEIHINECRE SNBSSk~ (1) The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review
BT ~ A A A R R I S T R with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
SLIEEEER - market conditions, organisational structure and risk management

requirements, etc.

(2) TAEREASRIT GRR BB SR ). OF (2) The review on the “Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Variable
SHEHPGE) L ER - ISSSEER Remuneration Management Policy” of the Bank have been
REHS T > BEELACSRIT T AR, B TS conducted during the year, so as to demonstrate the important
SRR | iy A SRR S - message of human resources strategy by giving the balance of

“effective incentive” and “prudent remuneration management”, which
is in line with HKMA guidance.

(3) FRIEA SR T A A2k Ry ST 5RmS & (3) Based on the latest organization structure and the business strategy
o (B RyEREEES ) iesr TS of the Bank, the identification criteria & position lists of the “Senior
ST | K T R AE | EHFRE A Management” and “Key Personnel” and etc., as delineated in the
B EAAAE o “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”, were also reviewed.

5. ¥AiEE 5. Disclosure on Remuneration

AEE S22 EIBLEE (GBENEHEE The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the

s2) BB sk B AEEERR Y “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA to

T R R RN - disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive

mechanism.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 34 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment allowances of advances to customers
Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s advances to customers as at 31 December 2019 Our audit procedures to assess the impairment allowances of

amounted to HK$76,066,959,000, net of total expected credit advances to customers measured at amortised cost included

losses (“ECL”) of HK$629,243,000. 34% of the Group’s the following:

advances to customers related to exposures in Mainland — understanding and assessing the design, implementation

China. and operating effectiveness of key internal controls on
financial reporting over the approval, recording and
monitoring and restructuring of loans measured at
amortised cost, the credit grading process, the ECL model
enhancement, approval, monitoring, governance and
validation process, and the measurement of impairment

allowances;
Impairment allowances of advances to customers across the —  evaluating the accuracy of the classification of advances
banking industry continue to be an area of concern and to customers. We obtained information on how
elevated focus due to the uncertain global economic outlook. management applied the classification requirements of the

financial instruments standard and the classification
results and on a sample basis we assessed the
contractual cash flow characteristics of advances to
customers and relevant documents in relation to the
business model;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued)

ECL may be materially misstated if the classification and
measurement framework for financial instruments is not
properly adopted. Therefore, the determination of impairment
allowances of advances to customers is subject to the
accuracy of the classifications of the Group’s advances to
customers.

The Group has developed its own model for measuring
impairment allowances of financial assets including advances
to customers.

Loan exposures that are not already credit-impaired are
classified as stage 1 on origination and a 12-month ECL
provision is recognised. Loan exposures will transfer to stage
2 if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to origination. Loan exposures are classified as
stage 3 if they become credit-impaired. A lifetime ECL
provision is recognised for loans classified as stage 2 and
stage 3.

ECL may be materially misstated if the exposures with a
significant increase in credit risk are not properly identified,
leading to inaccurate recognition of ECL.

The determination of impairment allowances using the
expected credit loss model is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other adjustment factors.
Management judgement is involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

30

involving specialists in assessing the reliability of the ECL
model used by management in determining impairment
allowances, including assessing the appropriateness of
the key parameters and assumptions in the expected
credit loss model, including the identification of loss
stages, probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other management adjustments;

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used
for the key parameters in the expected credit loss model,
by comparing individual loan information on a sample
basis with the underlying agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy of the loan
information in the ECL model. For key parameters derived
from external data, we selected samples to inspect the
accuracy of such data by comparing them with publicly
available sources;

for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence from
external sources and comparing it to the Group’s internal
records including historical loss experience and type of
collateral. As part of these procedures, we challenged
management’s revisions to estimates and input
parameters compared with the estimates and input
parameters at the beginning of the year and considered
the consistency of judgement. We compared the
economic factors used in the models with market
information to assess whether they were aligned with
market and economic development;

for key parameters used in the ECL model which were
derived from system-generated internal data, assessing
the accuracy of input data by comparing the input data
with original documents on a sample basis. We involved
our information technology specialists in assessing the
information systems controls critical to the credit grading
process, such as the compilation of the overdue reports
for advances to customers. We also assessed the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
relevant automated application controls within these
systems, as well as the key internal controls over these
underlying systems, including controls over access to
these systems and controls over data and change
management;

for selected samples of advances to customers that are
credit-impaired, evaluating management’s assessment of
the value of any collateral held by comparison with
available market information. We also evaluated the
timing and means of realisation of collateral, evaluated the
forecast cash flows, challenged the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans and evaluated other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contract terms;



4 A 2K

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued)

In particular, the determination of the impairment allowances
is heavily dependent on the external macro environment and
the Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
expected credit losses are derived from estimates including
the historical losses, internal and external credit grading and
other adjustment factors.

Management also exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of loss given default based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral,
the seniority of the claim and the existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. Management refers to
valuation reports issued by qualified third party valuers and
considers the influence of various factors including the market
price, location and use when assessing the value of property
held as collateral. The enforceability, timing and means of
realisation of collateral can also have an impact on the
recoverable amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
impairment allowances as at the end of the reporting period.

We identified the impairment allowances of advances to
customers measured at amortised cost as a key audit matter
because of the complexity of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgement involved and because of its
significance to the financial results and capital of the Group.

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

— in respect of identifying exposures with a significant
increase in credit risk, evaluating the validity of
management’s assessment on whether the credit risk of
the loan has, or has not, increased significantly since
initial recognition and whether the loan is credit-impaired
by selecting samples for which we checked loan overdue
information, made enquiries of the credit managers about
the borrowers’ business operations, checked borrowers’
financial information and researched market information
about borrowers’ businesses;

— in respect of assessing the accuracy of ECL calculation,
recalculating the amount of impairment allowance for
12-month and life-time credit losses using the ECL model
based on the above parameters and assumptions for a
sample of advances to customers where the credit risk of
the loan has not, or has, increased significantly since
initial recognition, respectively and comparing to the
results from the Group;

— assessing the appropriateness of material manual
adjustments and overlays on ECL model outputs; and

— evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on
impairment allowances of advances to customers
measured at amortised cost and the relevant disclosures
meet the requirements in the prevailing accounting
standards.

Refer to notes 2.12, 5.1, 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Financial instruments carried at fair value account for a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. As at 31 December
2019, the fair value of these financial instruments was
HK$45,388,156,000 of which HK$6,966,205,000,
HK$38,394,768,000 and HK$27,183,000 were classified as
level 1, 2 and 3 financial instruments respectively.

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments, which are
stated at their fair values, is based on a combination of market
data and valuation models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained from
readily available data for liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of level
3 financial instruments, estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of financial

instruments included the following:

— assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the valuation
and independent price verification for financial
instruments;

—  for the key underlying systems used for the processing of
transactions in relation to financial instruments we utilised
our information technology specialists to assess the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of a
selection of relevant automated controls within these
systems. We also assessed the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the key internal controls
over these underlying systems, including controls over
access to these systems and controls over data and
change management;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Refer to notes 2.12, 5.1, 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter (continued) How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)
The Group has developed its own models to value certain — assessing the fair values of level 1 and certain level 2
level 2 and 3 financial instruments, which involves significant financial instruments by comparing the fair values applied
management judgement. by the Group with publicly available market data, on a
sample basis;

We identified assessment of the fair value of financial —  evaluating the methodology adopted by management and
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of assessing the reasonableness of the inputs and
complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments assumptions used by management in the valuations;

and because of the degree of judgement exercised by
management in developing its own models and in determining
the inputs used in the valuation models.

—  engaging our internal valuation specialists to perform, on a
sample basis, independent valuations of certain level 2
financial instruments and comparing these valuations with
the Group’s valuations. Our independent valuations
included developing models, obtaining inputs
independently and verifying the inputs obtained
independently; and

— assessing whether the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements appropriately reflected the Group’s
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Fong Hoi Wan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 April 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

Pt
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2019 2018
AT AETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000

Interest income 4,208,147 2,546,178

Interest income calculated using the effective

interest method 4,192,248 2,523,327

Other interest income 15,899 22,851

Interest expense (2,189,574) (987,748)
Net interest income 6 2,018,573 1,558,430
Fee and commission income 667,254 394,830
Fee and commission expense (24,256) (24,011)
Net fee and commission income 7 642,998 370,819
Net trading gain 8 25,941 71,743
Net gain on financial instruments designated at

fair value through profit or loss 7,307 465
Net gain on other financial assets 9 69,489 5,874
Other operating income 10 12,315 12,408
Net operating income before impairment

allowances 2,776,623 2,019,739
Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (345,345) (138,429)
Net operating income 2,431,278 1,881,310
Operating expenses 12 (944,910) (671,060)
Operating profit 1,486,368 1,210,250
Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties 13 4,846 18,440
Net gain /(loss) from disposal / revaluation of

properties, plant and equipment 14 2,723 (23,948)
Profit before taxation 1,493,937 1,204,742
Taxation 15 (231,369) (202,295)
Profit for the year 1,262,568 1,002,447

The Group has initially applied Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 16 at 1
January 2019, using modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated.

The notes on pages 40 to 187 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FfsE
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2019 2018
AETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Profit for the year 1,262,568 1,002,447
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 25 27,006 119,251
Deferred tax 29 (1,853) (16,953)
25,153 102,298
Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 23 15,108 (2,466)
40,261 99,832
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 23 304,306 (169,370)
Release upon disposal reclassified to
income statement 9 (69,778) (6,061)
Change in impairment allowances charged
to income statement 12,116 (4,439)
Deferred tax 29 (45,347) 32,699
201,297 (147,171)
Currency translation difference (55,523) (71,895)
145,774 (219,066)
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 186,035 (119,234)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,448,603 883,213
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 1,448,603 883,213

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, using modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated.

The notes on pages 40 to 187 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial

institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Derivative financial instruments
Advances to customers and trade bills
Investment in securities

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions

Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Other accounts and provisions
Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank

Additional equity instruments

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

i
Notes 2019 2018
BT AMETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
19 18,235,988 15,446,012
20 4,819,212 6,302,563
21 122,133 122,680
22 76,986,891 49,934,290
23 46,908,420 28,627,506
24 237,150 233,350
25 2,021,072 1,738,569
29 640 12,298
26 523,275 455,359
149,854,781 102,872,627
17,747,463 11,933,270
21 40,361 43,268
27 116,291,434 78,329,515
28 1,273,083 746,311
195,776 75,824
29 183,675 141,243
135,731,792 91,269,431
30 3,245,980 1,772,988
8,939,297 7,892,496
12,185,277 9,665,484
31 1,937,712 1,937,712
14,122,989 11,603,196
149,854,781 102,872,627

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, using modified retrospective

approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated.

The notes on pages 40 to 187 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2020 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

LYU Yaoming
Director

ZHENG Wei
Director
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LrETEZSEEIE  Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRI A SRR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

i

Reserves

%EE{E} APEE

2 3

4
iz BT EEEH SEEHE  grEn Wt BNEATE A
IARILEES Additional
Share revaluatioq Fair value Regulator Translatiorl Retained equity Total
Capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total instruments equity
AETT BT BT B¥Tx B%T BT B%Ta B¥TT EBETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
201941 51 H  At1January 2019 1,772,988 1,224,732 (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,524,041 9,665,484 1,937,712 11,603,196
PR Profit for the year - . R R - 1,262,568 1,262,568 - 1,262,568
HAth S s Other comprehensive
income:
B Premises . 25,153 . . . . 25,153 . 25,153
LA EE#({EEE A Equity instruments
HAh 2 mEUL2E > at fair value
BiEss T A through other
T comprehensive
income - - 15,108 - - - 15,108 - 15,108
PAAEAE# {5 A Debtinstruments
HAh 2 mEUL2E > at fair value
ERTE through other
T comprehensive
income - - 201,297 - - - 201,297 - 201,297
RIS R Currency translation
difference o - 1,164 - (56,687) - (55,523) - (55,523)
LU AEEH Total comprehensive
income - 25,153 217,569 - (56,687) 1,262,568 1,448,603 - 1,448,603
AT IEME Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,992 - - - o - 1,472,992 - 1,472,992
% 5 AR B A Transfer to retained
earnings - - - 105,610 - (105,610) - - -
el Dividends - - - . - (208,020)  (298,920) - (298,920)
F A\ HESNE A T 4% Distribution to the
HEHE holders of the
additional equity
instruments 2 2 - - - (102,882)  (102,882) - (102,882)
A B DL {841, Release upon disposal
s AH M4z of equity instruments
>Ry kEzs T > atfair value through
e - other comprehensive
' income 5 5 1,369 5 - (1,369) c . .
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 3,245,980 1,249,885 588 519,987 (108,991) 7,277,828 12,185,277 1,937,712 14,122,989
BEE DI ES b A 2T The release upon disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income was made
% Z Bt s T ER IS AR because the investment was no longer to be held for strategic purpose.
FELIA NS B -

AEECH 2019 F 1 H 1 HERHL The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, using modified retrospective approach. Under

{ERTHYIB WA e F B e 153k this approach, comparative information is not restated.
HAERIZE 16 5% - IRIBIEMET%  th
EEEAYEY -

%40 F 187 H B A 7= The notes on pages 40 to 187 are an integral part of these financial statements.
ZAHRER Y
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SETERBEIR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

B AR T SR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
=47
Reserves
%E‘%ﬁi L‘Wﬁﬁz . .
A il G REE T OREEHE T wmgm gt ENEATH EARGE
PEmleEs , Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulato Translation  Retained equity Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total __instruments equity
BT BT BT BT BMTT BT BN BTk BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2018 21 H 1 H22 At 1 January 2018, as
FHAFIRE previously reported 300,000 1,122,434 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,942,842 7,625,785 1,937,712 9,563,497
JHE ) 5 AR B 75 45 4 Adjustment on initial
RIS O SkfvaEs application of
HKFRS 9 - - 15,760 - - (4,413) 11,347 - 11,347
#2018 41 H 1 HZ At1 January 2018, as
Eegdl restated 300,000 1,122,434  (69,125) 325,391 20,003 5938429 7,637,132 1,937,712 9,574,844
Gyl Profit for the year - - - - - 1,002,447 1,002,447 - 1,002,447
HoAth S Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises - 102,298 - - - - 102,298 - 102,298
PLAEEE(LEE A Equity instruments
HAth 4 m U 2E > at fair value
BE e T B through other
- comprehensive
income - = (2,466) - - - (2,466) - (2,466)
PAASEESALER A Debt instruments
Hfth & UL zs >~ at fair value
HHTHE through other
S comprehensive
income - - (147.171) S S - (147,171) = (147,171)
B EEE Currency translation
difference - - 412 - (72,307) - (71,895) - (71,895)
LU HEEH Total comprehensive
income - 102,298  (149,225) - (72,307) 1,002,447 883,213 - 883,213
AT A Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,988 - - - - - 1,472,988 - 1,472,988
R R Transfer to retained
earnings - - - 88,986 - (88,986) - - -
- Dividends - - - - - (225,000) (225,000) - (225,000)
Y HESNE A T B 5% Distribution to the
HEFE holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,849) (102,849) - (102,849)
#2018 412 H 31 [ At 31 December 2018 1,772,988 1,224,732 (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,524,041 9,665,484 1,937,712 11,603,196

1 BEEGEENETREER
AR08 0 5 73 2 AR PR T @

2. ATEEEHEESELAT
L5 A Bt % W5
TH R B
TR P -

3. RS O Y
SRR - R R
BR B B B E B
GERRIFSRT— IR ) (R0
o A1 46 5 3 A T T B L
B -

4. BB EILR R R
WHE 2.4 TN TSRS
BB -

540 £ 187 H B AM B HEZ
kR o

1. Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for the revaluation of premises.

2. Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income held until the financial instruments are
derecognised.

3. In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment
allowances recognised under HKFRS 9.

4.  Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for foreign currency translation in Note 2.4.

The notes on pages 40 to 187 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Ff&E
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2019 2018
AT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash inflow / (outflow) before
taxation 32(a) 1,722,883 (995,167)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (40,342) (150,155)
Overseas profits tax paid (66,027) (53,703)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating
activities 1,616,514 (1,199,025)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment 25 (43,218) (120,462)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (43,218) (120,462)
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital element of lease rentals paid (66,296) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid (5,207) -
Issue of ordinary share capital 30 1,472,992 1,472,988
Final dividend paid to the equity holders of
the Bank 16 (298,920) (225,000)
Distribution to the holders of the additional
equity instruments 16 (102,882) (102,849)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 999,687 1,145,139
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 2,572,983 (174,348)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 18,688,142 19,012,716
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (71,326) (150,226)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 32(b) 21,189,799 18,688,142

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, using modified retrospective

approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated.

The notes on pages 40 to 187 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
services.

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.

2. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the fair value revaluation of
investment in securities at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are
carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective

SERETRHIME A SR R EET for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2019

#8257 RE REARE A SRR
Applicable for
financial years

Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after

HAEI RS RS 16 9% HE 201941 H1 H

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

e B SAERER R 23 5%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

B GRS R 2015 £
2017 FFHARE R e

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2015 — 2017 cycle

IRt A HEE I 2 B

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

4

201941 H1H
1 January 2019

20191 H1H

1 January 2019



4 A 2K

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

SEBERRIE (8)

2. FEEBCR (8)

21

(@) EF20194 17 1 QRGBS
FEMRGIEER AR BT (F)

EELEE ()

LA SR B AH B 2 7 B % s E

BT -

. ﬁ%ﬁjf%iﬁﬂ:ﬁﬁjkk16ﬂtﬁy{ﬁ§
Gt RIS 17 R R AR R
%% 8 (B s AE A i
ZEERRE) P TIE—IHE
EEEEEHE ) - HK(ESIC)15 »
SCETTH - S HK(SIC)27 - 5
fEEENE S LS AP AR
5 - EREHEAGIAR—&S
1o ZORRTE RS T A TH L
(E AR E A B
PR R 128 H e LA T EIREE ( “%E
WIS ORI (E & AR ERR
Hh o A AG SRR E
GEFAERAEATEE KRB -

- BN SRR 1655 A
FAE B E MR BRI E » BT
(o A s e P o I BE R P A FH B
fise 20 ?’&Hﬁ)ﬁ AR IR B

AR

- AEE 201951 B1HEERE
AR AR A 165k - AEE
EE R e TRYEIA TE
T M A 2 a2 2 2019
FEAF B Y 0 B B 1T
B H:ﬁx SRR &8 S
AR TS M -

(i) FFBERIIEST
(1) HHEHEE

AREELEERT L& QR EE
%@#%E@E‘fiﬁﬂ S
HERIRERE <<l[§ﬂﬂﬁi$&i
EE[ S b b X AR
E—IH ﬁﬁFm@@ HE - &
B <<§%ﬂﬁ“$§i5ﬁ
A1) 55 165%AVHH FUE 2 E A
G RESENREEHEE - £
(& B AER]) 551657
T IR EY IR A A T4
T AE B R T P S T R )
CEFHAHZERIRE - AIRZ S IE
BB EHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective

for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group is

as follows:

+ HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related interpretations,

HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease,
HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) and leases of
low value assets. The lessor accounting requirements are brought forward
from HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

+ HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure

requirements which aim to enable users of the financial statements to
assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

+ The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group

has elected to use the modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

(i) Change in accounting policies

(1) New definition of a lease

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an
arrangement was or contained a lease under HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease. The Group now assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a
lease. Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)
(i) Change in accounting policies (continued)

(2) Lessee accounting

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability. When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is initially measured at cost, and
subsequently at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the
lease liability and decreased by lease payment made. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate, changes in
the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is reasonably
certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to
be exercised. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal options. The
assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise such
options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective for
accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)
(i) Change in accounting policies (continued)

(3) Lessor accounting

The Group leases out its investment property as the lessor of operating
leases. The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor remain
substantially unchanged from those under HKAS 17.

(ii) Transitional impact

At transition, for leases classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, lease
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted at the Group’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1
January 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments. The Group applied this approach to all leases.

The Group used the following practical expedients when applying HKFRS 16
to leases previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.

- applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities
for leases with less than 12 months of lease term.

+ excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.

+ used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains
option to extend or terminate the lease.

20191 H1H
1 January 2019
BHET T
HK$’000
Right-of-use assets presented in properties, plant and
equipment
117,730
Lease liabilities presented in other accounts and
provisions
117,730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective for
accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2019 (continued)

(i) Transitional impact (continued)

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.69%.

The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments as disclosed in
Note 35(a) as at 31 December 2018 to the opening balance for lease liabilities
recognised as at 1 January 2019:

20191 H1H
1 January 2019
BT
HK$’000
Operating lease commitment at 31 December 2018

127,140
Less: commitments relating to leases exempt from
capitalisation:

- short-term leases (78)

- leases of low-value assets (54)
127,008

Less: total future interest expenses

(9,278)

117,730

Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019

+ HK(IFRIC) — Int 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”. The
interpretation states that the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes
should be reflected and measured by determining how probable a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The interpretation is applied
retrospectively. Early application is permitted. The application of this
interpretation will not have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

+ The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.
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2. FEEEE (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 EEERE (8 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) CHEfEERBHERRREASE (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective

Bt 2019 FE3RRFTHR N2 BRI BT and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2019

R BET & EREAZEE

Applicable for
financial years

Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after
BV R EHEAIE 398 (8 EBIER 20201 H 1 H
i1)
HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a business 1 January 2020
TR 1 9ERE 858 (& EARZER 20201 H 1 H
&aT)
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of material 1 January 2020
(Amendment)
REEIEEFEZEEITEIE The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
16 4 F 2 5 P O] AR 7 AR B R amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the adoption
2o JZEHATREE - SR EE of them is unlikely to have a significant impact to the consolidated financial
TR B AR S I T R I statements.
Efe[E R -
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(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

2.2
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee). When the Bank has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is the fair values at the acquisition date of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred (including contingent
consideration arrangement) and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed in the income statement as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilites assumed. If after
assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a bargain purchase gain.
Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment testing at least annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

U]

(ii)

(iif)

Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
fair value at the acquisition date and considered as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger
accounting method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting
is a way to combine companies under common control as though the
business of the acquiree had always been carried out by the acquirer.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements represent the
consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and consolidated financial
position of the Group as if any such combination had occurred from the
date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under common control
(i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of combination is required).
The difference between the consideration and carrying amount at the
time of combination is recognised in equity. The effects of all
transactions between the Group and the acquiree, whether occurring
before or after the combination, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Comparative amounts
are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the start of the
earliest period presented unless the acquiree first came under common
control at a later date. The transaction costs for the combination will be
expensed in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the Group’s companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2

23

2.4

Consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)
(iv) Investments in subsidiaries

In the Bank's statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of
dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.

Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Group’s senior management, which is the
chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and
assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and expenses
directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in

profit or loss. However, foreign currency differences arising from the

translation of the following items are recognised in other comprehensive

income (“OCI"):

+ equity investments in respect of which an election has been made to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI;

- a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign
operation to the extent that the hedge is effective; and

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4

25

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and derivative financial instruments are included in gains less losses
from trading securities or financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are presented
as gains less losses from foreign exchange and foreign exchange products in
the income statement. Differences arising on translation of equity investments
which an election has been made to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in fair value reserve.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a
functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong
Kong dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

+ income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency
translation reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve.
When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are
designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

2.7

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
expense

(1) Interest income and expense

Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised
cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than
credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but not expected credit losses.
For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on
initial recognition, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using
estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses (i.e. no expected
credit loss provision is required at initial recognition).

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and
fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.
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expense (continued)

(1) Interest income and expense (continued)

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at
which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
expected credit loss allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the
gross basis.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of
interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the
asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please refer to
Note 2.14.

(2) Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income and expense that are not an integral part of the
effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period
when the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset
management fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been
completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself or
has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to other
participants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

(1)

()

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. A financial asset is
measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Classification

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- fair value through profit and loss;
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

« amortised cost.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets depend
on:

- the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
« the cash flow characteristics of the assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is calculated using the effective
interest method.

« FVOCI, if the contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.

« FVTPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI. Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group’s management has
elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at FVOCI. The Group’s policy is to designate equity
investments as FVOCI when those investments that are not held for
trading. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,
including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the
“Net trading gain” line in the income statement.

(iii) Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model
in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

« the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. In particular, whether management’s
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the
Group’s management;

« the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

« how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons
for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity.
However, information about sales activity is not considered in
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s
stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how
cash flows are realised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(2) Classification (continued)

(iv) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments

(v

~

of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal”’ is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity
risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash
flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

+ terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money, e.g.
periodical reset of interest rates.

The Group holds a portfolio of long-term fixed rate loans for which the
Group has the option to propose to revise the interest rate at periodic
reset dates. These reset rights are limited to the market rate at the time
of revision. The borrowers have an option to either accept the revised
rate or redeem the loan at par without penalty. The Group has
determined that the contractual cash flows of these loans are solely
payments of principal and interest because the option varies the interest
rate in a way that is consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount
outstanding.

Reclassification
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial

recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees
and loan commitments, as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

The Group has designated certain financial liabilities as at FVTPL in either of
the following circumstances:

- the liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair
value basis; or

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities
and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line
basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts
are taken to the income statement.

2.11 Derecognition of financial instruments
(1) Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1

2.12

Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
(1) Financial assets (continued)

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity
investment securities designated as at FVOCI is not recognised in
profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is
created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its statement of financial position, but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or
a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial
asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to
recognised the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the
value of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Group retains the obligation to service the
transferred financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is
derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability
is recognised for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for performing the
servicing.

(2) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous
market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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212 NEETE (8D 2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)
EERENA GRS N E R A If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation
EEEGFESHENE S HEENE T techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
T BRAAMGEE SRS E AN TE A discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
A ENE Y SIS S B4R techniques commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in
BT~ HRE O (R R At R s il the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
Hom > G WA e R fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
5 s AR S i E AR minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
[FESSINES
213 BB 2.13 Precious metals
EEEAESS R ESE - Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.
S LI N EE eI s E Precious metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at
& - EG BN ET TS EERES fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are
W zsabkste  BEFETEA B s included in net trading gain/loss.
5 -
214 SRIEERE 2.14 Impairment of financial assets
AEEMR LN IELA P EE L The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following
FPABEG SR TANFHBES financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:
BB AE
. JBINMEES A e REE - financial assets that are debt instruments;
+ FHEREWHRK - lease receivables;
- EEHIMBIEREGYT - financial guarantee contracts issued;
© CDENNETURE S & - loan commitments issued; and
« GEEE - - contract asset.
Wl a8 7 2R MR E TRk - No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.
AREEU=IEERTTEERERK The Group measures loss allowances for 12-month or lifetime ECL
128 F B 8] 17 48 HA A el A A8 1 using a 3-stage approach as follows:
wr:
= i EEEEES
Stage Description Impairment Loss
1 JETTH 12{8 H W HEIE &k
Performing 12-month ECL
2 T ERREH -« (EERRA AR E R SRR TR AR

Performing but with credit risk increased significantly at reporting Lifetime ECL
date since its initial recognition

3 EN: EHIEAN Z FRRME EEEE
Non-performing Lifetime ECL

128 H R Z FHI(E G LI R 12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on

THEHEHEN12AN - FrE a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the

VBT RN BT EEIE SR - reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. They are
measured as follows:

- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: at
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive);

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows;

+ undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the
commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse
the holder less any amounts that the Group expects to recover.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt is
credit-impaired, the Group considers the following factors:

- the market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond
yields;

« the rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness;

- the country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt
issuance;

- the probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders
suffering losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness;

- the international support mechanisms in place to provide the
necessary support as ‘lender of last resort’ to that country, as well as
the intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of
the depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political
intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial
position as follows:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from
the gross carrying amount of the assets;

- loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision;

- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn
component, and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any
excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn
component is presented as a provision; and

- debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is
recognised in the statement of financial position because the
carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss
allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual
asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in
impairment losses on financial instruments in the statement of profit or
loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.
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Non-integral financial guarantee contracts

The Group assesses whether a financial guarantee contract held is an

integral element of a financial asset that is accounted for as a

component of that instrument or is a contract that is accounted for

separately. The factors that the Group considers when making this

assessment include whether:

- the guarantee is implicitly part of the contractual terms of the debt
instrument;

- the guarantee is required by laws and regulations that govern the
contract of the debt instrument;

+ the guarantee is entered into at the same time as and in
contemplation of the debt instrument; and

- the guarantee is given by the parent of the borrower or another
company within the borrower’s group.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is an integral element of the
financial asset, then any premium payable in connection with the initial
recognition of the financial asset is treated as a transaction cost of
acquiring it. The Group considers the effect of the protection when
measuring the fair value of the debt instrument and when measuring
ECL.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is not an integral element of
the debt instrument, then it recognises an asset representing any
prepayment of guarantee premium and a right to compensation for
credit losses. A prepaid premium asset is recognised only if the
guaranteed exposure neither is credit-impaired nor has undergone a
significant increase in credit risk when the guarantee is acquired.
These assets are recognised in other assets (see Note 26). The Group
presents gains or losses on a compensation right in profit or loss in the
line item ‘net charge of impairment allowances’.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes but not
limited to the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

+ a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless
there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows
has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is
considered impaired.

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an
existing financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial
difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the
financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as
follows:

- If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising from the
modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash
shortfalls from the existing asset.

- If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset is
treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the
time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the
cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted
from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using
the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from
that entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that
entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the
Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased out
within Group companies are classified as investment properties in
individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements in the comparative period. Land held
under operating lease is classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it is a finance lease. Lease payments
were accounted for as described in Note 2.18.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties (continued)

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the
intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises,
by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the
premises revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.

All plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the Group is not the registered owner of
the property interest and leases of underlying plant and equipment (Note
2.18), are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the
cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- properties

- plant and equipment

over the life of government land leases
2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication
that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same
asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

2.18 Leases

(1) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
lease commencement date, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. When a right-of-use
asset meets the definition of investment property, it is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently at fair value, in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(1) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the
lease liability and decreased by lease payment made. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as
appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or
extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination
option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term for
some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal
options. The assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which significantly
affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised.

(2) Policy applicable before 1 January 2019

(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rental payable is recognised as expense in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance leases
as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e. transaction
price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the
land as if it were freehold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(2) Policy applicable before 1 January 2019 (continued)

(2) Finance leases (continued)
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment
properties acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave
expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves,
they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if
the amounts are significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In these cases, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of
certain assets including financial instruments at FVOCI and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of financial
instruments at FVOCI and revaluation of premises which are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred
income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive income and
is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the
statement of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and
are reported as “Repossessed assets” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts
and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confimed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.

an entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iif)

Both entities are joint venture of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has made
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 4.1E and Note 5 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to impairment and fair values of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Note 4.1E: impairment of financial instruments involves determining
inputs into the ECL measurement model, including incorporation of
forward-looking information.

(ii) Valuation of financial instruments

The Group’s accounting policy for valuation of financial instruments is
included in Note 5. The fair value of the financial instruments is mainly
based on the quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price quoted from a broker/dealer for non-exchanged traded financial
instruments.
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accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(i)

(iif)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

Certain critical accounting judgements
accounting policies are described below:

in applying the Group’s

Classification of financial assets

Note 2.8(2)(iii) and Note 2.8(2)(iv): assessment of the business model
within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Measurement of ECL

Note 4.1E: establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on
the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,
determining methodology for incorporating forward looking information
into measurement of ECL and selection of models used to measure ECL.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and impairment allowances are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available
tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets
recognised.
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The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk
management governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the
methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (RC), a standing committee established by the
Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of
risks, approving significant risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation. The CEO Executive Meeting (Credit Approval) is responsible for
approving credit transactions exceeding Chief Executive (CE) ‘s authority or
referred by CE. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.

The CE is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks, and
material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the Board
of Directors. The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) assists the CE in managing the Group’s
various types of risks, and approving material risk exposures or transactions within
his authority. With the support from Risk Management Department (RMD) and
Financial Management Department (FMD), the CRO assists the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities for the day-to-day management of risks and initiating new risk
management strategies, projects and measures that will enable the Group to
better monitor and manage new risk issues or areas that may arise from time to
time from new businesses, products and changes in the operating environment.
He will also take appropriate initiatives in response to regulatory changes. The
CRO and the General Manager of RMD are also responsible for reviewing
material risk exposures or transactions within their delegated authority. In
accordance with the principle of setting the hierarchy of risk management policies
approved by the Board, the senior management is also responsible for approving
the detailed risk management policies of their responsible areas.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
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Financial risk management framework (continued)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. Various risk management units are responsible to conduct independent
risk assessment in the product development process.

Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk management units and approval from
designated unit heads/the management.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss caused by customers or counterparties who are
unable to or unwilling to meet their contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in
the trading book and banking book, as well as on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes well-defined authorities and
responsibilities for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

75



4 A 2K

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

SEBERRIE (8)

4. CREBEE (8)

4.1 =8EE (8
EERREEERE (8

o £ 0 e o L S 5 5 e
BT - ALY [ B A HAHTE
E SRR EEE - EH R R RE
B — AR bR R e E
AT SRS AL RS B R
HEEHE  BEERRIEL - 22 8
gt ilivet WARE He R (HER SR VG
HIGIEL Py - DU EE - lEN S &

JE E BRI T -

TR AEERE R T 2 RRAEE
R AR R T AR TSR R AR
EECEBIEE ~ Sl - RS RIRAVIZE -
EEREBAERN SEEE RS

TERR -

EE RS R BEHE

RIEHEREE LAY T 5B AR
B (S BRI SRR VAR S PR S

HE B -

=i

TEZ P AT EA S G RE
AR FENEEF R EREF -
HRfEZ B g EEMHME RS54
B > AEHE ARG S FEE TR -
FRZ B B bR IR S & s B b B
A HEFTRITL A ~ FBIRTG - AHEE (A
APaR EIRIECIMERIERD) RHR(EH4R

(FRIRELHER IR ) DUCRHE AR
#it: ZEEERXGUBETE/NEEEK
FEEEEERX RN EKERNEEN
HR RPN A T (5 B sl - A SR E
FE RSO IRS ~ (055 NaPal ~ 1255
SAHRETHMGER (M) PS5 EE

AL -

AL IR I F SR AR (AR
SARETDHIGS R (L) RS EE
Bt~ (EERE RS Koo - BIRIEEE
R B AR I » SR o i e B 2 P R
HUE A AR P AR e i R S DR e -
TR B T R AR R 4H 5 Jed 1 T
FIRHTH N B AR R AR R TR 4 SR AT
52 B R R A - GiET

il

R EE B 5 F A P R0 AR 4 R R R EALAEE
AELFE (Standard & Poor's)yMif (& 5T
ERRH T IE - 3% N TS AR AE R P 451

(ER1T2E (CEA) HHI) HEDK -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework (continued)

Risk Assessment Department (RAD) and RMD are responsible for credit
risk management. Various units of the Group have their respective credit
risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of
defence. Both RAD and RMD, which are independent from the business
units, is responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and has
the primary responsibility for providing an independent due diligence
through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to
ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and

updating credit risk management policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk,

and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews

on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit
and other functions, is responsible for making an independent assessment
of material credit applications. Credit applications for non-retail exposures
are independently reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings
(in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios to support
credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used

to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used
for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is

required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group adopts an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to
Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master
rating scale is in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital)

Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports to the RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous

monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk

concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five

categories with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in

doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not

expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable

weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into

account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal

proceedings) have been exhausted.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer or security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated
with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control
processes as applied for advances. Ongoing monitoring and stop-loss
procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a
payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits
are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk
arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. In the personal
sector, the main types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits
and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of
collateral are real estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and
machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s
financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2018:
Nil).
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

A. Credit exposures
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The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the
Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to
credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group
could be required to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan
commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure to

credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as

follows:

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature
of the counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International

to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances to customers and trade bills, contingent

Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. (ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred
agreement for documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides
the contractual framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter
(“OTC”) transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting
provisions upon termination following the occurrence of an event of default
or a termination event. In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support
Annex ("CSA") will be included to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA
Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one counterparty

liabilities _and

commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 78. Advances to
customers and trade bills, contingent liabilittes and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking
account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The components
and nature of contingent liabilities and commitments are disclosed in Note
33. Regarding the commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit
line in case where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. For
contingent liabilities and commitments, 26.44% (2018: 29.36%) is covered

by collateral as at 31 December 2019.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8
B. FEERLT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

(a) BEFERKEGHEBN

(a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills

ERER

TR % PRI 5
REZEEERITEL

The following tables set out information about the credit quality of advances to

customers and trade bills. The amounts in the table represent gross carrying

IREEYIR © amount.
2019

12[HANTER  JHMESRENRE  EERENRS
o ! fEEE1E FaHEE TSR Hat

TR F4EE Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
F/Y amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT T BT T T BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
af Pass 74,473,819 753,406 . 75,227,225
ARERE Special Mention 4,333 539,201 . 543,534
R Substandard i} i} 96.089 96.089
i Doubtful . . 182,289 182,289
AR Loss - - 17,822 17,822
B Loss allowance (326,066) (18,309) (284,868) (629,243)
HRIAIE Carrying amount 74,152,086 1,274,298 11,332 75,437,716

2018

12 & A A 7EEH JEEERENS EEENSS
o \ (= Eeks1E TS TSR gt

FHEHCATE FYE Advances to customers at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
14 amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
HRTT HERETT BT HERETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gl Pass 47,273,923 718,270 - 47,992,193
R Special Mention ) 229 016 ) 229016
R Substandard - - 105,671 105,671
A Doubtful ; ; 142,578 142,578
JEE Loss - - 8,910 8,910
TRKIEE Loss allowance (139,832) (17,599) (189,268) (346,699)
HETHI(E Carrying amount 47,134,091 929,687 67,891 48,131,669
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(a) BEFERKEFHREN
ERER (&

TS 5225 Trade bills at amortised cost

=i Pass

TREZER

Loss allowance

HRIAIE Carrying amount

YR AYIE 555 Trade bills at amortised cost

=i Pass

R(EER

Loss allowance

NI {E Carrying amount

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit quality of advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

2019

12[@FMTEN  JEMEERENKSE  EERENSS
EEEE TRESHE TRIAESHE fast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,553,101 - 1,553,101
(3,926) - (3,926)
1,549,175 - 1,549,175

2018

12 {i# H (78 IHEERENSS  EERENSS
EERHE TSR TEHAETE Hast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,804,245 - 1,804,245
(1,624) - (1,624)
1,802,621 - 1,802,621
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(b) FRBEFERRERHR
BINTREFEER

YR AE SR T R oA
RIS R R K
ZIEHERSELIR
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

bills

EHIT ~ $R1T R HAth Balances and placements with
S RREI4EES S 72k central banks, banks and other

=Y
TRIEES

HRHIfE

financial institutions

Pass

Loss allowance

Carrying amount

FERAT ~ $517 S HAth Balances and placements with
S RIRER4EES S 72k central banks, banks and other

G
TRIEES

HfR{E

financial institutions

Pass

Loss allowance

Carrying amount

B. Credit quality analysis

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions. The amounts in the table
represent gross carrying amount.

2019

12@ANTEN  JEEERERNEE EERESS
EREE FHHESE THEESE #ast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
22,774,206 - - 22,774,206
(484) - - (484)
22,773,722 - - 22,773,722

2018

12 &l F I 7E IS ER(ERIAE & EERER S
EE#E THEETE THEESIR Hast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT T AMTIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
21,572,238 - - 21,572,238
(325) - - (325)
21,571,913 - - 21,571,913
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4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 288 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. EEEESH (8) B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) REEZFERRESE (b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
BINEEFEER bills (continued)

(&)

IR s ] K S E By The following tables present the credit quality of debt securities mandatorily measured
DAAFEEBRET AR and designated at FVTPL. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated
WEEEHRNERE for the issuers are reported.

o ARSI TRIR I
T AT A

SR -
2019
Aaa Aal & Aa3 A1 ZE A3 A3 T fRETAR 4t
Lower

Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

AT AT BE¥TT BT B¥Toe BETT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
SR FPE LA E R Financial assets

AIE# Y eREE mandatorily

measured at

FVTPL - - 28,999 71,488 47,663 148,150
FE BN EES(bET Financial assets
ANt 2 BRlE A designated at

FVTPL - - 158,116 39,959 172,532 370,607

- - 187,115 111,447 220,195 518,757

2018
Aaa Aal £ Aa3 A1 A3 A3 LT TSR Hast
Lower

Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT AT EWTIT BT BT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SR LA A LR Financial assets

A2 SREE mandatorily

measured at

FVTPL - - - - - -
FUE By LA B E LR Financial assets
NI 2 BRlE designated at

FVTPL - - 154,449 39,215 170,940 364,604

- - 154,449 39,215 170,940 364,604
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the Group
manages its corporate and bank lending risk and risk gradings are applied to the
counterparties with individual counterparty limits set.

At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investment in debt securities
analysed by designation of external credit assessment institution, Moody’s Investor

HRERIGENEEEER Services, or equivalent, is as follows:
ST -
2019

12@ANTEE  JHMEERENKE SERENRS
s e . o (B3, Fic THESE TREAESIE dact

FHEERCAS T 2RV Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
B BAFRES deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Aaa Aaa . . R .
Aal £ Aa3 Aa1to Aa3 113,448 - - 113,448
Al % A3 Al 1,095,282 - - 1,095,282
A3 I Lower than A3 435.465 . } 435.465
EENEY Unrated ) ) ) )
JEAEREE Loss allowance (1,798) - - (1,798)
HRMHIE Carrying amount 1,642,397 - - 1,642,397

2018

12 {8 B 197EEA JHEERENS S EERENS
S " " EEHE THIARS 1A THEARSR “aEt

PN AT 21575 Debt securities and certificate of Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
5 AT deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
T HRIET5T T AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - - - -
Aal % Aa3 Aa1ltoAa3 115,445 _ _ 115,445
Al ZE A3 A1to A3 1,132,189 - - 1,132,189
A3 DIF Lower than A3 423,601 - - 423,601
AR Unrated - - - -
TR Loss allowance (334) _ - (334)
H{E Carrying amount 1,670,901 - - 1,670,901
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. FEERMT (&)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) BEZFERRESE (b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
BINEBEECSEERR bills (continued)
€:-))
2019

. s ” . 12 (& 5 HITEHA FEERENSE FEERENKS
DIAEAE#{EE A2 Debt securities and certificate of (R L R P

W as N E Bae 27 L {72k deposits at FVOCI Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
A 12-month ECL credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
ERTT EETT BT ERTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Asa Aaa 6,947,971 . - 6,947,971
Aal £ Aa3 Aal to Aa3 9,990,944 . . 9,990,944
AT Z A3 AltoA3 20,178,046 . - 20,178,046
A3 LT Lower than A3 6,184,284 - - 6,184,284
TR Unrated 1,418,838 ; ; 1,418,838
RERIET(EL Carrying amount 44,720,083 . . 44,720,083
TR{EAE Loss allowance 26,400 - - 26,400

2018

N » . 12 {[E A 097EHA JEEERENSS EERENSES
DI ES{EET A41H Debt securities and certificate of (EeEE T TRk gzt

WL %56 27 7K deposits at FVOCI Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
o 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
HERTT HERETT BT ERTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Asa Aaa 2,630,256 ; . 2,630,256
Aal £ Aa3 Aa1to Aa3 4,691,281 ; . 4,691,281
AT E A3 Alto A3 11,041,190 ; - 11,041,190
A3 DI Lower than A3 5,910,737 - - 5,910,737
TR Unrated 2,220 634 - - 2,229,634
AETHA Carrying amount 26,503,098 - - 26,503,098
TR Loss allowance 14,428 ; B 14.428
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LIS HRENE: (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. GRURREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEERE (8
B. FEERMT (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) FREEEFERX R EHERE
SMTEERERER (&)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade
bills (continued)

2019

12 {8 A H7Es JEEHRENSLSE EERENSS
fE8EE L) i TEHASE fast

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
HAitt s E Other financial assets 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
&t Pass 312,153 - 312,153
TR Special Mention 10 . 10

Ry Substandard - - -
T Doubtful 432 432
Zs Loss 699 699
IRIEE Loss allowance (306) (735) (1,041)
I Carrying amount 311,847 10 396 312,253

2018

12 {[E 5 A97EHA JEEERENSES EERENSE S
EEEHE TEMARETE TEHgSE qEst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
HitemlEE Other financial assets 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT BT IT T AMTIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L Pass 330,583 8 - 339,501

TRERE Special Mention )
e Substandard 1,819 1,819
T Doubtful 534 534
i Loss 125 125
k(B Loss allowance (120) (1,305) (1,425)
HFRTAI{E Carrying amount 339,463 8 1,173 340,644
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TOBEENE (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. GRURREE (&)

(continued)

41 EEERE (8

B. FEERMT (&)

(b) FREEEFERX R EHERE

SMTEERERER (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to customers and trade

bills (continued)

2019

12 & F #9TEHE JEEHRENSLSE EERENSS
fE8EE L) i TEHASE fast

ERJEWERYERUK Loan commitments and financial Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
S IESGE PR ek guarantee contracts issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
et Pass 12,578,378 3,817 - 12,582,195
TR Special Mention ) 47,084 ) 47,084
R Substandard i ) ) )
I Doubiful - - 8,507 8,507
e Loss ) ) } )
il Carrying amount 12,578,378 50,901 8,597 12,637,876
B ER Loss allowance (26,802) 1) R (26,803)

2018

12 & HHI7EHA JHEERENE S EERER S
) ) ) EERE TEIAETE TEIETE Hast

BRI JEWGHAI E50K  Loan commitments and financial Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
S ESGHH IRe guarantee contracts issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L Pass 11,289,208 70,204 - 11,359,412
TEERE Special Mention i 81,660 ) 81,660
TRER Substandard ) ) ) )
ol Doubiful - - 8,507 8,507
e Loss ) ) ) )
IR Carrying amount 11,289,208 151,864 8,597 11,449,669
JEAEEE Loss allowance (8,427) (22) - (8,449)

AUIERII H 2 &30 5 H
A s B E A K ATk
fE - RIFIfEEHI SR -
TERATT B S 2 B
th— Ry IR E i R
1)735H’“§3‘ UGN copoti)r A

< JHEIHHE R 2 BCEE
m{aTJ\)\L%ﬁ?XL%D {IE!
*e*:?’ﬂ)\ﬁk%ﬂ‘é?}%?ﬂ =4

— E R A JE A
ZTtt/&% KIREH - N5 E
1

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the

borrower.
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(continued)

4. GRURREE (&)

41 EEERE (8
C. Ebg&EE

(a) FERFIEM M B EAE A
BUERTHY RS 5 B

ARgrE BRI RLA
HY B Y e e 5 LB 40
T

FEIRAT ~ S8R4T R A
TR H AR

FESRTT e HoAth < Rl AR —
Z2+Z{E A NEZE
AR

PSR TR
SRHITE LA PEZEBET A

R LI A

FRIE B LA A BET A
R LA

PLoy P E g bat AR A
[EIlseaPdiyittosia

DI er A St 2 2 5625 %

H

FEFERE GRS

HRA%T & M BRI R PASM
HYIH H #Y% = 18 R
T

HEEEEEHEE

B AT 2 BB
BATE S AT 2 BB
BN 7S S S M A S R
WH 2 G

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancement

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to assets in the consolidated

statements of financial position are as follows:

Balances with central banks, banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months

Derivative financial instruments

Investment in securities mandatorily
measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Investment in securities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Investment in debt securities at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Investment in securities at amortised
cost

Advances to customers and trade
bills

2019 2018
BT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

17,954,510 15,269,350
4,819,212 6,302,563
122,133 122,680
148,150 -
370,607 364,604
44,720,083 26,503,098
1,642,397 1,670,901
76,986,891 49,934,290
146,763,983 100,167,486

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the consolidated

statements of financial position are as follows:

Direct credit substitutes

Transaction-related contingencies

Trade-related contingencies

Commitments excluding those that
are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice
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2019 2018
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

5,147 10,005
24,771 30,801
475,735 604,858
4,645,828 3,652,073
5,151,481 4,297,737
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LIS HRENTE: (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

4. GRURREE (&)

41 EEERE (8
C. Ex&EhE (8D
(b) #FITHEN B EFERE
#

LUT R % P S8
(EE P2y - Par it %/\Jﬁ
%ﬁ’?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ Mz

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk (continued)

(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the

HKMA return of loans and advances.

BB %%ﬁ%ﬂ@iﬁiﬁfamﬁﬁ
‘AL -
2019
FEFR A FEMREr F-RE-ME
ERERER FEEZEST BESHE PERIR Z R HERER
Gross % covered by Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances to collateral or impairment impairment
customers  other security Impaired allowances allowances
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
AEEEE 2B Loans for use in Hong Kong
T pEseRisE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VEEE - Property development 2,948,523 34.74% - - 11,265
- VEEE - Property investment 2,990,725 74.68% 20 - 10,444
- /ﬁ%% - Financial concerns 3,714,601 24.46% - - 17,381
- Stockbrokers 1,023,915 7.48% - - 2123
#ttég%)iz’%f‘: - Wholesale and retail trade 6,201,435 85.16% . - 6,445
B - Manufacturing 1,510,084 13.47% - - 4,169
- A R - Transport and transport
equipment 635,218 36.93% - - 470
- (RFETES) - Recreational activities 14,440 100.00% R R 20
- R - Information technology 76,715 5.64% - - 1,076
- At - Others 4,172,343 59.13% 1 - 7,366
fEA Individuals
- M EE A RS - Loans for the purchase of
NN e flats in Home Ownership
PG A aene=a | Scheme, Private Sector
e R Participation Scheme
= and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 34,610 100.00% - - 49
- IEEHMEEYEE & - Loans for purchase of other
# residential properties 3,322,481 100.00% 3,239 - 2,557
- HAth - Others 7,803,061 97.51% 187 - 89,501
TEE A S Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 34,448,151 67.97% 3,457 - 152,866
HESlE Trade finance 1,500,565 81.32% 100,339 100,339 2,544
TERABLIMEH Z &K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 40,118,243 13.50% 192,404 184,529 188,965
A= Gross advances to customers 76,066,959 39.50% 296,200 284,868 344,375
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LIS ERENTE: (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. EREREE (8)

41 EEERE (8
C. Ex&EhE (8D

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

(b) IBITESBZEFEK
5 (8D
RS S35 Loans for use in Hong Kong

TraemsE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VSR - Property development
- VEEE - Property investment
- R - Financial concerns
- ST - Stockbrokers
- MR EEE - Wholesale and retail
trade
- BlEE - Manufacturing
- R R - Transport and transport
equipment
- PNETES) - Recreational activities
- ERRHY - Information technology
- Hith - Others
{ELA Individuals
- M EE A RS - Loans for the purchase of
NSRS flats in Home
BIRAHE EIE Qumership Scheme,
I e, rivate Sector
Ll Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme
- BEE MY - Loans for purchase of
v/ other residential
properties
- Hthr - Others
TR S5 Total loans for use in Hong
Kong
= Trade finance
AEEHELYMEH Z &K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong
A= Gross advances to

customers

2018
JEA S AT BB BB IEE
& PR wmEZAmtt TAE TR ZIREHER
Gross % covered by Stage 3 Stage 1 & 2
advances collateral impairment impairment
to customers or other security Impaired allowances allowances
AT T BT T AT T AT T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2,827,961 59.39% - - 7,351
3,386,914 99.82% 21 - 4,237
3,257,733 18.94% - - 21,878
909,296 8.64% - - 2,842
3,790,704 85.64% - - 5,432
1,056,826 24.02% - - 2,854
448,768 99.98% - - 3,246
37,260 100.00% - - 26
467,658 2.33% - - 143
4,729,181 64.46% 17,832 2,133 5,594
37,146 100.00% - - 19
2,825,257 100.00% 5 - 1,314
3,745,888 94.59% 352 329 7,401
27,520,592 69.79% 18,210 2,462 62,337
1,054,516 73.24% 80,602 80,251 1,911
19,903,260 28.32% 158,347 106,555 93,183
48,478,368 52.84% 257,159 189,268 157,431
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
C. flg&EHE (&) C. Concentration risk (continued)
(c) EHEERSEZER (c) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
ERGREER

TR E PR i
B T R AR 2 5
BT Frfet - IR R
[ERERAER - EHEEE
TR ZHE ORI AE M B
AR R - AR
RS BYEOR N ZFAEY -

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

2019
F—RE
BRESE SRR {52
B SRR AT K TRIEER BB
Stage 3 Stage1 &2
Total advances Overdue Impaired impairment impairment
to customers advances advances allowances allowances
BT AT AT BT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
i Hong Kong 44,810,458 673,783 189,376 188,526 208,876
P A, Mainland China 26,231,080 117,457 104,751 96,342 118,006
At Others 5,025,421 2,073 2,073 - 17,493
76,066,959 793,313 296,200 284,868 344,375
2018

ERSE
BEH BElEE MEEE
e ST 22 /¢ TAEZE TAEZER
Stage 3 Stage 1&2
Total advances to Overdue Impaired  impairment  impairment
customers advances advances allowances allowances
BT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
g Hong Kong 39,787,907 277,438 107,509 91,403 120,254
Hp ] P 3 Mainland China 5,273,038 51,680 147,631 97,865 19,986
FA Others 3,417,423 2,094 2,019 - 17,191
48,478,368 331,212 257,159 189,268 157,431
2019 2018
HERTIT AEETT
HK$’000 HK$ 000

TRUE B E S S G % of impaired or classified advances to total advances to customers
P EREERH A L 0.39% 0.53%

BB BT E Sy B Market value of collateral held against impaired or classified

HEHR S E advances

49,458 318,122
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
D. Al HAE{E

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

REFTHET S B
ZHFHEA YRS > A
FOEAMRBEES R - K
EEE 55 R
A G ES - DUk
PR (5 B R B & B Y Bk
e

REE TP B R EK
HIFE T s R P P
R B P B 4 R T
TE o R EAE T
TV (LWEEiEl
)~ HAPsE - HAth s
SIRfREE - HEF
AR~ RS G R
& o BrFPA AER A
i R S R EUEERYIR
FRELAh - FESRTT R H At
B Rl Y 45 7 R AT
Ko DU SRIT B s B
R 7 A

FEW BB BRI B
W AR i AL
FEFF B fE RN B A HH
A REU A i - 3%
TR S A AR
=L T HMERE 5
R (HFRE 26) o fisifeU
Eb= V=S5 e P =g
EEVRE R e Iy > )
G AR S E
HRNBAERFFERIERNE
FEHT KSR 1] {5 K
A

The Group has established guidelines on the acceptability of various classes of
collateral and determined the corresponding valuation parameters. The guidelines
and collateral valuation parameters are subject to regular reviews to ensure their
effectiveness over credit risk management.

The extent of collateral coverage over the Group’s loans and advances to customer
depends on the type of customers and the product offered. Types of collateral include
residential properties (in the form of mortgages over property), other properties, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits, standby letters of credit and
guarantees. Collateral generally is not held over balances and placements with
banks and other financial institutions, and loans and advances to banks, except when
securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.

The Group takes possession of collateral through court proceedings or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers during the course of the recovery of impaired
loans and advances. These repossessed assets are reported in the statement of
financial position within “other assets” (Note 26). If the recovery from the
repossessed assets exceeds the corresponding exposure, the surplus fund is made
available either to repay the borrower’s other secured loans with lower priority or is
returned to the borrower.
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4. sRERER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
D. #iEAIEALEE (G

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

R TR SRR #K
R EEAIE L 2
BB TARZMERE -
PREA—& T emEE
AR 2 Al 2 B
BT HES - S
75~ IR R HAER AT S
B RS SRRy -
2RI - (BB T RE RS
SR T BRI R A
R TR EYATE
R -

ISDA My E&4 BALE
R B 3T A2 58 2 SRR
BhEY  EhmEs
KINEZE - MAEEEIIES
2N REMEEHET—
FFNNIGINEE 5058 5 T
& h— RN
G A4 HLATH S T B 4%
IR A EEIEE
SHE LRGBS
HENATA KRBT
5 o REEINGEERT
ISDA 1y F & 4919 [H
B BR S TR
SUEO R T AR i
EVSHESY ] S
DIps AR HE BRAE AR B E

DT EIPRAE TS B
ST -

SR BN E B AT SR
TFHOHEY A HE (IR
33) WAGEEEE FHY
EEHERALE  Alg
FHE RO HEEEE
B o AL A R
HEAGERRHG R
DR ELA - PR T A
PRAFEUHEIRYE » A4
B & 15 5 = U0 R P
fEftE TR AR
HEFTHEAT -

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is
determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other
eligible bills are generally unsecured with the exception of asset-based securities and
similar instruments, which are secured by pools of financial assets. However the
credit risk may be implicit in the terms or reflected in the fair value of the
corresponding instruments.

The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivatives activity is the ISDA
Master Agreement which covers the contractual framework within which dealing
activity across a full range of over-the-counter products is conducted and
contractually binds both parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding
transactions covered by an agreement, if either party defaults or following other
pre-agreed termination events. It is also common for the Group to execute a Credit
Support Annex in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement with the counterparty
under which collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the market
contingent counterparty risk inherent in the outstanding position.

For contingent liabilities and commitments that are unconditionally cancellable (Note
33), the Group will assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line when there is a
concern over the credit quality of the customers. Accordingly, the exposure to
significant credit risk is considered as minimal. For commitments that are not
unconditionally cancellable, the Group assesses the necessity of collateral
depending on the type of customer and the product offered.
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4. &EiEfEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 88 (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. TS S ELMINEE E. Amounts arising from ECL

STERERBNSE Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
&
SERTEE 2.14 1yErstig See accounting policy in Note 2.14.
&
S8R Significant increase in credit risk
EHE—IEEm T B When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
EFAE R o e B significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
g » REEEEEH information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
FEM N ASEEE &% both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
ERNSORY =l € it historical experience and expert credit assessment.
A8 2 AR NS T S

Y - i EiEE B EE
BRI > B
B g o BRI L SR Y

EEFHE -

A Y B B2 i s bh The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit

FHEE GEERGRET risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

AR

- EEES HAVRER T - the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
B Y & R

(PD)s &

« fERIAHERL E RIS + the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of
ST I BB T initial recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in
EHE PD (FETE{ER prepayment expectations).

TR TG 1 AH B
#)o
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRREINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)

fEE R A Credit risk grades

REEEFEL Y E L R b TH The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data
85 18 R N R &% B A that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced

g7 R AR IE
Ao ESA R B (5 B
bk - (SRS
e AR E LR E
PERE BNZEARES ©
B LN ZHUA Y R i
CIHY R RIS YA
Y o

W EE R ERAE
FTARAE » (HENFEAE
JeR\ i (5 TR B Y 2%
b 28 E - Bl
W EERERFH 12
RIS E b 22 5N
PEEREBRES 2 13
Z IR R A -

B ER AR EE
JEUR AR R R
HEERIER - 21kl
AR bR
A REEERRES
G- BIEEE S RLIT
BAEHIEER] -

credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative
factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the
nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring
increases exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller than the difference
between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition based on
available information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing
monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk
grade. The monitoring typically involves use of the following data.
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4. CREBEE (8)

LREI M () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D

E. TEHAERRREINAR
(&)
EERES (F)
3R

Corporate exposures

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Credit risk grades (continued)

ZBEHT

Retail exposures

i

All exposures

- EHERE PAMREHEGAIEE o R
Falwmdr  EHEE - HESEE - F
BIBHERYEIT-U0 : BFER ~ AEBATAT S
FUBEER - BRI - BHEHE
B EEEEEE

+ Information obtained during periodic

review of customer files - e.g. audited
financial statements, management
budgets and projections.
Examples of areas of particular focus
are: gross profit margins, financial
leverage ratios, debt service coverage,
compliance with covenants, quality of
management, senior management
changes

- [EESEREIELE - RS - SN
(EERHRAE L
- Data from credit reference agencies,

press articles, changes in external
credit ratings

* fE RO FERY (E 27 (5 52 &Y i 4
(CDS) f&ig (WA )

+ Quoted bond and credit default swap
(CDS) prices for the borrower where
available

. %#k)\ﬁﬁ E’JB(/

accounts,

Eﬁ”%ﬂ&ffﬁaﬁiﬁ

« Actual and expected significant
changes in the political, regulatory and
technological environment of the

borrower or in its business activities

« External

© NEERRYE S 1T RBdE

« Internally collected data on customer

behaviour — e.g. utilisation of credit card
facilities

« I RIEMEEITE

+ Affordability metrics

- (EESHEHERINT RS - BRETER A

fEEnTs

data from credit reference
agencies, including industry-standard

credit scores
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+ Payment record - this

+ Requests for

© (PREKECER - EREEILIRAE DR — %

FIARA S AEE R 2R

includes
overdue status as well as a range of
variables about payment ratios

© R TIREAIEE]

« Utilisation of the granted limit

o JIESREGRRAY A ROHE AR

and granting of
forbearance

© EHS WIEBSTIEEIRL B A FIAR K

THMIERE

- Existing and forecast changes in

business, financial and economic
conditions
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRREINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)

BRI EEBE Generating the term structure of PD

&

(S &R FE o R E F Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of
i = FE HAIR 45 Ry £ 22 PD for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information about its

WA o AEEREEA
BRI AT -
FOERA YR DL RS
JHE e 5 R U R 45 P L
b R BRI NI R LI(E
B B s - B
(EFHTRES MY (E B R TR b
HBEER -

AEEE RS A
WRRV R E T R Y
My > AR b R R
A PR R T SR E LY
TEREE - UK FHHASS
FE e R R HE RS T
EELERYEAL -

o3 M B AR AR R A
BB AR
KOER R L FHIRYRA
o DRI HA A
7 (PR EEs) B
BB BRIy
DI SV APNE 2 2
B2 FEAEBLS
RS © AR AL
HaEIg & - AERIERT
FRIER  BINFEEITE
T/t ) 585 - 0 H
A RE & R EI AR it
FE{ER -

REEGIE “EAE
H7ON RS TS
A DU HAEAT ~ A
R M R A TR 5 22
CRT SRR S A RTHE
MERHER) - A&
A ER[H (5 72 LE TEMI S
o E R LR A

o

up

im

credit risk exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of product and
borrower as well as by credit risk grading. For some portfolios, information purchased
from external credit reference agencies is also used.

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate
estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to
change as a result of the passage of time.

This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between
changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors as well as
in-depth analysis of the impact of certain other factors (e.g. forbearance experience)
on the risk of default. For most exposures, key macro-economic indicators include:
GDP growth, benchmark interest rates and unemployment. For exposures to specific
industries and/or regions, the analysis may extend to relevant real estate prices.

The Group formulates a “base case” view of the future direction of relevant economic
variables as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios (see
discussion below on incorporation of forward-looking information). The Group then
uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of PDs.
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4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRREINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by
portfolio and include quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, including a
backstop based on delinquency.

The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since
initial recognition if, based on the Group’s quantitative modelling, the remaining
lifetime PD is determined to have increased by more than a predetermined range.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience,
the Group may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in
credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of
such and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis
on a timely basis.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs
when an asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by
counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which
full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without considering
any grace period that might be available to the borrower.
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4. &EiEfEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. THHAE SR INER E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
FECEREETREE Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly (continued)
wm (8D
AR B A E BHE R The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant
AR R (= & s B b increases in credit risk by regular reviews to confirm that:

IAVERERY AR - A

=
(S

o B R HIRESAT B L - the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an
IR EL AT RIE exposure is in default;
SRR

- EEEHE 30 Ky - the criteria align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;
AR B2 AR Y and
HEBE R —2 5 R

< 12 (il 5 Y E LR - there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between
(55 1 P&ES) FI{F4E 12-month PD (stage 1) and lifetime PD (stage 2).

SRR (55
2 PRy AR

FAEHRH) -
KR SREE Modified financial assets
e/ GO ETEN SR The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including
EREZEVESlik 2 Ehr e changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a
BFENSIRAEEE > & current or potential credit deterioration of the customer.

JF IR DU B3 = B i
STEAE (B BRI B A
AR LA -

A AN REE When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result
R R e IR in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased
P R EEENEE significantly reflects comparison of:

JE\Bg A A B B T AR

BT 5 e

o HAFE HEWNEN - its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with
TRRK TR A TR B S
HYELIRER 5 K

- IRBVIAAHER AT EL - the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the
BRRG S ER S original contractual terms.
BRI FEUINE
LR -
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4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8D
E. FHAERRRMIE (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Modified financial assets (continued)

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as
forbearance activities) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of
default. Under the Group’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a
selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk
of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay
under the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet
the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of
interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and
corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy.

For financial assets modified as part of the Group’s forbearance policy, the estimate
of PD reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the Group’s ability
to collect interest and principal and the Group’s previous experience of similar
forbearance action. As part of this process, the Group evaluates the borrower’s
payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various
behavioural indicators.

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit
risk and an expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is
credit-impaired / in default. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good
payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer
considered to be credit-impaired / in default or the PD is considered to have
decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Definition of default
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
Group. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has
breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit smaller than the current
amount outstanding.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group considers indicators that are:

- qualitative — e.g. breaches of covenant;

+ quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the
same issuer to the Group; and

+ based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their
significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Group for regulatory
capital purposes.
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4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRREINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of
whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and its measurement of ECL. The Group formulates a ‘base case’ view of
the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two or more
additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each
outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the countries where the Group
operates, supranational organisations such as the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD) and the International Monetary Fund, and
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The “base case” represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information
used by the Group for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The
other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.
Periodically, the Group carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate
its determination of these other representative scenarios.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit
losses.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

The economic scenarios included the forecast of the following key indicators.

2019

2018

TR A EREE R
TR A AR A E I R

Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate

China Real GDP Growth Rate

-1.3% to 2.6%

5.1% to 5.7%

1.7% to 3.0%

6.0% t0 6.7%

3.75% to 3.9%

o [ef] g 2R China Unemployment Rate 3.6%

FREMEHE - FEE B
TREEYEMEEE
B NIHE

SRS
ST S OB
st AL TR -
<R ;
BUHRRE | R
TR -

pEEe ) e NE I
PSRy ST B R A
JE LSS - R
S0 YR S AT AT
WEMEEE -

BBRZN R E H I
HIfESAE - HER St
SR EIETE > A
HHEE I G E TR
Wi YR AR TR HETT
Sl - IE LRI A
NI L EDE 6 E )
RERBMNEMERE - /£
AHEERT - TS
A AT D RIS
ER G ETHELM
R IR G H TR
b 5 BEAE RT3 2 F
B - QSR EERE

fb - BLIRPREARIEE
PR A ST H A
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HKMA Hong Kong Loans & Advances
Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index

Hong Kong Private Consumption

3.0% to 5.9% 0.1% to 10.9%

-0.9% to 5.5% -11.9% t0 9.0%

-1.8% to 3.0% 2.8% 10 7.3%

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following
variables:
- probability of default (PD);

+ loss given default (LGD); and
- exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models
and other historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as
described above.

PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical
rating models, and assessed using rating tools tailored to the various categories of
counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on internally
compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is
available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for large corporate
counterparties. If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, then
this will lead to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. PDs are estimated
considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the
claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the
financial asset. For loans secured by retail property, LTV ratios are a key parameter in
determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibrated for different economic scenarios
and, for real estate lending, to reflect possible changes in property prices.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For lending commitments and financial
guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well as potential future amounts
that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is
determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in
time using scenario and statistical techniques.
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4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TEHAERRREINAR

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for financial
assets for which credit risk has not significantly increased, the Group measures ECL
considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any
borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for risk
management purposes, the Group considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which the Group has the right to require
repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for retail overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment
component, the Group measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Group’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel
the undrawn commitment does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment
structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Group can cancel them with
immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day
management, but only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at
the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk
management actions that the Group expects to take and that serve to mitigate ECL.
These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning the
outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms.

105



4 A 2K

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SREREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. THHAE SR INER E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
S ERERESEES (8) Measurement of ECL (continued)
EEEERN S TS Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial
BERYELTE FAETT 0 Rl instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

THARE— s3] JE
W ECE TR S 3

FIHE
- Rl T R - instrument type;
- (EEE R - credit risk grading;
o SERHRSLTER - collateral type;
o BEHHSHIVERK + LTV ratio for retail mortgages;
fEELL
- WIARERH - date of initial recognition;
- FEREHEAH - remaining term to maturity;
cATE R + industry; and
o fEERAAHER AL o - geographic location of the borrower.
Tt R 2 4H A1 P A R The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a
B L1 (R 28 & 1 [R5 particular group remain appropriately homogeneous.
P > QIS HET T E
=i -
BN EE E SRR For portfolios in respect of which the Group has limited historical data, external
PREVIEEHE - FMNBREE benchmark information is used to supplement the internally available data.
Ry v SV RIS
-
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Advances to customers

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired
New financial assets originated

Loss allowance reconciliation

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of
the impairment allowance by class of financial instrument. The reconciliation is
prepared by comparing the position of impairment allowance between 1 January and

31 December at transaction level.

Financial assets that have been

derecognised
Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other movements

Net remeasurement of loss allowance

Balance at 31 December

Advances to customers

Balance at 1 January

Transfer to 12-month ECL

Transfer to lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired
New financial assets originated

Financial assets that have been

derecognised
Write-offs

Changes in models

Foreign exchange and other movements
Net remeasurement of loss allowance

2019

12 {@ HHYTERA JHEERIERY EEREN

ESHSE  RETREE  RSREE st
Lifetime ECL

not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
139,832 17,599 189,268 346,699
191 (191) - -
(9,722) 9,722 - -
(291) (11,506) 11,797 -
208,291 149 - 208,440
(41,630) (377) (69,260) (111,267)
- - (27,019) (27,019)
Unwind of discount of loans impairment loss - - 3,414 3,414
400 (110) (4,403) (4,113)
28,995 3,023 181,071 213,089
326,066 18,309 284,868 629,243

2018

12 {8 B B97EEA JEE ERIERY EERER

EEEE  SOTEEE  GEEER gzt
Lifetime ECL

not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
147,159 8,049 70,424 225,632
1,166 (1,166) - -
(4,683) 4,683 - -
(300) (513) 813 -
80,297 3,528 - 83,825
(36,315) (4,545) (514) (41,374)
- - (24,926) (24,926)
Unwind of discount of loans impairment loss - - 2,071 2,071
(169) (571) (2,143) (2,883)
(47,323) 8,134 143,543 104,354
139,832 17,599 189,268 346,699

Balance at 31 December
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

4.1 EEEE (8D

E. TEHAERRREINAR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)
BEEEHR (8) Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2019
12@FNTEE HEERENGKS FEERENSS
EEHE TRESHE TRIAESHE 4t
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
=7k Trade bills 12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
W1TH1H Balance at 1 January 1,624 - - 1,624
HZE 12 {[E 5 TE S E51E Transfer to 12-month ECL - - - -
S S SRR A4 S TERESHE  Transfer to lifeime ECL not
credit-impaired - - . .
T (SEREASTEREHE  Transfer to lifeime ECL
credit-impaired - - - -
HE AR New financial assets originated 3,733 . . 3,733
A% ERE T eRiEE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (1,624) - - (1,624)
] Write-offs - - - -
i) Changes in models . . ) )
YN R A S, Foreign exchange and other
movements (58) - - (58)
EAEFE TR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 251 - - 251
w12 H31H Balance at 31 December 3,926 - - 3,926
2018
12 EAFER  IEEERENSS EERENAS
EEEHR TEIAETE THIFETE Hat
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
=t Trade bills 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 121 - - 121
e 12 (HHITHHSE SR Transfer to 12-month ECL - _ _ _
HRIREEENE S THIIEHE Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - - _
EE(EERENRESTEEHE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - - - _
BRI New financial assets originated 4,136 - - 4,136
T4 FRE I e RiETE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (121) - - (121)
o] Write-offs _ _ _ _
TS Changes in models ; 3 ) )
o N R A Foreign exchange and other
movements (152) - - (152)
SRR TR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (2,360) - - (2,360)
12 531 H Balance at 31 December 1,624 - - 1,624
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D

E. TEHAERRREINAR
(&)
AR (G

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)

2019
12{EBNTER FHMEERENES SERENSS
EEEHE L) i izt il st
DIBEER AT IR 2 (57556 77 . Debt securities and Certificate Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
TEikad of deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
w1TH1H Balance at 1 January 334 - - 334
12 ([HHAVTEIRS &S Transfer to 12-month ECL . . . R
I HEEREAVE S TERAESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - N .
EEREERENRCETEIEE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - - N .
T AR New financial assets originated M . . 41
B4 FHEeRiE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (16) - - (16)
s Write-offs . - . -
titbo)] Changes in models . . } )
NS Ky At sE ) Foreign exchange and other
movements (13) - - (13)
AR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 1,452 - - 1,452
»12 H31H Balance at 31 December 1,798 - - 1,798
2018
12 AMFER  FREERENAS EEREN S
EEER TEIAETE THEARSR Hat
DABEER AT iR 2 755827 I Debt securities and Certificate Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
Fess of deposits at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
bt AT IT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
w1H1H Balance at 1 January - - - -
HZE 12 (& 5 NTEH S Sk51E Transfer to 12-month ECL _ - _ _
I HEEREAVE S TERARSE Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - - _
B (EERERSSTEETR  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - R _ _
B A BRERE New financial assets originated 572 ; R 572
B4 ERETRiEE Financial assets that have been
derecognised - - - -
Hsi Write-offs - R _ _
FETRUSETS Changes in models _ _ _ _
SNEHEL R HAtr e Foreign exchange and other
movements (1) - - (1)
TREREHE T Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (237) - - (237)
w12 H31H Balance at 31 December 334 - - 334
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. THHAE SR INER E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
BEEEHR (8) Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2019
12@ENTEE HMEERENGS FEERENSS
S50 TG TR st
PLAEEZBET AEA 22Uz Debt securities and Certificate Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
i Z (EI R 5 R APAGEE of deposits at FVOCI 12-month ECL credit-impaired _credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
w1H1H Balance at 1 January 14,428 - - 14,428
12 ([HHAVTEIRS &R Transfer to 12-month ECL . . . R
I HEEREAVE S TERAESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - - -
R EERENRESTERAESE  Transfer to lifeime ECL
credit-impaired - - N .
AR RIEE New financial assets originated 9,344 - . 9,344
AR e REE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (4,986) - - (4,986)
5] Write-offs - - - -
titbo)] Changes in models . . } )
o N Ry Atz Foreign exchange and other
movements (144) - - (144)
B TR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 7,758 - - 7,758
»12 H31H Balance at 31 December 26,400 - - 26,400
2018
12 ([HHAFER JMERRENSE EEEEEES
EEER TEIAETE THIFETE Hat
DA EEZ b AHA UL Debt securities and Certificate Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
1 (B EE5 MAFRGE of deposits at FVOCI 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 18,829 - - 18,829
2 12 (E HATER S S5 Transfer to 12-month ECL _ . _ _
HRIHEEEIE S THIIEHS Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - - -
R (SEREIPA S TERESTE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - R _ _
i AR New financial assets originated 8,766 - - 8,766
EA T ERIETRE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (3,576) - - (3,576)
R Write-offs _ } B B
k=) Changes in models B ) B )
SNEEEL R HAtr ) Foreign exchange and other
movements 38 - - 38
BEEFE TR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (9,629) - - (9,629)
12 531 H Balance at 31 December 14,428 - - 14,428
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. THHAE SR INER E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
BEEEHR (8) Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2019
. . B 12@ENTEE HMEERENGS FEERENSS
FRCIAT ~ $R1T R A 4:Fit% Balances and placements with EEER TS TR Gt
TISSER A7k central banks, banks and other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
financial institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
w1TH1H Balance at 1 January 325 - - 325
12 ([HHAVTEIRS &S Transfer to 12-month ECL . . . R
I HEEREAVE S TERAESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - - -
R EERENRESTERAESE  Transfer to lifeime ECL
credit-impaired - - N .
HTE AR R New financial assets originated 485 - - 485
AR e REE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (318) - - (318)
Esi] Write-offs - - - -
titbo)] Changes in models . . } )
NS R H A Foreign exchange and other
movements - - - -
B TR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (8) - - (8)
»12 H31H Balance at 31 December 484 - - 484
2018
. . B 12 ([HHAFER  JEMERRENSE EREEESES
ERT ~ $R1T R HAth &Fif% Balances and placements with (EEEsa ARSI TS P
TEEEER M ATRK central banks, banks and other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
financial institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W1A1TH Balance at 1 January 323 ) } 323
2 12 ([HHITEESE%#E Transfer to 12-month ECL R . _ _
HRIHEEEIE S THIIEHS Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - - -
R (SEREIPA S TERESTE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - - - -
HTE AR New financial assets originated 640 . B 640
EA T ERIETRE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (323) - - (323)
FEBH Write-offs _ ) ; )
k=) Changes in models B ) B )
SNEHEL R HAtr e Foreign exchange and other
movements (19) - - (19)
BEEFE TR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (296) - - (296)
W12 31 H Balance at 31 December 325 - _ 325
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. TEHAERRREINAR

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)
FREREFERE () Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2019
12{EBNTER FHMEERENES SERENSS
EEEHE L) i izt il st
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
HAithgmhEE Other financial assets 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 120 - 1,305 1,425
12 ([HHAVTEIRS &S Transfer to 12-month ECL . . . R
I HEEREAVE S TERAESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - N .
EEREERENRCETEIEE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - - N .
B A BRERE New financial assets originated . - 175 175
AR e REE Financial assets that have been
derecognised - - - -
S5 Write-offs . . (960) (960)
titbo)] Changes in models . . ) )
NS Ky At sE ) Foreign exchange and other
movements (12) - 9) (21)
AR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 198 - 224 422
»12 H31H Balance at 31 December 306 - 735 1,041
2018
12 EAMTER  FHMEERENSS EEREN S
EEEHR THIARS 1A THEARSR HEEt
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
Hfth SR E Other financial assets 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
bt AT IT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W1A1H Balance at 1 January 631 - - 631
HZE 12 (& 5 iNTE S S5E Transfer to 12-month ECL _ - _ _
I HEEREAVE S TERARSE Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired - - - _
B (EERERSSTEETR  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired (6) - 6 -
BRI New financial assets originated 16 - - 16
EA T ERIETRE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (10) - - (10)
o] Write-offs _ _ _ _
k=) Changes in models B ) B )
o N R H A Foreign exchange and other
movements 2) - (1) (3)
TREREHE T Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (509) - 1,300 791
w12 H31H Balance at 31 December 120 - 1,305 1,425
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Lr &SI (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREBEE (8)

4.1 EEEE (8D

E. TEHAERRREINAR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)
FREREFERE () Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2019
! 12@ENTEE HMEERENGS FEERENSS
UK K EUBE PRk Loan commitments and EEER TS TR Gt
financial guarantee contracts Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
w1TH1H Balance at 1 January 8,427 22 - 8,449
12 ([HHAVTEIRS &S Transfer to 12-month ECL . . . R
I HEEREAVE S TERAESE  Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired (1) 1 - -
EEREERENRCETEIEE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - - - -
i AR New financial assets originated 14,049 - . 14,049
AR e REE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (1,551) (22) - (1,573)
5] Write-offs - - - -
titbo)] Changes in models . . } )
NS Ky At sE ) Foreign exchange and other
movements (21) 1 - (20)
AR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance 5,899 (1) - 5,898
W12 31 H Balance at 31 December 26,802 1 - 26,803
2018
12 ([HHAFER  JEMERRENSE EREEESES
UHURGHE R Loan commitments and e TSR TR gt
financial guarantee contracts Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 15,305 - - 15,305
iHZE 12 (& 2 iNTE S Ek5E Transfer to 12-month ECL _ - _ _
I HEEREAVE S TERARSE Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired (1) 1 - -
B (EERERSSTEETR  Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired - - - -
i AR New financial assets originated 5,248 - - 5,248
EA T ERIETRE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (9,807) - - (9,807)
Hsi Write-offs - - - -
k=) Changes in models B ) B )
SN RS R, HAthsE e, Foreign exchange and other
movements (110) (1) - (111)
TREREHE T Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (2,208) 22 - (2,186)
12 531 H Balance at 31 December 8,427 22 - 8,449
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity
price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing
market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group's business, according to the
Group's overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. FMD is mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the
market risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the Group,
and ensuring that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable
levels.

The Bank sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RC, Asset and Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) and the General Manager of FMD respectively. Business units are required
to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and limits.

114



4 A 2K

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

SEBERRIE (8)

4. CREREE (8)

4.2 miGEE (8

A RaE

ASRITHR A e (B B — A
TS5 R - S B e e B
ZEONSEEHERS A
FEERAS A ERESE
AR R SRS - LUB
EMFERELTSEE S
I 53R 99% EEAKPT R
1 RFFA I 42 e e
B » 0735 e A SR B e e (L
fRas -

T REFFAIRT — T 5
BRarERRE

SHTTER Y B
R B
FlsR R R

5

1 ELFE S M AL A i L1 Y
JEp{E -

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

The Bank uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with
a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure’ of the

Note:

1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.

115

Bank.

7 24 24 24
Fr 12A3E  BEKE SEEE  PYRE

Minimum Maximum
At 31 for for Average for
Year December the year the year the year
BT BT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
VAR for all market risk 2019 793 73 798 426
2018 705 54 716 270
VAR for foreign exchange risk 2019 793 73 798 426
2018 704 54 716 270
VAR for interest rate risk 2019 - - 1 -
2018 1 - 1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

A. VAR (continued)

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events
may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
extreme in nature;

the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Bank recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.
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4. GRURREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 migEk (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

B. SMNERE

B. Currency risk
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The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly the
HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to
serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between
assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX
swaps) are wusually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.

The Group had the following net structural positions which were not less than 10% of
the total net structural foreign currency position at the end of the reporting period:

2019

AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
Fou ARW MR
Total
us foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies

Net structural position 1,933,901 1,691,215 3,625,116

2018
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
FTt ARM SN
Total

us foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies

Net structural position 1,944,791 1,079,684 3,024,475
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 R (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
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C. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural
positions are:

- gap risk: gap risk is the risk arising from the changes in the interest rates
on instruments of different maturities. The extent of gap risk depends on
whether changes to the term structure of interest rates occur consistently
across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel
risk);

- basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the
yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period; and

- option risk: option risk arises from interest rate option derivatives or from
optional elements embedded in an authorised institution’s assets,
liabilities and/or off-balance sheet instruments, where the authorised
institutions or its customer can alter the level and timing of their cash
flows. Option risk can be further characterised into automatic option risk
and behavioural option risk.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
management. The ALCO exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in
accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
approved by the Board. FMD is responsible for interest rate risk
management. With the cooperation of Financial Markets Department, FMD
assists the ALCO to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its
roles include, but are not limited to, the formulation of management policies,
selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment
of target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and limits,
and submission of interest rate risk management reports to the senior
management and the RC, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 R (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. FlZmpx (&)

AL HEE ﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁm?a#ﬁ&ﬁ'
#o R ~ 51~ BHIRHZER
HER M - R EEAIIREE
FEEATRERTHEERL - FZRAAE
[z ~ HFEIE (PVBP) ~ 541 2
HBIEEFR(NN) ~ &OB EEE LR
(EV)FE - LR ERAIREEH
TRk - R B ek oy ol e
EHZRY HEAREHERE
S T I AR B A o IR
R e Y 25 S % AL AR I 3R
JRE i 5 A5 PR s [ 1 B e A fol 52
% o AGEEHE SRR 2 L 2T
SETSAT - AR AL e BT R R
2R EFERT Al H B EAY 2=
b ME I TV R bR B R
B R - WHER BRI P s
HHUTHIR RS E R H
R ERRERZ S G

FF JE R R (NI AT 7 (A
)EZE)J EL#(EV) R B A e S ) 1 42

I 3 1) S AR A AR B Y 52
2 BAEEEHRNRERAYES
JE AR - A T B SR E R
HYF A S WA B (& A TR S
FISWARIELSER § (R H A8
{EHSRATECR (E{E (RIS
?ﬁ R - ARRFRINSEBTEN

BERAFHE) R B GRT A
FEREAVLEE - FUREHZE G Ny
TR E MR - F A
PR A SR TR -

AERIE BRI E S0 T A BA T M
T3 SHEAR RIS T SR THR AT AE
HREZAHER R - B ST RIEET]
HEE R R W E TR E P
PRI Fetadn % P iR FIE R IRTT
TR AFILOR B EAT 2 -

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits
include, but are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, price value of a
basis point (PVBP), net interest income sensitivity ratio (NIl), economic value
sensitivity ratio (EV), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into different
levels, which are approved by the RC, ALCO and the General Manager of
FMD accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct their
business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before launching
a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on
interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted
to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a
percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
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Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances to customers and
trade bills

Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily

measured at FVTPL

— securities designated at
FVTPL

— securities at FVOCI

— securities at amortised
cost
Investment properties
Properties, plant and
equipment
Other assets (including
deferred tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2019
—Z =z
—fER R =EA +=@EA —ZEEF AHHEMUE TR 45t
Non-
Upto1 1to 3 3to12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
AETr BT B¥TT BETIT B¥TIT B%TIT BETI
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
13,924,513 - - - - 4,311,475 18,235,988
- 3,506,091 1,313,121 - - - 4,819,212
- - - - - 122,133 122,133
53,135,176 9,958,833 12,747,625 1,118,133 27,124 - 76,986,891
12,536 55,340 20,549 53,407 6,318 - 148,150
- - - 214,401 156,206 - 370,607
4,753,137 7,967,402 9,618,909 22,380,635 - 27,183 44,747,266
- 705,422 93,230 843,745 - - 1,642,397
- - - - - 237,150 237,150
- - - - - 2,021,072 2,021,072
21,917 - - - - 501,998 523,915
71,847,279 22,193,088 23,793,434 24,610,321 189,648 7,221,011 149,854,781
(7,543,112) (1,559,588) (6,348,801) - - (2,295,962) (17,747,463)
- - - - - (40,361) (40,361)
(44,942,074) (31,812,183) (34,016,778) (1,849,932) - (3,670,467) (116,291,434)
(315,413) (11,162) (50,251) (153,885) (17,106) (1,104,717)  (1,652,534)
(52,800,599) (33,382,933) (40,415,830) (2,003,817)  (17,106) (7,111,507) (135,731,792)
19,046,680 (11,189,845) (16,622,396) 22,606,504 172,542 109,504 14,122,989
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months
Derivative financial
instruments
Advances to customers and
trade bills
Investment in securities
— securities mandatorily
measured at FVTPL
— securities designated at
FVTPL

— securities at FVOCI

— securities at amortised
cost
Investment properties
Properties, plant and
equipment
Other assets (including
deferred tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2018 (restated)

S it
Upto 1 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 intglrzr;;
month months months years years bearing Total
AT B¥TOT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
14,408,002 - - - - 1,038,010 15,446,012
- 4,784,315 1,518,248 - - - 6,302,563
- - - - - 122,680 122,680
41,981,083 6,591,112 1,318,363 43,679 53 - 49,934,290
- - - 210,135 154,469 - 364,604
2,431,499 3,244,648 6,269,661 14,557,290 - 88,903 26,592,001
- 710,521 151,698 808,682 - - 1,670,901
- - - - - 233,350 233,350
- - - - - 1,738,569 1,738,569
- - - - - 467,657 467,657
58,820,584 15,330,596 9,257,970 15,619,786 154,522 3,689,169 102,872,627
(7,460,496) (22,655) (2,255,961) (1,750,994) - (443,164) (11,933,270)
N B . - - (43,268) (43,268)
(34,386,316) (13,358,293) (27,277,475)  (840,862) - (2,466,569) (78,329,515)
(186,547) - - - - (776,831)  (963,378)
(42,033,359) (13,380,948) (29,533,436) (2,591,856) - (3,729,832) (91,269,431)
16,787,225 1,949,648 (20,275,466) 13,027,930 154,522 (40,663) 11,603,196
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 migEkE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

D. A&EETISERRIEZ SURE

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group
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The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2019, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel
upward/downward shift of the yield curve in relevant currency with other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$28,100,000 (2018: HK$98,000,000) higher/lower. The impact on reserves
would be insignificant. The sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration
only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the interest rate exposure for major currencies in banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

12 § 31 HE&
Impact on positions
at 31 December

2019 2018
EFEE Earnings perspective BT BT
HeER Scenarios HK$’000 HK$'000
AT Up/(down) 100 basis points parallel shift in
ST RS (F1%)100 HLEL HK dollar yield curves 173,500/(173,500)  184,000/(184,000)
FEITE AR Up/(down) 100 basis points parallel shift in
AT ERE S (T#£)100 FRBG US dollar yield curves (51,000)/51,000 (68,500)/68,500
NERWEZE S Hh4R Up/(down) 100 basis points parallel shift in
AT RS (F1%)100 HLEL Renminbi yield curves (94,400)/94,400 (17,500)/17,500
e B N S8 L AR R B The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several

b’ EERE (ERRR) T3
TR QAR H B 5 LI AR R

assumptions, including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest

L~ FIERPATIEE) ~ Rt By
B 2 f e 7] RE B LAY 4 75
Pt Tl ~ P& ST A R
FrAEF st 2EIMH ik B
BEITEAEENETIEHA
ARIGIHFIMIH 2 R E
Ml e bal K A A
EEEG AR R Ry — o7 -

rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge accounting, all positions being
assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of products in which
actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.
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4.3 Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to
act as the lender of last resort.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on
the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Deposits from customers are the Group’s primary source of
funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the
Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different
term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed
scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets
which provides adequate funds in support of normal business needs and
ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims
in case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the use of funds
and sources and tenors of funding to avoid excessive concentration of
assets and liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of
funding strand when problem occurred in one concentrated funding source.
The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline
to manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group,
and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such
as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other complex structured
products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy to
cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from
other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan. Where
necessary, in order to mitigate liquidity risk, the Group could take different
mitigation actions which include, but are not limited to sales of bonds in the
secondary market, funding from interbank market or repo in the money
market, attracting new deposits and keeping the core deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by the Board. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Markets Department to assist the
ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratio
(LCR), net stable funding ratio (NSFR), loan-to-deposit ratio, maximum
cumulative cash outflow (MCO) and liquidity cushion. The Group applies
cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at
least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various
severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information systems such
as Assets and Liabilities Management System and Basel Liquidity Ratio
Management System are developed to provide data and the preparation for
regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the
HKMA, the Group has implemented behaviour model and assumptions of
cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis
under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under
normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-balance
sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future
cash flow based on contractual maturity date and the assumptions of
customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes
MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum cumulative net
cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow
gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31
December 2019, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of
outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day
cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$8,400,908,000
(2018: HK$6,579,324,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined
crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retail,
wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and
trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31
December 2019, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under the
three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to
maintain a liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality
marketable securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public
sector entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate with a corresponding
external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even under
stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2019, the liquidity cushion (before
haircut) was HK$ 24,625,303,000 (2018: HK$12,041,088,000). A contingency
plan is being established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on
stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis.
During the year of 2019, the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than
100%.

The NSFR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules
effective from 1 January 2018, the Group, being classified as category 1
authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate NSFR on
consolidated basis. The Group is required to maintain a NSFR not less than
100%.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturity analysis

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting

BEHYEIHH 34 date to the contractual maturity date.
N EEHE EE
K B FEAEFE G LRI
H eI FAMR 73 45
2019
—z =z REEE
B —EAR =R +=@EA —Er&F AEME HE# 4Est
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over 5
On demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
AT BT AEMTT BT BT B%TE B¥TE AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BE Assets
[EFER S RERT R Cash and balances with
Hit S airEnstes banks and other financial
institutions 6,104,131 10,633,966 - - - - 1,497,891 18,235,988
FHRTT R B & Rit%RE  Placements with banks and
— (B N EHE other financial institutions
= EHATERL maturing between one
and twelve months - - 3,506,091 1,313,121 - - - 4,819,212
TSR T E Derivative financial
instruments 87,106 5,259 6,763 14,805 8,200 - - 122,133
B R 5 Advances to customers and
trade bills 16,224,011 3,202,383 6,801,934 23,734,721 22,269,514 4,754,328 - 76,986,891
EEAE Investment in securities
— SadIELI A HESS(EEE - securities mandatorily
NIFRE 7 #% measured at FVTPL - 12,814 50,971 20,615 57,468 6,282 - 148,150
— FERDIANEHESE S — securities designated at
NIFRE T #% FVTPL - 613 1,215 1,770 212,356 154,653 - 370,607
— DUNHESHEET AHA - securities at FVOCI
EQlicawsooa - 3,740,834 4,382,640 10,141,356 26,455,253 - 27,83 44,747,266
— DIESIASTE 5% - securities at amortised
cost - 8,437 1,598 135,038 1,497,324 - - 1,642,397
"BV Investment properties - - - - - - 237,150 237,150
W~ BEM R AR Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 2,021,072 2,021,072
HAEE (BEIEERIEE Other assets (including
#) deferred tax assets) 145,840 230,619 144,323 304 - - 2,829 523,915
BEWEE Total assets 22,561,088 17,834,925 14,895,535 35,361,730 50,500,115 4,915,263 3,786,125 149,854,781
BE Liabilities
SRIT M oM S Rl > Deposits and balances from
R sheh banks and other financial
institutions (4,530,452) (5,308,622) (1,559,588) (6,348,801) - - - (17,747,463)
TSR TH Derivative financial
instruments (6,246)  (15,683) (1,045) (5799)  (11,588) - - (40,361)
F PR Deposits from customers  (27,832,051) (20,780,489) (31,812,183) (34,016,778) (1,849,933) - - (116,291,434)
HAMMETE R (R FEE - Other accounts and
(STRRIE R R AERR I & provisions (including
) current and deferred tax
liabilities) (581,226)  (371,590)  (51,439)  (292,270) (153,966)  (17,025) (185,018) (1,652,534)
=li-¢. 5] Total liabilities (32,949,975) (26,476,384) (33,424,255) (40,663,648) (2,015,487)  (17,025) (185,018) (135,731,792)
TREE R Net liquidity gap (10,388,887) (8,641,459) (18,528,720) (5,301,918) 48,484,628 4,898,238 3,601,107 14,122,989
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4. CREBEE (8)

4.3 mEEsRR (8

A ZEAESHT (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. Maturity analysis (continued)

2018
—Z =% RHtEE
Bl —EARN =WH +Z#EA —ZEHE AEME HEA dEzt
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over
On demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
AT BT BT BT BT BT AT BT
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000
BE Assets
[EFER S R ERT R Cash and balances with
Hit S airEnstes banks and other financial
institutions 1,877,197 13,035,493 - - - - 533,322 15,446,012
FHR1T R B & Rit%RE  Placements with banks and
— (B N EHE other financial institutions
= EHATERL maturing between one
and twelve months - - 4,784,315 1,518,248 - - - 6,302,563
PTESR TR Derivative financial
instruments 96,038 509 7,115 1,415 13,968 3,635 - 122,680
B EER S Advances to customers and
trade bills 8,777,625 3,212,005 3,035,831 8,735,806 21,484,038 4,688,985 - 49,934,290
EEAE Investment in securities
— safELI A HESE ST - securities mandatorily
NIBZE 7 555 measured at FVTPL _ _ _ ~ ~ B B ~
— FUERLINESEET - securities designated at
MNEs > 55 FVTPL - 617 1,222 1771 208078 152,916 - 364,604
— DIONTHESE B A=At — securities at FVOCI
Sl enyaizn - 2,178,850 1,821,667 6,334,276 16,168,305 - 88,903 26,592,001
— DIEsRAG T 258%  — securities at amortised
cost - 7,391 1,954 158,706 1,502,850 - - 1,670,901
KB Investment properties - - - - - - 233,350 233,350
W~ BEM R AR Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 1,738,569 1,738,569
HAEE (BEIEERIEE Other assets (including
) deferred tax assets) 85,728 209,050 157,851 541 - - 14,487 467,657
HENH Total assets 10,836,588 18,643,915 9,809,955 16,750,763 39,377,239 4,845,536 2,608,631 102,872,627
BE Liabilities
SRIT R HoAth R trs > Deposits and balances from
FE G banks and other financial
institutions (5,984,733) (1,918,927)  (22,655) (2,255,961) (1,750,994) - - (11,933,270)
TSR TH Derivative financial
instruments (8,021)  (16,824) (2,300) (1,668) (11,158) (3,297) - (43,268)
P Deposits from customers ~ (23,875,084) (12,977,801) (13,358,293) (27,277,475)  (840,862) - -(78,329,515)
HAMETE R (LFEE Other accounts and
(IR TE Ry R AR T & provisions (including
) current and deferred tax
liabilities) (450,543)  (124,344)  (23,575)  (222,329) - - (142,587)  (963,378)
AR Total liabilities (30,318,381) (15,037,896) (13,406,823) (29,757,433) (2,603,014) (3,297)  (142,587) (91,269,431)
SRENE Net liquidity gap (19,481,793) 3,606,019 (3,596,868) (13,006,670) 36,774,225 4,842,239 2,466,044 11,603,196
REEREAEAY " R The Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities which have
B, B - WA E been overdue as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
BRSO R & payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is

e WA ZAERET R

I 2 R O AR A

$9) o HoAt R B 2 H 5y

A7 28 AR R e T PR

Ty BHIR B

LTI A (T AR 2 A
(arF) -

reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to
the residual maturity. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if

any.
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4. CREREE (8)

4.3 REEEERE ()

B. #ZAQBIHIH AT Z RITHR

B

(continued)

(@) FETETAZEER

TN T AR B 12
A 31 HZIEri e
AT ER &R H TR

B -

ERE R
SRAT e HAth <5 b
T R R A5 ER

HFEFK
oAt R

SRS A

ERE R
SRAT e HoAth <5 Rl
T R R A5 ER

EE
R

BRI

Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances
from banks and other
financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances
from banks and other
financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31
December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

maturity.

2019

—Z =z
—EARN =fEA +=fE —BRH HEUE 4EEt

Up to 1t03 3to12 1to 5 Over 5

1 month months months years years Total
EWTT A¥TT AWTT EWTT A¥TT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(9,841,190) (1,567,829) (6,465,183) - - (17,874,202)
(48,633,964) (31,946,437) (34,451,129) (2,138,214) -(117,169,744)
(759,801) (15,108) (137,267) (153,966) (17,025) (1,083,167)
(59,234,955) (33,529,374) (41,053,579) (2,292,180) (17,025) (136,127,113)

2018

—& =
—{EHN =fEs +={EH —ZEAF AFELE Yt
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to 5 Over 5

1 month months months years years Total
BT BT BT AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(7,905,985) (22,654) (2,316,370) (1,760,973) - (12,005,982)
(36,864,280) (13,412,061) (27,734,773) (894,066) - (78,905,180)
(549,995) (8,345) (77,829) - - (636,169)
(45,320,260) (13,443,060) (30,128,972)  (2,655,039) - (91,547,331)
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4.3 REEEERE ()

B. #ZAQBIHIH AT Z RITHR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

WA (&)
(b) PT&ETRZHEH

ML T AR 12
31 HDFHER SLIEIH E 51
RZ BT - RS
FELET ZITE SR E
15 > R A fa R AR G
Brirhem TE (R
AW &N EAEENE
5 BRI PTAETEDA
SHEFIRAN > TRRBEERN
HoAh e BE Ry R AT ELEY

EEBRER -

R PR R
PR TR FEaRE
FREH o T AR AR SS
RBirdem T REERS
TR M s -

(b) Derivative cash flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an
asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are
disclosed at fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and

currency swaps.

2019
—F =
—EARN =@A  +ZER —FEHHE AHEMNE dEst
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BETT AEETT BETRx BETT BYETT  B%TE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R AR AL B Derivative financial
e =Yt liabilities settled on a
net basis (6,583) (1,617) (1,491) (8,336) - (18,027)
fRaEELELEE > Derivative financial
L4 T E instruments settled on a
gross basis
A Total inflow 2,201,560 2,054,737 4,109,610 - - 8,365,907
YR Total outflow (2,221,216) (2,047,317) (4,093,243) - - (8,361,776)
2018
—F =%
—{EHN =fEs +={EH —ZEAF AFME HEEt
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT BMTt  BWTT BBt BRI BB
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
P g EGEE > Derivative financial
e =Yt liabilities settled on a
net basis (8,406) 2,030 (8,714) (9,376) (164) (24,630)
PR sE LS E > Derivative financial
e, =N instruments settled on a
gross basis
A Total inflow 8,611,283 2,363,904 930,055 - - 11,905,242
SR Total outflow (8,629,885) (2,354,565)  (930,535) - - (11,914,985)
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(continued)
4. SRIREEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
43 mErEsERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. & H otz £ B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

Hem (8)

(c) EEEMERINEE (c) Off-balance sheet items
R Loan commitments
BRAAEES 2019 4F 12 The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
H 31 HHEFREEREE instruments as at 31 December 2019 that the Group commits to extend
& HAth fh s 2 RIMEF credit to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$12,132,223,000
TH - X8RN (2018: HK$10,801,604,000).
12,132,223,000 T (2018
£F 1 % 10,801,604,000
JC) e
WA O R M A T il Financial guarantees and other financial facilities
AEEE 2019 £ 12 H 31 Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
H 2 A W59 O e AL A 75 December 2019 amounting to HK$505,653,000 (2018: HK$645,664,000)
[ e R are maturing no later than one year.

505,653,000 7= (2018
ok 645,664,000
I6) > HEHEH/ DA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREH

4.4 Capital management

AEEEANEEN EEHEE
SRR L R T B A R TR v A
EVEATERR K - [EIE Ry ey
K EE - BEAREHZ R
EE R A SR AL -
A 75 I A 1T 3 B DL AR B R
W ~ R AT R MR R
fhr

FEHCKETI—EANNE
AE PRI AR - 3 HE
TR - IWEHGIRESREE S
ESE gt EJET WTIEEE
RIERFAIR - HE A RER
ZEGARREREINER
FERM: o AEREAE IR AR EARL
RITRBN S HEERIE
TERARE > ST

ARG B L BR F BL R N B SR AR
R EEHE R S IEE S
A RS R E (S H R E A
TR o NER S SRR HE HI 48
e (EEREE) sTEART
B REERRAGEEEGER
BIE  STEEAESERE
HIKERH/]/)CEJ%]L%:‘ SARFK -

AR R B A
EET EANE R A RAY— i i
[E EAZER - A A
Eb T RS T MRS i B A
KIS EBR S AR - A4
SPRAIREE (TSR SHEUE
SRR TSR EAZDK -

AEEEEFPR I CRBHRE
[ ) st A R R E A

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Group’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio requirement. The ALCO
monitors the Group’s capital adequacy requirement. The Group has complied with
all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in
respect of banking operation as further elaborated below:

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (FIRB) approach to
calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation
exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised
(credit risk) (STC) approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (CVA) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk
of the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (IMM) approach to calculate the
general market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate
exposures and, with the approvals from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX
positions in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group continues
to adopt the standardised (market risk) (STM) approach to calculate the market
risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (STO) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

ARHEES 2019 AL N
AR REERFUFERE
FEEBERTM T HEELER
Fr o REIEDR - B REE—
SRS NEREATE e b
TR £ Z RS AR5 — S0k
TARAMER I HENER
[ERFREREVERINEA - fETERE
ARTT fe (R e — SR A
EE#R ~ MBS A LR R (K
SEALLR « [Ei - ALEET
ALY & AR LEIREEE T AF &
] > DUSCRSES 3 R SR i
EARVEROER © AEERER N
B AT R SRR i — (e
FEAEEEE - HEES
5 B RERG bR 00 T E S B AR
e R SRR AR -

BEAh » AEEEFEREEEEAR
Rl hEEAREER B EE
ik EEREHE - AANEIR
SRS - BRI - U i
4~ (ST - B EORE S
[ERHEE B AR TR I 2
I AR AR E AT R R & AAK
W DIORIERA SR I REAERF RAFRY
BTN A E EEEHE - i
EHHRIE > ORREE - (R
BT R M P

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (ICAAP) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2019. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges
for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group
considers this ICAAP as an ongoing process for capital management and
periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation
to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted
to the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as
well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is
determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the
Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance
among risk, return and capital adequacy.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

5. REMGENAPHE
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It
also includes properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to
ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all
other significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include verification of
observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models and changes to
models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed market
transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant
valuation issues are reported to senior management, RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine
the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market
quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held
by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are
mostly observable and obtainable from open market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
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The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
technique that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount
rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on
foreign exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these
contracts are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The inputs can be
observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest
rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and
volatilities. Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for
less commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are
determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”)
are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market
factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future values of exposures,
default probabilities and recovery rates.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets
Investment in securities
mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss (Note 23)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
Investment in securities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Investment in securities
measured at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21)
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2019
FRH F_RERk F=ZREH 4EET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT ABETT BEETt A%t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
- 89,739 - 89,739
- 58,411 - 58,411
- 370,607 - 370,607
- 122,133 - 122,133
6,966,205 32,313,573 - 39,279,778
- 5,440,305 - 5,440,305
- - 27,183 27,183

6,966,205 38,394,768

27,183 45,388,156

- (40,361)

- (40,361)
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5. EEFMAENAEE (&) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

51 DAREASENSRTE (&) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
A ANPEIES (8) A. Fair value hierarchy (continued)
2018
FEg BT BER Haat
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AT ABWTIT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

SREE Financial assets
S LA B E S LA ASELS Investment in securities
rEssk (s 23) mandatorily measured at

fair value through profit
or loss (Note 23)

- {EBEE I - Debt securities - - - .
- Tk - Certificates of deposit - - . -
SHE BN ESE( L AIELS Investment in securities
s (fifsE 23) designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
- BB - Debt securities - 364,604 - 364,604
e TE (FfEE21) Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) - 122,680 - 122,680
DU B EET A A 2 UL Investment in securities
25095 % (M 23) measured at FVOCI
(Note 23)
- EBEE - Debt securities 2,331,316 22,237,616 - 24,568,932
- 1EEGE - Certificates of deposit - 1,934,166 - 1,934,166
- FelnEgss - Equity securities - 67,438 21,465 88,903
2,331,316 24,726,504 21,465 27,079,285
SREE Financial liabilities
PrAem T (fEE21) Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21) - (43,268) - (43,268)
KEEH” SRIEFE K EERE There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level
WIS HE R E gk 2 for the Group during the year (2018: Nil).

Z[EHYIER (2018 45« JE) -

136



4 A 2K

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

SEEABEHRERE: (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. EEMNEEINARE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

51 DAHESENSHMTE (&) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
B. £=@4HEE 88 B. Reconciliation of level 3 items
DARES e AHM2E K
ZEREE
Financial assets at FVOCI
EpRgs Btz 4t
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
2019 FE1H1H At 1 January 2019 - 21,465 21,465
g Gains
— Hir g midkas — Other comprehensive income
N EZL — Change in fair value - 5,718 5,718
HA Purchases - - .
=il Sales - - .
EHE =g Transfer out of Level 3 - - .
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 - 27,183 27,183
DAAFEE bat AEM A
ZBRERE
Financial assets at FVOCI
BEegsr REfyeg s HEEtT
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2018 41 H1H At 1 January 2018 - 14,278 14,278
g Gains
- HAtramfes — Other comprehensive income
A EEE — Change in fair value - 6,870 6,870
HA Purchases - 317 317
=il Sales - ; -
e =g Transfer out of Level 3 - ; -
2018 £ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 - 21,465 21,465
#2019 &£ 12 H 31 H 2 2018 As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, financial instruments categorised as level
12 A 31 H SEEE=E4% 3 are mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares.

R TH E % Rk FHRE -
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SEM BRI (8)

5. REMAENAHE (8)

5.1 DIAHESTERVER TR (8

(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. E=ERAVEEED (8

IF b TR A 2 SEAE AT A LR
HRAB W B T HYSE B 15 0 B
GEAL > (HFHREHRR Eis A el 2
Fol by BT A E 2 P
i{E /ARG B A A
A RERR A E] > B
EHE - A PEEE SR A
EL i B bL R S E P AR
EFEBAG - EH R RE 2
HEFEN & B 5% 0 JIAR
G B A T S R A
DS 1,359,000 T (2018
A AR 1,073,000 9T) ©

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are estimated using the
discounted cash flow model, on the basis of an analysis of the investee’s
financial position and results, or with reference to multiples of
comparable listed companies, such as average of the price/earning
ratios of comparables or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning
ratios of appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset
value of the underlying equity investments increased/decreased by 5%,
the  Group’s other comprehensive income would have
increased/decreased by HK$1,359,000 (2018: HK$1,073,000).

i {EER HYIEABIZR S e
Valuation technique Significant unobservable Range
Input(s)
JEER LA FEE(ERTARM | BEHE i A

EEEAIR G T A
Unlisted equity instruments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net asset value

SR
Discounted cash flow model

Not applicable

EIES
Discount rate

Not applicable

11.69%
(2018: 15.19%)
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SE BRI (8)

5. REMSENAHE (8)

5.2 JEDIAPHEET BRI TR

O3 PE TR DAE— R 72 R B2 AR e 1
SR R A [ i TR 2 B R ARG
fili - BUF ZJ57A KB CAZ E R
BRI RFG &R LR Z A PE -

T i IR SRAT e Al 5 A 2

BRI 5 SRR

REBGr Z B EE kAR NS
H & —ENEH > HIRE{EENPE

-

HEEK

Kby 28 F B GEFEfE
GEFESEANE > HIREEE A THE

T

iR B B T H

PR FH DAZRLIE U 2 2% o 40 A S0 FE R
SR 2 ) 38 Ry R B A B B < e A5

R -

L

REL Z & PR A R H R —
FENFIH] - HARAN{E B FEET -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value

of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from
the end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value

approximates fair value.

Debt securities at amortised cost

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve

appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the
end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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SEEABEHRERE: (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
5. EEFMAENAEE (&) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.2 JELIAPESTENSMTE (&) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
R DA L 1 B B AR S Y il The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
TEA » PREIELLA T EET RS instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their
Rl T B ZIRHE{EAAE - carrying values being approximation of fair values.
2019
RREIE NHE
Carrying value Fair value
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SREEE Financial assets
PIEEgR A ST EIEE 5 Investment in securities measured at
(FffzE 23) amortised cost (Note 23) 1,642,397 1,661,545
2018
WRTHI{E AHE
Carrying value Fair value
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
DI ERECA S BT 5 Investment in securities measured at
(FfFsE 23) amortised cost (Note 23) 1,670,901 1,640,600
NRYIREH B A ER SR The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
HZ N VHEES - fair values disclosed.
2019
F—EB% F_B% F=E&% &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BRTRT  BETIT BRTT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000

SREE Financial assets
DR AT 208 55 Investment in securities measured
at amortised cost - 1,661,545 - 1,661,545
2018
E—EH E B FE=TER 4G
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HERETTT AT HEMETTT HEETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
DR AT 208 55 Investment in securities measured
at amortised cost - 1,640,600 - 1,640,600
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e BRI ()

5. REMSENAHE (8)

5.3 DA HER BRVFESRIERE

B i i — e (R B SRR T
5 ¥ (B AR IE JE il A Y P
B

BV R
B Z VIE Ry B E YR R
B o FTAAEE RSV R B E
ENEERETERM - A fH{EH
TR AT AR AT T A R
ONEVHET o HE B e AT
BEEREEG A NERERER
ZAE - WAEEY)FEFT R K
TS EA SR - B ERETEE
RIBAEAME T > REEEE T &
PROHI AT Sw AR E D75 ~ M ERE
FAl{EES TR - (S {ETENERNZH
g JREREE

(i) 2B JEaR P ERF R R AAIE
EERAER

W SRy E AR Z YRR 1

FE - Ty BRI T

HHERAE (HSthEs%)
S FEHIGHEE AR
(BWAEATE) - FFEATEEE)
S RSS2 IR 22 A
tH?l?ﬂ' CHREE o EEEROEE R

HEAGET B AR E R
s,

AREEZ YIS E R
Mz FEIRT - HeEE e E
FOBEUIRIYISETTE o BTERE)
EZWEM - HEHEREAR
(bR — I mFE IS T 5 bt
i SR -

(i) ARAE= RN ETRE
ek

W B SE =B ASEEY)
EZNHEIT SR T SRR
UM ABEAE  FHEREEY)
SEMBP AT 2 A
I (B A -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market

to determine the fair value of non-financial assets.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff
Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change
in valuation methods during the year and the methods used are consistent with
last year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either
the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach by reference to
market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect
the differences between the comparable properties and the subject
properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire
measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales
price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are
generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
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SEEABEHRERE: (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. EEMNAEINARE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DIAHESTBAVESRIEE (8) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

WEYE N EE Investment properties and premises
(i) AR = ERAFEAENE (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
ENE D)
PUT B A EET 2 E The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
M R B = B AR AT value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as
BRAOIAE B 7 75 R B RN TR follows:
ZHRZE
(Y EWapEs AR AEZRA TOfEEEy NN Z B HEN R
Valuation method Significant Weighted Relationship of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs average to fair value.
MGLEOEEL | VIS ol L) s 5.10% (B A EM -
WAEAE bz (HED (2018: 6.53%) The higher the premium,
Market comparison Premium/(discount) on the higher the fair value.
approach or income features of the property
capitalisation compared to comparable PriEms » A FEY -
approach properties The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.
PIZEAR S AR EE R E Premium/(discount) on features of the property is determined after taken into
ZiwE,/ (Fr{E) Ty FHn] account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
LB EE A EIRZ L= accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with
5 PINEAc e 2 TS E) - reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.

i ~ (R ~ R0
T ~ R MR E -

A NERISEER A. Fair value hierarchy
2019
TRk SRS FEEHR “EET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BETIT BET A¥TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEREE Non-financial assets

eEYEE (I 24)
WISk ~ S50 Rkt (BT 25)

- R

FEREE
ReEYzE (I3 24)

VISE ~ S5 heaseti Ik 25)

- BE

AEEZIFEMEEN TN
B — B E B Z
R (2018 42 ¢ JE) -

Investment properties

(Note 24) - - 237,150 237,150
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 25)

— Premises - - 1,707,835 1,707,835

- - 1,944,985 1,944,985

2018
BBl BEHR oK o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AT AT ABRTT O ERTT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Non-financial assets
Investment properties

(Note 24) - - 233,350 233,350
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 25)

— Premises - - 1,696,410 1,696,410

- - 1,929,760 1,929,760

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for
the Group during the year (2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

SEM BRI (8)

5. REMSENAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DAHER BRFESRIERE (8

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

B. SE=/@RHVIH H &)
2019

FFERIEE

Non-financial assets

Y& ~ Sh Rkt
Properties, plant
and equipment

KB BE
Investment
properties Premises
EWTIT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
F+2019E1H1H At 1 January 2019 233,350 1,696,410
ezt (E518) Gains / (losses)
- fsgz — Income statement
- BEYEAFEFE — Net gain from fair value
TR adjustments on
investment properties 4,846 -
- B EEZFGE — Net gain from
revaluation of
premises - 2,794
— Htr2mdas — Other comprehensive
income
- JBEEET — Revaluation of
premises - 27,006
e Depreciation - (22,528)
b=y Additions - 3,107
A =gk Transfer into Level 3 - -
EER by Reclassification (1,046) 1,046
PR S0 72 2H Exchange difference - -
20194412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 237,150 1,707,835
A 2019412 H 31 HIFFAM Total unrealised gains for the
JEE I EENERNE AU year included in income
TR B S YasE statement for non-financial
) o assets held as at 31
December 2019
- REMEANEFE S — Net gain from fair value
perlloga adjustments on
investment properties 4,846 -
— HEhEE R — Net gain from revaluation
of premises - 2,794
4,846 2,794
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

SE BRI (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5. REMSENAHE (8)

5.3 DAHER BRFESRIERE (&)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. F=E&AVREZE (8

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
2018

IRl E
Non-financial assets

LUE B &d )
Properties, plant
and equipment

eEYE EE
Investment
properties Premises
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
#2018 1 H1H At 1 January 2018 214,910 1,506,300
Wit~ (E5iE) Gains / (losses)
- sk — Income statement
- BEE N FE T — Net gain from fair value
PR adjustments on
investment properties 18,440 -
- EFEZTEE — Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - (23,932)
— Hth2mEids — Other comprehensive
income
- BEEM — Revaluation of
premises - 119,251
Pres Depreciation - (20,452)
HE Additions - 115,244
PN St 4 Transfer into Level 3 - .
B Reclassification - -
DR S A2 Exchange difference - (1)
#2018 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 233,350 1,696,410
72018 412 H 31 HEFAHY Total unrealised gains /
JEE B ENENET AU _(Iosses) f_or_the year
HEMFETIL (5518) included in income _
s statement for non-financial
e assets held as at 31
December 2018
— BN ERE — Net gain from fair value
FPULER adjustments on
investment properties 18,440 -
- EfiFEEZ FEEE — Net loss from revaluation
of premises - (23,932)
18,440 (23,932)
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LrEBERFRMTEE (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Net interest income

6. JFEHISUWA

2019 2018
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FIEMA Interest income
TF IO [E] 2 Fe HoAth < i i 1y Due from banks and other financial institutions
I 378,279 294,567
B B S Advances to customers and trade bills 2,753,187 1,603,113
BHIEE Investment in securities 1,071,164 628,275
oAl Others 5,517 20,223
4,208,147 2,546,178
FIESTH Interest expense
[F3 & Hith & Bt Z 092 Due to banks and other financial institutions
15 (151,730) (81,493)
B Deposits from customers (2,030,662) (904,092)
HEAH Lease liabilities (5,207) -
oAl Others (1,975) (2,163)
(2,189,574) (987,748)
EFIEWA Net interest income 2,018,573 1,558,430

FELA PEE bt AR Z &
R 7 < Al 5 (R T 2 A R
ISCL QN SS-aabe dalllae: i
4,192,248,000 7T (2018 4 :
HEHE 2,523,327,000 7T )Rz g
2,184,367,000 7T (2018 4 :
HEHE 987,748,000 ) -

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$4,192,248,000 (2018:
HK$2,523,327,000) and HK$2,184,367,000 (2018: HK$987,748,000) for financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss

respectively.
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RBERASBA
PRk

Eeika
SRR
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PRERE
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HAl
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L
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FepE
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SRATENBRAL
S VYR
3 RS

St KA A2 ARG E
- MR RS
- WesE R e

7. Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Insurance

Securities brokerage

Loan commissions

Payment services

Bills commissions

Safe deposit box

Funds distribution

Others

Fee and commission expense
Securities brokerage
Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from:

Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

Trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2019 2018
BETT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

175,423 59,862
74,216 101,192
285,575 89,332
33,677 32,542
14,641 19,096
19,849 9,019
7,789 9,362
56,084 74,425
667,254 394,830
(12,540) (14,798)
(11,716) (9,213)
(24,256) (24,011)
642,998 370,819
300,217 108,429
(261) (349)
299,956 108,080
6,704 6,663
(1,358) (722)
5,346 5,941




4 A 2K

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

w

ﬁfv’éﬂ)ﬂ‘ R M=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

8. FXHMWER 8. Net trading gain
2019 2018
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
SRURZRIEE - Net gain from:
SNEERT 5 Fe b MBS Sy Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 32,448 69,310
FRFIMELLAHE LR AR Net loss on investment in securities
Fal ookl oFi=| mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss (300) -
FETE Interest rate instruments (6,257) 2,416
P Commodities 50 17
25,941 71,743
9. HitERMEEFKZE 9. Net gain on other financial assets
2019 2018
BETT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
DA ESE B A E M 2 Net gain on investment in securities measured
T L BRI at FVOCI 69,778 6,061
HAtr Others (289) (187)
69,489 5,874
10. HAZKZBULA 10. Other operating income
2019 2018
BT HIETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
SESFEER EULA Dividend income from investment in securities
- JE BT EE - Unlisted investments 4,437 5,941
&Y FH S A Gross rental income from investment properties 6,631 5,915
FEliEca—cvE FAVUN Incomings in respect of investment properties 255 221
HAth Others 992 331
12,315 12,408

2019 FERHRHEEYEEZ
SIS A R R A
Yk 2 HPEE I (2018
) e

There are no direct operating expenses included in the outgoings in respect of investment
properties related to investment properties that were not let during 2019 (2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

11. Net charge of impairment allowances

12

13.

Advances to customers and trade bills
Investment in securities

Balances with central banks, banks and other financial

institutions
Other financial assets
Off-balance sheet

Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost

Premises and equipment expenses
(excluding depreciation)
- Rental of premises
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation (Note 25)
- Owned properties, plant and equipment
- Right-of-use assets

Auditors’ remuneration
- Audit services
- Non-audit services

Other operating expenses

Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment properties

Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment

properties (Note 24)

148

2019 2018
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

312,622 148,460
13,593 (4,104)
159 21

597 797
18,374 (6,745)
345,345 138,429

2019 2018
AT HATIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

580,415 428,873
33,209 24,127
613,624 453,000
80 37,660
9,546 6,825
13,676 11,160
23,302 55,645
95,565 29,297
31,529 29,297
64,036 -

6,315 2,217

2,793 2,191

3,522 26

206,104 130,901
944,910 671,060

2019 2018
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

4,846 18,440
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. HE&E EEY% - 85885 14. Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and

Rtz BB/ (&
)

VR ~ [l S S

ZAEHE
HitFE W (BR)
(Fff5E 25)
15. 18

SrREaR RN Z R TRH R
T

EN T
A
- FENEFARIH
- TR R HE

M
- FNEFARIH

RIERTE
WA A
(BfF5E 290

BB g A

(2018 4 : 16.5% ) 45k -
SR A A
i SRR R e A S K
BEBFTERR 2 BRITRE

st

equipment

2019 2018
AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings (71) (16)
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of premises (Note 25)

2,794 (23,932)
2,723 (23,948)
. Taxation
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2019 2018
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 146,318 129,485
- Under-provision in prior year 24 -
146,342 129,485
Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 79,979 58,645
226,321 188,130
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Note 29) 5,048 14,165
231,369 202,295

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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LrEBERFRMTEE (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. FRIE (&)

A5 B bR A R P E 2 Y B
FERIH > BRI R BRI R
STRAVIIEARATT ¢

PR AT

FEf# 16.5% (2018 4%
16.5% ) sFEATFTE
HAMEA R A R 8
TR Z A
PR B TR B =2
EEEKE%?{%
IR —
/%fﬁﬁm

AFEIFEE

s ARH

griERE

16. BB RSZAIFIE

(i) AR AL RS AR R A
FERE S

AR LA RS (Y B
AR

(i) RAFEAAIERET RIS
—HREARFEHF I ATF B
By e 102,882,000 I
( 2018 4= Ead
102,849,000 7¢ ) -

15. Taxation (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in another jurisdiction
Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Under-provision in prior year

Additional tier 1 capital securities dividend payment
Foreign withholding tax

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate

2019 2018
BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

1,493,937 1,204,742

246,500 198,782
41,767 21,144
(52,424) (12,623)
12,478 12,077
24 -
(16,976) (16,970)
- (115)
231,369 202,295
15.49% 16.79%

16. Dividends and Distributions

(i) Dividends payable to equity holders attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year

2019 2018

fi e L] 573 HagH

Per share Total Per share Total

B EBTT bt AT T

HK$ HK$’000 HK$ HK$'000
Final dividend in respect of

the previous financial

year, approved and paid

during the year 80 298,920 75 225,000

(i) During the year, amount paid on perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier
1 capital securities is HK$102,882,000 (2018: HK$102,849,000).
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14,503,0007T ) - [f A2 [ 5tz
ot B R SRR R R R
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18. &% - RGEHEEREEA 18.

R
(a) EEME

REEAEBRARITES R
AT R E H I A El PRt
HR 5 T 2 1 o L T W AR W T

EEEAT

E R

LAt
- B AR
- BYES R TE4T

- Hith CEFEBRREES0O

AT TR T E
Z B <t 48 By 15 2,604,000 5T
(2018 : ;#11,908,0007T ) -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer's contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions are subjected to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$14,892,000 (2018: approximately
HK$14,503,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$713,000 (2018: approximately HK$964,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$6,317,000 (2018: approximately HK$4,485,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors’, Senior Management’s and Key Personnel’s
emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments
Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in

respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries
within the Group during the year are as follows:

2019 2018

BT HERETTT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Directors’ fees 4,314 4,751
Other emoluments

- basic salaries and allowances 9,410 8,869

- discretionary bonuses 17,429 10,343

- others (including pension contributions) 2,951 2,134

34,104 26,097

Fees of HK$2,604,000 (2018: HK$1,908,000) were paid to the Independent
Non-executive Directors during the year.
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18. X - SEHERFEA 18. Directors’, Senior Management’s and Key Personnel’s
8& (8) emoluments (continued)
(b) CG-5B M FH MG EHETI (b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
TEGEHEBETEASN CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System
|
HE&EREHZCG-5 (TREN Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the
NGRS 1) - AIFEEASEE HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of
Z SR E S R TN BRYE the Group during the year are as follows:
BEEfEa T
(i) A2 PHIETN (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2019
EEEE FEAR
Senior Management Key Personnel
154113 P £13 st IR AL HET
Non- Non-
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

AT BBTIT  BRTT AT BRTIT  BRTT
HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$’000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$°000

[&] € #r Fixed remuneration
4 Cash 20,314 - 20,314 16,446 - 16,446
BT Variable remuneration
R4 Cash 22,116 9,008 31,124 10,430 1,888 12,318
42,430 9,008 51,438 26,876 1,888 28,764
2018
A E T TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
El5#0s IRIE HHET FEIRAE IRIE HaEst
Non- Non-
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BT BT BT BT AW
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[E5] 5 Fixed remuneration
e Cash 16,017 - 16,017 11,028 - 11,028
EZ k| Variable remuneration
& Cash 9,940 4,260 14,200 5,087 847 5,934
25,957 4,260 30,217 16,115 847 16,962
DL E#iEsE64 (20184F & 7 The remuneration above includes 6 (2018: 7) members of Senior Management
#) EEERLE R 124 (2018 and 12 (2018: 9) members of Key Personnel.

Frof) EEAR -
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18. X - SEHERFEA 18. Directors’, Senior Management’s and Key Personnel’s
8& (8) emoluments (continued)
(b) CG-5B M FH MG EHETI (b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
TEGEHBRTEASN CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System (continued)
FRE (58)
(i) PEIEZTN (i) Deferred remuneration
2019 2018
EREEE FEAR EEEEE FTEAE
Senior Key Senior Key

Management  Personnel Management Personnel

BT BETT BT EETOT

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PRI Deferred
remuneration
B Vested 1,332 169 513 -
EN Unvested 15,398 2,897 7,722 1,476
16,729 3,066 8,235 1,476
w1H1H At 1 January 7,722 1,476 3,975 629
BT Awarded 9,008 1,888 4,260 847
W97 Paid out (1,332) (169) (513) -
SRR R A T FLRRET Reduced through
performance
adjustments - (298) - -
12 H 31 H At 31 December 15,398 2,897 7,722 1,476
TABEEE AR AR R Ak For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
EHERTEANETIRESE mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a
& (TRIERERINEIS4551) & Sound Remuneration System.
EREEE  EEgRENS Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
WEME > BFRERIEEE responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines,
FETS  BFEPUTEHS. 1T including Executive Directors, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives,
HEER. BIMEEL EREEERE K Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
EIEVHEE -
TEAR  EAEBEENE K Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve
EREERYS - BEbEREE the assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk
ERE Bl N e exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked
EHAERE - EAPE > 5 to the risk management, or those who have direct influence to the profit,
BAAEFEEN AR - B including General Managers of material business lines, General Manager of
SETS A RS R A B 4B AL Financial Markets Department, as well as the General Managers of risk

B~ SRl - DR control functions.
S E R AR AE
B —HEAN -
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19. EEHRSEEBRERTT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
e HoAth SRR &S
&R
2019 2018
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
e < Cash 281,478 176,662
TR LRI THISS 6 Balances with central banks 5,591,532 1,277,587
FETRERTT B Eo A< R A% Balances with banks and other financial
HI4E R institutions 1,729,013 956,278
TESRTT R At e Rl s — Placements with banks and other financial
{8 A N EIHA 2 e institutions maturing within one month 10,634,047 13,035,556
18,236,070 15,446,083
JAE E Impairment allowances
- T - Stage 1 (82) )
- ISR - Stage 2 - -
- HEIEE - Stage 3 - -
18,235,988 15,446,012

20. 7ESRfT R E A E&Rit% 20. Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing

B—2+HEB ANz between one and twelve months
Bz EEAFIR
2019 2018
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETERTT B Eo A< R A4 G Balances with banks and other financial
—Z+EANEEHZ institutions maturing between one to twelve
TEHATFIT months 4,819,614 6,302,817
TRAE A Impairment allowances
- HETEE - Stage 1 (402) (254)
- JHE IS - Stage 2 - -
- S SRR - Stage 3 - -
4,819,212 6,302,563
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21. Derivative financial instruments

21. TESRTH

ATEIEET AL IR KR ARRHAT T4
TEAOFEEERER A -

BRI ARAGE— H IR EE S
WEH ARG -

B R R AR AR AR A
AR - FEHIHIEE R SR R B W A
R (QEENRBGZHFR ) KLl LAY
FrA4HE - BRI HRIIELIN - 34

SN RIS IIRERYE T (HET) B
BI5 (FAT7) REHEARKIE— R ER
AR E R I P AT E AV EAS B
(RO ) S (RUEHIE) —
W AR TEATER (MIEERE) /Y
— T faR o B REESERIIAR R - 3
FERYE T3 e E T O — B AT HIRE R -
AR SR B T e M
BERRBUE B BT (WS i
TTHE ) -

AREE TSR T REY AU
FHEAHESIIN TR - S ER T
BIEE), LB BEEEUR R
FKHARERZZGE T A
ZEH]/ LR T — (L
IR N TSR AT B R (A P
SHIELAVELRE - (B2 - SR RIRATS K
HIARARAVER e s ARy A PHE - AT
A RE S WA S P bR 5 B =
iRl - ST e TR S4IR
BRI PR ST S RA I E) - TR
SR CEASETREEEAN (HE)
BN (Eff) AUZEE ISt B mThE
FEA [FIARA BORAT R E) -

REEHET SN SIS MR E LS ST
FEHAVERRE PR - AEFEE
5 R FIZE T GRS A A S R
S A S AR B B B R
FHHTE

DT SR E A E B R TRV
b HEERtAE T A EECE R
AL T AT S - TRTAE LA S
FEA AR\ AR B R B AR R -
AHET A AR RIAR - SR
Gy AECER B 280 > DU T4
T HIGEIE - e N

The Group enters into exchange rate and interest rate related derivative
financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller
(writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period,
a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated
over-the-counter between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the
stock exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the end of the reporting dates and certain of them provide a basis for
comparison with fair values of instruments recognised on the statement of
financial position. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative financial instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates or market interest
rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the
notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the
maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and
control.
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair values of each class

of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps
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2019
B8/ BHREEH AFHE

Contract/ Fair values
notional 73 afE
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT T BT T AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1,170,736 88,544 (7,427)
8,017,633 25,361 (21,307)
1,571 6 -
1,571 - (10)
9,191,511 113,911 (28,744)
2,143,257 8,222 (11,617)
11,334,768 122,133 (40,361)

2018
EVE= o ARSI

Contract/ Fair values
notional HE A
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
998,600 96,280 (8,047)
11,850,009 8,795 (19,636)
120 1 -
120 - (1)
12,848,849 105,076 (27,684)
2,935,961 17,604 (15,584)
15,784,810 122,680 (43,268)




4 A 2K

elu‘yu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

LA ERERITEE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

22. EEERKEGE
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22. Advances to customers and trade bills

Personal loans and advances
Corporate loans and advances

Advances to customers

Loan impairment allowances
- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3

Trade bills

Trade bills impairment allowances

- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3

2019 2018
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
12,045,683 7,465,826
64,021,276 41,012,542
76,066,959 48,478,368
(326,066) (139,832)
(18,309) (17,599)
(284,868) (189,268)
75,437,716 48,131,669
1,553,101 1,804,245
(3,926) (1,624)
1,549,175 1,802,621

76,986,891 49,934,290

As at 31 December 2019, advances to customers included accrued interest of

HK$237,214,000 (2018: HK$136,345,000).
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23. BEEKE 23. Investment in securities
2019
BEMDAE  AERMUAT BIAES
HELEAR EBGEIAR  (EEAEMmE DlgarmA &5t
15285 w2 EBESEZER HEZHER
Investment in
securities Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities securities at
measured at designated at fair value Investmentin
fair value fair value  through other securities at
through profit through profit comprehensive amortised
or loss and loss income cost Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TEkeE - Certificate of deposit:
- NEAB LT - Listed in Hong Kong - - - - -
- INEABLN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong - - - - -
- JEEm - Unlisted 58,411 - 5,440,305 - 5,498,716
58,411 - 5,440,305 - 5,498,716
({EKeE% . Debt securities:
- REELETN - Listed in Hong Kong 59,248 39,959 8,963,966 1,106,571 10,169,744
- AEABLSL L - Listed outside Hong Kong 30,491 174,442 10,428,704 252,093 10,885,730
- JE kA - Unlisted - 156,206 19,887,108 285,531 20,328,845
89,739 370,607 39,279,778 1,644,195 41,384,319
148,150 370,607 44,720,083 1,644,195 46,883,035
BB Impairment allowances
- HE—TEEL - Stage 1 - - - (1,798) (1,798)
- O TFEER - Stage 2 - - - - -
- HE=IEE - Stage 3 - - - - -
- - - (1,798) (1,798)
TEikEE R (B4 Total debt securities and
certificates of deposits 148,150 370,607 44,720,083 1,642,397 46,881,237
R Eg s Equity securities:
- INEAB LT - Listed in Hong Kong - - - - -
- AEBLISN L - Listed outside Hong Kong - - - - -
- JEE - Unlisted - - 27,183 - 27,183
Wy e5 48 %H Total equity securities - - 27,183 - 27,183
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
ST Sy JE Analysed by type of issuer as
YR e follows :
B Sovereigns - - 19,912,275 - 19,912,275
INEERAL Public sector entities - - 1,415,230 - 1,415,230
SRIT R Banks and other financial
HoAth SR institutions 81,983 354,282 18,623,804 912,851 19,972,920
YAk Corporate entities 66,167 16,325 4,795,957 729,546 5,607,995
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
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23. BHERE (&)

23. Investment in securities (continued)

2018
EIMELLAT  FERLAF LA B
EHEET AR EELETAE (et AR DABEERRICA Hast
oo BzER EWEZEE  EHRZES
Investment in
securities  Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities  securities at fair
measured at  designated at value through
fair value fair value other Investment in
through profit  through profit ~ comprehensive securities at
or loss and loss income amortised cost Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
s - Certificate of deposit:
- NEAB T - Listed in Hong Kong - - - - -
- INEABLN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong - - 9,009 - 9,009
- JEEm - Unlisted - - 1,925,157 151,728 2,076,885
- - 1,934,166 151,728 2,085,894
livisee N Debt securities:
- REELETN - Listed in Hong Kong - 39,215 8,607,155 1,098,955 9,745,325
- AEBLI Bl - Listed outside Hong Kong - 170,920 5,301,496 130,580 5,602,996
- JE L - Unlisted - 154,469 10,660,281 289,972 11,104,722
- 364,604 24,568,932 1,519,507 26,453,043
- 364,604 26,503,098 1,671,235 28,538,937
BB Impairment allowances
- HE—TEEE - Stage 1 - - - (334) (334)
- HEETIRE - Stage 2 - - - - -
- HE=IEE - Stage 3 - - - - -
- - - (334) (334)
TS L ER S S Total debt securities and
certificates of deposits - 364,604 26,503,098 1,670,901 28,538,603
Ry Es s - Equity securities:
- NEAB LT - Listed in Hong Kong - - 67,438 - 67,438
- INEABLYN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong - - - - -
- JEbm - Unlisted - - 21,465 - 21,465
R 55 25484 Total equity securities - - 88,903 - 88,903
- 364,604 26,592,001 1,670,901 28,627,506
ST 0 Analysed by type of issuer as
ar follows :
B Sovereigns - - 10,455,426 - 10,455,426
INEERAL Public sector entities - - - - -
SR1T K Banks and other financial
HoAth R institutions - 348,133 11,312,388 1,071,043 12,731,564
ANEIEHE Corporate entities - 16,471 4,824,187 599,858 5,440,516
- 364,604 26,592,001 1,670,901 28,627,506
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(continued)

23. Investment in securities (continued)

At 1 January 2019

Additions

Disposals, redemptions

and maturity
Amortisation
Change in fair value
Exchange difference
Impairment allowance

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018

Additions

Disposals, redemptions

and maturity
Amortisation
Change in fair value
Exchange difference
Impairment allowance

At 31 December 2018

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

2019
BEMELIAT RERUAT  UATES
EHEEAR EELEAR EPARME DEERRAE
WZBE wz#Er Elmz#EE FERZES &t
Investment in Investment in
securities securities  Investment in
mandatorily designated at securities at
measured at fair value fair value Investment in
fair value through  through other securities at
through profit comprehensive amortised
profit or loss and loss income cost Total
AT BT T AT BT BT IT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
- 364,604 26,592,001 1,670,901 28,627,506
150,492 - 77,786,627 134,954 78,072,073
(2,594) - (59,950,084) (150,000) (60,102,678)
985 (104) 266,651 1,194 268,726
(300) 7,307 319,414 - 326,421
(433) (1,200) (267,343) (13,175) (282,151)
- - - (1,477) (1,477)
148,150 370,607 44,747,266 1,642,397 46,908,420
2018
BHEIMLAT SUEBLAT  DIATESE
EELET AR EELETAE st A DUEERECA
L FE IR i L BE A Ml 8% FrEZES HEEt
Investment in
securities  Investment in Investment in
mandatorily securities securities at
measured at  designated at fair value Investmentin
fair value fair value through other  securities at
through profit  through profit comprehensive amortised
or loss and loss income cost Total
BT BT BT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 212,225 20,011,461 - 20,223,686
- 150,000 68,777,569 1,658,730 70,586,299
- - (62,091,145) - (62,091,145)
- 1,470 133,638 17,368 152,476
- 465 (171,836) - (171,371)
- 444 (67,686) (4,862) (72,104)
- - - (335) (335)
- 364,604 26,592,001 1,670,901 28,627,506
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24. FrEYE 24. Investment properties
2019 2018
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
w1TH1TH At 1 January 233,350 214,910
ANTAEUZE (e 13) Fair value gains (Note 13) 4,846 18,440
B fEE Y - 23 R Reclassification to properties, plant and
s (ffEE 25) equipment (Note 25) (1,046) R
W12 531 H At 31 December 237,150 233,350
P& YZE > IR EE A LY The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
EREARR TN - the leases as follows:
2019 2018
AT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEHBRA Held in Hong Kong
FIAHEY (i 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 228,250 223,750
EFBLINTE Held outside Hong Kong
HEATHAY (10 4224 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 8,900 9,600
237,150 233,350
20194 12 H 31 H » %] As at 31 December 2019, investment properties were included in the statement of
BRI EZARN Z EEY) financial position at valuation carried out at 31 December 2019 on the basis of their fair
2 RIS AT value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair
YT ERE A S ® value represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an
20194E12 A 31 HELAFE orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

R LB T 2 B E -
NPEEETEENEES
BeFr AR T 52
HLE N —H A YRR
HUSHIERS -
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w

25. W - BB 25. Properties, plant and equipment

20191 1 HZ
R HE

JEE FH 25 28 U 5 i s R T
%5 16 SRHEH AR

WE

e

il

SEREHTEE (MfEE12)

HH o E KRB
(Bt 24)

VE 2 75 A

2019412 H 31 H>
MR FHE

2019412 A 31 H

FAE

HftiE

Rt A

2019412 H 31 HZ
MR E

7201841 H1H
W $lE

e

s

s

RS (Wi 12)

B 2 224

R 20184E 12 H 31 H
W

2018 4212 H 31 H

HERAME
FAh{E

FEtIT e R A

R 20184E 12 H 31 H
IREFHE

Net book value at
1 January 2019

Adjustment on initial application of
HKFRS 16

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)

Reclassification from investment
properties (Note 24)

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2019

At 31 December 2019

At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2019

Net book value at
1 January 2018

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)
Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018
At cost

At valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2018
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FBEERIMRE B ~ EIE
B BE SRR ET
Right-of-use Equipment,
assets of fixtures and
premises Premises fittings Total
AETIT  BETT AETIT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
- 1,696,410 42,159 1,738,569
117,730 - - 17,730
188,005 3,107 40,111 231,223
- - (71) (71)
- 29,800 - 29,800
(64,036) (22,528) (9,001) (95,565)
- 1,046 - 1,046
(1,616) - (44) (1,660)
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
295,876 - 164,607 460,483
- 1,707,835 - 1,707,835
295,876 1,707,835 164,607 2,168,318
(55,793) - (91,453) (147,246)
240,083 1,707,835 73,154 2,021,072
J5 EE (i IR e~ EIE
HE BE  ai s Hast
Right-of-use Equipment,
assets of fixtures and
premises _ Premises fittings Total
AETITT A% BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 1,506,300 45,953 1,552,253
- 115,244 5,218 120,462
- - (16) (16)
- 95,319 - 95,319
- (20,452) (8,845)  (29,297)
- (1) (151) (152)
- 1,696,410 42,159 1,738,569
- - 142,521 142,521
- 1,696,410 - 1,696,410
- 1,696,410 142,521 1,838,931
- - (100,362) (100,362)
- 1,696,410 42,159 1,738,569
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25. W3¢ ~ 2t Bk ti

25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

€-))

J e PRI E T RE SRR
FROTATUTT -

TEEERA
Ry (i 50 4F)
T HIFEEY (10 422 50 42)

TEREAELSIMGA
RIITHLY (BE4E 50 4F)
HAFHEY (10 4223 50 42)

#2019 £ 12 H 31 H » %1
BRI BN 2 BE > T
R 2RV RS OL ke Elip S 2api |
BETARAER 2019 £
12 H 31 HELA P E R EE
Pl T2 BHEEAE - AE
et 28 HEEB PR
TR T AT S g
EE—IEEEENENE
T o

R bl BfELER > FBE
T EEBT I EE L
BTG RAERAT T -

e fr EE E G R 2 A
FRECATIE(E
EffifpE s (EHR)
(K 14)

42019412 H 31 H » &
LA E TR R T
& RO EARARSIAR - AREEE
ZIABEARIRIN Z R e 2 R
moF EE R B
443,569,000 7T (2018 £ :
HEWE 442,814,000 7T ) -

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
follows:

2019 2018
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,252,635 1,244,330
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 416,200 415,480
Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 33,700 32,800
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 5,300 3,800
1,707,835 1,696,410

As at 31 December 2019, premises were included in the statement of financial position at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2019 on the basis of their fair value by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
represents the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly
transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and income statement as follows:

2019 2018
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Increase in valuation charged to premises
revaluation reserve, gross of tax 27,006 119,251
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of premises (Note
14) 2,794 (23,932)
29,800 95,319

As at 31 December 2019, the net book value of premises that would have been included
in the Group’s statement of financial position had the premises been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HK$443,569,000 (2018:
HK$442,814,000).
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26.

27.

28.

HAnRE

e
W lel B
JEWIRTE s A 2 A

TAE
- HE TR
- HE IR
- HEE =R

EFEK

BRI R AL AR
HEE K
TES ~ R RO AR

HANRRIE R

HAFERIHRA
HESE
Heffg

BHORE B U frek

TR

- PSR
- PR PSR
- FEE PR

26. Other assets

Precious metals
Repossessed assets
Accounts receivable and prepayments

Impairment allowances
- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3

27. Deposits from customers

Demand deposits and current accounts
Savings deposits
Time, call and notice deposits

28. Other accounts and provisions

Other accounts payable
Lease liabilities
Provisions

Impairment allowances of loan commitments
and financial guarantees contracts issued

- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3
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2019 2018
BT BRTIT
HK$’000 HK$000

54,525 39,044
144,240 157,770
325,551 259,970
524,316 456,784

(306) (120)
(735) (1,305)
523,275 455,359
2019 2018
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
7,634,868 5,401,426
19,524,084 18,443,998
89,132,482 54,484,091
116,291,434 78,329,515
2019 2018
BT AT

HK$’000 HK$'000

998,403 736,519

237,823 -

10,054 1,343
1,246,280 737,862
26,802 8,427

1 22
1,273,083 746,311
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29. RIEFIA

RIS & G
HRERIEEA25% T RRISRL ) 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and

BB E AR BB

S LA U B e e IR TR
A R P 2 B S AR

IR R e -

AR RN Z IR AR TH

unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12, “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the statement of

(HE) /BETEHEG - financial position, and the movements during the year are as follows:
DU AR FEA Z A
T
2019
DR o N
wfE FEEM 5 R HAh 85t
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Others Total
EWTT B¥TT B¥Tc EWTT A¥TT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
201941 H1H At 1 January 2019 23,753 222,601 (713) (45,825) (70,871) 128,945
EEMEE Charged to
([fzE15) income statement
(Note 15) 2,673 86 309 1,980 - 5,048
B A U S Charged to other
comprehensive income - 1,853 - - 45,347 47,200
PR §2 7= A Exchange difference - - 14 1,828 - 1,842
2019412 H31H  At31 December 2019 26,426 224,540 (390) (42,017) (25,524) 183,035
2018
hnETEs o )
ffisE  BEEG 518 AR HAt HEEt
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Others Total
AT B TIT BETT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2018 fli 1H1H At 1 January 2018,
Z FRiFIE as previously reported 17,921 205,523 - (53,521) (41,880) 128,043
JEFE B B S Adjustment on initial
AERIZE 9 SEAYFT%RE application of HKFRS 9 - - - (1,998) 3,069 1,071
201841 1 H At 1 January 2018,
pa | as restated 17,921 205,523 - (55,519) (38,811) 129,114
fEzd,/ (&) W Charged/(credited) to
(FfFzE 15) income statement
(Note 15) 5,832 125 (710) 8,279 639 14,165
f&z2,/ (&) Hitg Charged/(credited) to
[alies other comprehensive
income - 16,953 - - (32,699) (15,746)
PSR 252H Exchange difference - - (3) 1,415 - 1,412
2018412 H31H  At31 December 2018 23,753 222,601 (713) (45,825) (70,871) 128,945
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29. RIERIR (&)

29. Deferred taxation (continued)

EHEERN A REA TR
B LA TR A S R
AR ARSI e [ — P i
Be > AATRHE A ARV IR AE
TiTH B A B UR A R I 4 (L
IR - THIFEM BRI
WAk &% > Eat AEE
-

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

2019 2018
AT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
IRAEFIEE Deferred tax assets (640) (12,298)
PEIER T E Deferred tax liabilities 183,675 141,243
183,035 128,945
30. g4 30. Share capital
EEREFEE A B REARBFULHL The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
EE%E)E’E?’*E’JH&  AGAERR time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Bank's residual net assets.
TR FE E e L -
2019 2018
iiahr 54| BT R E AT IT
Number of Number of

shares HK$°000 shares HK$’000
F1 A1 H At1 January 3,368,247 1,772,988 3,000,000 300,000
B THE Shares issued 368,248 1,472,992 368,247 1,472,988
HQ{chﬁquzgjég Effect of share subdivision 1 864,511,005 - - -
B12H31H At 31 December 1,868,247,500 _ 3,245,980 3,368,247 _ 1,772,988

B (AR 5135
1 AT
Bl - WA A
SR E RAHHALF > I
HRAERTRON @i

— TR - A
LH;J“%E TR ER T T Y
PRt

AER{TH20184:12 A3 H i3
R BV RCRE T
it o FBARBCEF20184:12
F31H #17368,247H% ~ UL
H51,472,988,0007T » 5
KECHEF201941H29H
9%17368,248/% ~ WU
1,472,992,0007T -

TR ASRT 73"\2019$5H 29
HE(T 2 FER B RE
AR o fEAEARSRT HRZISEP
1B 2 AR 4 5 SO0 R
QARG ( REIRA” ) o Bty
PR 201945 H 30 H 4k
e BEPRAE - ARITE
171,868,247, 5008%HF4HH%
{/\ o

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary
shares of the Bank do not have a par value. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
assets.

The Bank passed the resolution on 3 December 2018 to issue new shares to its existing
shareholders. The first allotment of 368,247 shares was issued with a consideration of
HK$1,472,988,000 on 31 December 2018 and the second allotment of 368,248 shares
was issued with a consideration of HK$1,472,992,000 on 29 January 2019.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders at annual general meeting of the
Bank on 29 May 2019, a share subdivision was approved with effect from 30 May 2019 in
which every one share issued share capital of the Bank was subdivided into 500
subdivided shares (“Share Subdivision”). Immediately after the Share Subdivision,
1,868,247,500 subdivided shares were issued.
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3. FIMREATHR

31. Additional equity instruments

2019 2018
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
2.5 [BETTAIAIERFTRER US$250 million perpetual non-cumulative
YN ERTE S subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 1,937,712 1,937,712

AT 2017411 H29H
BT T EMmE25EETT
CHTIBRARRE 35 1T A 1R 52
{H #7%1,938,000,0007T )
HYR AR R ET AR RS —
guEREE (THSNEARTL
B - A ABSNEAR TR
20225211 H 29 H {12
AR E] H AT  SEEEFH
FEN5.25% - FEFEARA T
(EFEEINE - ERE AR
I E NG LA IR B
B 3 BRIV AR FI =
e T R

EEBFLFERN—R-A
AT AR BN A
TR AR E HUH F S
SR TTRUHIFIEA & 2
T o

RS E Fm A A IRT R
R BHE TS A A4
s BENEA AR
PN A B A I i
TR HAR S T T

722022511 H 29 H 8E (T
HARHIRE H » BERTHER
i ] 5 [ P A R B (S Y
BYNEA TR BHAZES]
B PR s ARIFTRR A -

20194E5H23H K11 H25
HES AR E LA E A
T H A E# %2 51,510,000
TC R AH51,372,0007T -

On 29 November 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional
tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$250 million
(equivalent to HK$1,938,000,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.25% coupon until the first call date on 29 November
2022. The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not
redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would
become non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
29 November 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as
set out in the terms and conditions.

During the year, the coupons of this additional equity instruments were paid with the
amount of HK$51,510,000 and HK$51,372,000 on 23 May 2019 and 25 November 2019
respectively.
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32. 4TS HERMEE  32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) BRELATERFIEERIGAT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to operating cash

LEREZRA
(ftt) iR

inflow/(outflow) before taxation

2019 2018
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
ERMEAT A Profit before taxation 1,493,937 1,204,742
FEEYE N AR Net gain from fair value adjustments on
SRS investment properties (4,846) (18,440)
HE EHEYEE - a5 Net (gain)/loss from disposal/revaluation of
RgtEE (Was) properties, plant and equipment
i (2,723) 23,948
FHEaE AR Interest on lease liabilities 5,207 .
fres Depreciation 95,565 29,297
T AE R Net charge of impairment allowances 345,345 138,429
JFEHIHE®E 3 EA 2 Change in balances with banks and other
TERGRTT R E At 4/t financial institutions with original maturity over
SRR S8 three months (982,756) (1,186,642)
JEEHAH 8 3 EH >~ Change in placements with banks and other
TESRTT B Mt St financial institutions with original maturity over
1 eI ) three months 539,001 (2,068,139)
TR T B > s Change in derivative financial instruments (2,360) 30,945
KEPEHRRESEBE L Change in advances to customers and trade
Ee)| bills (27,365,223) (6,999,754)
B EE ) Change in investment in securities (16,394,127) (9,331,896)
HAth &~ EF) Change in other assets (68,513) 369,051
SRAT R HoAtr Rl Change in deposits and balances from banks
TR 4Rk 2 ) and other financial institutions 5,814,193 1,945,636
BT ) Change in deposits from customers 37,961,919 15,050,078
HAhARTE R S5 ) Change in other accounts and provisions 270,575 (262,317)
PR S A Effect of changes in exchange rates 17,689 79,895
FEfiai SRS RA Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before taxation
/. CRHD 1,722,883 (995,167)
oSS e R et Cash flows from operating activities included:
BIFE
— BH — Interest received 3,937,309 2,328,166
- EfIFIE — Interest paid (1,868,326) (758,832)
- U E — Dividend received 4,437 5,941
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GBI RERIEE
(8

(b) H R EFFRBEHEE
ot

FEFH & R I AE 3
{8 H A Z AR T R
fil e R AR

JREHIEAE 3 {HANZAE
SRAT R FLAth S R AR
TEHIFIL

FEMHAE 3 MHRNZ
,fiféz*l?

JREIMEAE 3 HMANZ
7—‘:':/7 43

(c) BRSHBARIIRATES

i

EEAF IR & R A7 UER AT R
fth <Rl AER

TESRAT e HLfth £ A i —
Z2+EANEZ E
HATFRL

Alﬁﬁ?xi/’t
ﬁ#ﬂ 5 1 P DL S

BHEbst ABEZ
“7‘:%

Hep s BERBAF
Bt ABEZ
ok

Hop s DA E AL
a1 A H Al 4 T UL &S

-t
Hof o BESY R
@r’éﬁa‘ TR RAY

W ERAMIR R 3 @ H
DL #Y 558

RS2 HE IR Y o o
RATHI I &l 7

TE4F B IR ER B ARIEL
B R EEHEIEE

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
within three months

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity within
three months

Debt securities with original maturity within
three months

Certificates of deposit with original maturity
within three months

32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

2019 2018
BRI AT
HK$’°000 HK$'000

15,689,145 13,881,925
2,509,536 3,453,725
2,404,986 519,685

586,132 832,807
21,189,799 18,688,142

(c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of financial position

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Investment in securities

Of which: securities mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or
loss securities

Of which: securities designated at fair
value through profit and loss

Of which: securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Of which: securities at amortised cost

Amount shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position

Less: Amounts with an original maturity of
beyond three months

Less: Cash balance with central bank subject
to regulatory restriction

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated cash flow statement
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2019 2018 (restated)
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

18,235,988 15,446,012
4,819,212 6,302,563
148,150 -
370,607 364,604
44,747,266 26,592,001
1,642,397 1,670,901
69,963,620 50,376,081
(47,275,930) (31,154,617)
(1,497,891) (533,322)
21,189,799 18,688,142
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33. BRAREERRIE 33. Contingent liabilities and commitments
AR B FORIE IS IRARE&E The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
AT R LR Y &8 R RIE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
irmissd - HEHEEEH is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
Tl AR R AR E S R A adequacy ratio:
RESEEREAEZN T
2019 2018
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
HFEaEREE Direct credit substitutes 5,147 10,005
HAXE By A TRE 2~ SR B & Transaction-related contingencies 24,771 30,801
B S E R 2 SR EE Trade-related contingencies 475,735 604,858
AR m AR RS Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
K without prior notice 7,486,395 7,149,531
HArRE - HEIHEAE 5 Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 EEDUT - up to one year 275,275 108,304
-1 E - over one year 4,370,553 3,543,769
12,637,876 11,447,268
(= & B A Credit risk-weighted amount 1,843,553 1,439,509
(EE R ISR (SR The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
173 (&AR) #HAl) 5tE - 1t Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
BRI G F 2 150 characteristics of each type of contract.
FIEE)Z IR -
34, EREE 34. Capital commitments
I (B R T P e v 4 The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the
ZEREESEUT ¢ financial statements:
2019 2018
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R R S AU E RS Authorised and contracted for but not provided
for 13,758 520
Bt REEL Authorised but not contracted for 18,226 -
31,984 520
PAEBEARIERTS 77 Fylsli A The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
Z BRSO R DU equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.

H 2 T RE TR R -
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(a) fERARMA
RIS T 2 4

HEEL T A
HRRA B E AR IE
P 2 i (R AH 4

A
- i 14
-1 EE 5N

EIPE TR A 2 4L
BTHAY AT AR S 200
Tk H 3 2 i 5% i
P EVEF R AR IR T
TETH 3% -

REBLREHEERA
HIPISEERTLA > %
EYEZATEREE
GETERIEEATR R
LEHE - ARFCR
& ERTR B A4
JIEE FH 7 P A 5 s 5 A 1)
F165% - ML ITE -
AEEHH201941H1
H SR 45 i AR
R S AR
72 E (R E
2.1(a)(ii)) = H20194£1
A1HE - R
2.1(a)()FTERECR > R
TS ARAE A BRI
g BIHE AL -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. Lease commitments

(a) As lessee

The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases:

2019 2018
BT AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Land and buildings

- Not later than one year 330 49,067

- Later than one year but not later than five
years - 78,073
330 127,140

Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
agreed dates or according to the special condition as stipulated in the leases.

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties held under leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially
applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (see Note 2.1(a)(ii)). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the statement of financial position
in accordance with the policies set out in Note 2.1(a)(i).
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36.

(b) fERHFEA
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BEEL) MY AL
HEHEITENZRKE
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-1HUEESHEN

AEEDKEHER
&Y FHE
HEE 1 EE 3FE M
KGR ISR 2
AR S AR
> PREF S T 2 AR
A% -

5’1}[{
&

A5 B TE 11 #2530 i 0T

}\ TRENRERKE
H - B ERE R SCRE A

*EE’JIE%F'%%/EEE)J@EQ

EH Y B ER F AN SR [ 7T
HRNELA DR
BT % T H R AL R B B
TR BOEAREBLFRE
SR AN AR -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35. Lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2019 2018
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Land and buildings

- Not later than one year 4,440 4,607

- Later than one year but not later than five
years 1,669 1,037
6,109 5,644

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according
to the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of the lease.

36. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities
of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

37. yEEHE 37. Segmental reporting

(a) EEFEEIY

(a) Operating segments information

AREEEB LT = KB
B BRI EASRITES ~ &
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The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate
customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest
rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
investment properties and equity investments.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the
business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are
presented on a net basis.
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37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2019
EAST 3T FARRR it et EbHES &a
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BT BT AT BT AT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Net interest (expense)/fincome
- External (1,150,380) 1,853,880 1,315,073 - 2,018,573 - 2,018,573
- Inter-segment 1,548,109  (519,687) (1,028,422) - - - -
397,729 1,334,193 286,651 - 2,018,573 - 2,018,573
Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 288,014 356,302 (1,318) - 642,998 - 642,998
Net trading gain/(loss)
25,966 17,282 6,172 (23,479) 25,941 - 25,941
Net gain on financial
instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss - - 7,307 - 7,307 - 7,307
Net gain on other financial
assets - 22,538 46,951 - 69,489 - 69,489
Other operating income - 582 592 26,215 27,389 (15,074) 12,315
Net operating income before
impairment allowances 711,709 1,730,897 346,355 2,736 2,791,697  (15,074) 2,776,623
Net charge of impairment
allowances (85,450)  (228,131) (13,594) (18,170) (345,345) - (345,345)
Net operating income 626,259 1,502,766 332,761 (15,434) 2,446,352 (15,074) 2,431,278
Operating expenses (432,665)  (274,115) (35,520) (217,684) (959,984) 15,074 (944,910)
Operating profit/(loss) 193,594 1,228,651 297,241 (233,118) 1,486,368 - 1,486,368
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties - - - 4,846 4,846 - 4,846
Net gain from
disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and
equipment - - - 2,723 2,723 - 2,723
Profit/(loss) before taxation 193,594 1,228,651 297,241 (225,549) 1,493,937 - 1,493,937
Assets
Segment assets 14,293,027 69,974,778 63,635,494 1,951,482 149,854,781 - 149,854,781
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 81,679,680 45,208,054 8,068,192 775,866 135,731,792 - 135,731,792
Other information
Capital expenditure 5,425 34,846 a1 190,911 231,223 - 231,223
Depreciation 5,593 2,739 280 86,953 95,565 - 95,565
Amortisation of securities - - (268,726) - (268,726) - (268,726)
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37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SFFIE (7)) WA Netinterest (expense)lincome
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2018
BB T =5 RSt Hoth, Nt SR (ot
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal _Eliminations Consolidated
AT HRETT AR AR AR AR BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- External (455,260) 1,209,930 803,760 - 1,558,430 - 1,558,430
- Inter-segment 787,980  (409,780)  (378,200) - - - -
332,720 800,150 425,560 - 1,558,430 - 1,558,430
Net fee and commission
income 188,655 180,757 1,407 - 370,819 - 370,819
Net trading gain 28,360 11,262 9,403 22,718 71,743 - 71,743
Net gain on financial
instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss - - 465 - 465 - 465
Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets - (187) 6,061 - 5,874 - 5,874
Other operating income - 338 611 28,207 29,156 (16,748) 12,408
Net operating income before
impairment allowances 549,735 992,320 443,507 50,925 2,036,487 (16,748) 2,019,739
Net charge/(reversal) of
impairment allowances (3,554)  (144,905) 4,104 5,926 (138,429) - (138,429)
Net operating income 546,181 847,415 447,611 56,851 1,898,058 (16,748) 1,881,310
Operating expenses (381,494)  (173,657) (26,908) (105,749) (687,808) 16,748 (671,060)
Operating profit/(loss) 164,687 673,758 420,703 (48,898) 1,210,250 - 1,210,250
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties - - - 18,440 18,440 - 18,440
Net loss from
disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and
equipment - - - (23,948) (23,948) - (23,948)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 164,687 673,758 420,703 (54,406) 1,204,742 - 1,204,742
Assets
Segment assets 10,014,438 44,995,637 45,860,715 2,001,837 102,872,627 - 102,872,627
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 63,569,114 21,199,392 6,070,074 430,851 91,269,431 - 91,269,431
Other information
Capital expenditure 1,529 1,126 22 117,785 120,462 - 120,462
Depreciation 5,857 3,207 93 20,140 29,297 - 29,297
Amortisation of securities - - (152,476) - (152,476) - (152,476)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

37. Segmental reporting (continued)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:

2019 2018
REURME FRAURAE
EFFIZ Al e BRAHi
HRBUWA Pl EELC AT UN el
Net operating Net operating

income before Profit  income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
AT BT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 2,133,678 1,058,989 1,651,477 949,912
Mainland China 642,945 434,948 368,262 254,830
2,776,623 1,493,937 2,019,739 1,204,742

2019 2018
GEE HE7E
Total assets Total assets
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 117,583,454 83,843,111
Mainland China 32,271,327 19,029,516
149,854,781 102,872,627

38. Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2019, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$446,922,000 (2018:
HK$247,788,000) were secured by bills. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to
secure these liabilities was HK$441,717,000 (2018: HK$246,850,000) included in “Trade

bills”.

As at 31 December 2019 the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$3,316,597,000
(2018: HK$1,531,520,000) were secured by debt securities. The amount of assets
pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was HK$3,421,293,000 (2018:

HK$1,571,559,000) included in “investment in securities”.
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39. &R T E 78N 39. Offsetting financial instruments
TRIRAEECHE = The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
BT M P A AE AR R A enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:
FC AR AT foh e S SR Y e il
THEER

2019

RERMBRRRFEHZ
TS
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
financial position

R BRERS REBREERSR

ERROM SN CHEOm TR M ) S \
B =Nt A SRTH B Pzt
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised  Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
assets financial position financial position instruments received amount
AT AR EWETIT EWETIT AWETIT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
B Assets
#5744 Fh Derivative financial
TH instruments 14,277 - 14,277 (14,277) - -
Hfth&ZE Other assets 503,191 (416,593) 86,598 - - 86,598
517,468 (416,593) 100,875 (14,277) - 86,598
2019
FERMBRRE RS
THERGER
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
N . financial position
REBRERT REBERERT
ERGERR N ERRSm RIS A B Bz .
=it HEME 8 SRTH e Pt
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross recognised financial
amounts of financial assets liabilities
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities financial position financial position instruments pledged amount
ARETT ARETT BT T BT T BETIT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
i=Ci=t Liabilities
744t Derivative financial
TH instruments 33,032 - 33,032 (14,277) - 18,755
Hfth& (& Other liabilities 422,539 (416,593) 5,946 - - 5,946
455,571 (416,593) 38,978 (14,277) - 24,701
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39. &R T E7#E$5 (&) 39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

2018

KA BROE PR 2 AH
FBH<e%H
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial

. N position
o RMEBRRERT R RE T
CHESEM I3 EMaRem FIURI SR EE CHHLZ )
EEHIEH B FER SRITH B b
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Net amounts of
amounts of  financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral
assets  financial position  financial position  instruments received Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT AB¥TIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
B Assets
#74: 4 Fh Derivative financial
TH instruments 20,877 - 20,877 (5,679) - 15,198
Hfth&ZE Other assets 443,773 (340,580) 103,193 - - 103,193
464,650 (340,580) 124,070 (5,679) - 118,391
2018
AR TR T8 2 A
k]
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
N N position
o MBI RT RWEAR LR
EREREM K5 EMRem TR S A m CAEZ )
i EELEH T ERITH B i R
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial liabilities
recognised financial assets set presented in the Cash
financial off in the statement statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities of financial position  financial position  instruments pledged amount
BT BT BT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
aE Liabilities
£74E 4 Fi Derivative financial
TH instruments 5,679 - 5,679 (5,679) - -
HAfth& (& Other liabilities 361,514 (340,580) 20,934 - - 20,934
367,193 (340,580) 26,613 (5,679) - 20,934
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39. &R TE IS (48) 39. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

WAREEGETARBIMT For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
ETERZ G FHERE S related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
Toneds o (e S8 AR IR A B H A predetermined events occur.

HIREREMR AIE—2

Sy 2 B e H B

FFERAEE -

40. EEEF 40. Loans to directors
g EE (AR % Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong
383K (AHE (HiFEES Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Flzs&Rl) #E) E=30 Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
HIRUE » R ASRT T H F 52
7 ERGEEENT
2019 2018
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
R M AR AE 2 H R Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
X 548 outstanding at year end - .
NFENREERRZ S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
It transactions outstanding during the year - -
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M. FEEREALRE 41. Significant related party transactions

AT AEER

A SR ] R P R SR AT e 432
P ERERESR TR AT
hEE N RILFIED (TR )
R H B R SERTT ©

(@) BN REAFE
il 2 FoAth 2 B AT HY
5

KRR EHEPER A
e Yo R A s ]
RAE T HEREREE
%) BREIREERE
[ FIEFE R AR A E]
SEI A =] AP
FeE AR E HE P
BRIRfT =& A -

KBRSy B TR P SR AT
BTN SR H ]
L) o Y 2019 & 12
H 31 H » AGEEHEE
WS R JHE ) T P R P SR AT
SKTE HEEE Y R Ry A W
471,331,000 ¢ (2018
F12 H 31 H OB
269,051,000 7)) J kil
2,700,491,000 71:(2018
F12 H 31 H B
2,705,038,000 G )
2019 fFELE ISR T
A LI S AR T
BRI PN St b
R e 11,997,000 7T
(2018412 H 31 H:
1,251,000 o) Bt
# 91,670,000 7T (2018
F 12 H 31 H Ak
51,096,000 77:) ©

General information of the parent companies:

The Group is indirectly controlled by Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., which is a
Chinese commercial bank established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Chiyu International Financial Holdings
Limited (“Chiyu International Holdings”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xiamen International Investment Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd.

The majority of transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. arise from
money market activities. As at 31 December 2019, the related aggregate amount due
from and to Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. of the Group were HK$471,331,000
(31 December 2018: HK$269,051,000) and HK$2,700,491,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$2,705,038,000) respectively. The aggregate amount of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.
during 2019 was HK$11,997,000 (31 December 2018: HK$1,251,000) and
HK$91,670,000 (31 December 2018: HK$51,096,000) respectively.
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M. FEEREALIE 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

(a) BEBEAFE RBAEER

ZHAAFETHIR S
(&)

KR o7 BB A FEH] 2 H
A BN B2 H B FAF
oo A 2019 4E 12 A 31
H o REEEHRTCRAEE
12 302,312,000 71( 2018
F 12 H 31 H ok
45,114,000 7T) - 2019 4
BB\ E] P2 2 Hoh A H]
AR S AR R AR
4R Ry B 622,000
JC (2018412 A 31 H -
2 687,000 7T ) -

S YNSIPSE Rt s i
NHER S REHE R
7 - 2019 FRELIRRAFIFE]
Z LA E] R I S S
T o A WS A S R
% 1,550,000 7T (2018 4
12 A4 31 B B
1,430,000 7T) -

HE 201912 531 H
Ik REERAE B
154,653,000 7© (2018 4
12 5 31 H : & #
152,916,000 7T ) HRFIE
BRI TEET TR - B
2019412 A 31 Hik» A&
EESHE A BEMERE
PRAT 81TV E S H
(2018 412 A 31 H: i
% 341,294,000 7T ) - 2019
53 RIAE B P R PR SR 1T
Hy# 9,000,000 71( 2018
F 12 H 31 H B
1,529,000 j©) FIEUT AR
T PR PR SR T H A
10,922,000 71:( 2018 4F 12
H 31 H : i 1,881,000
TC) FEUA »

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2019, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$302,312,000 (31 December 2018: HK$45,114,000). The
aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions during
2019 was HK$622,000 (31 December 2018: HK$687,000).

The majority of transactions with parent companies and the other companies controlled
by the parent companies arise from rental service. The aggregate amount of expenses
of the Group arising from these transactions during 2019 was HK$1,550,000 (31
December 2018: HK$1,430,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the related aggregate amount of the Group invested in the
subordinated debt issued by Luso International Banking Limited was HK$154,653,000
(31 December 2018: HK$152,916,000). As at 31 December 2019, there were no
investment in debt securities issued by Xiamen International Bank (31 December 2018:
HK$341,294,000). The interest income gained during 2019 from Luso International
Banking Limited and Xiamen International Bank were HK$9,000,000 (31 December
2018: HK$1,529,000) and HK$10,922,000 (31 December 2018: HK$1,881,000)
respectively.
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M. FEEREALIE 41. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(b) FESREAER (b) Key management personnel

S PN =Pt = N Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility
B E o E Ry for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
FEEAET# - 55K including directors and senior management. The Group accepts deposits from and
EEEEEB AL grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary
BEEERESSEHE course of business. During both the current and prior periods, no material
o REEETEIEE EH transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its
hEFEg FEEEA S holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

TR e [ HR (K e
ERME - PR RE
W RN A BA
HRAT M HEAERE A F 2
B N\ S e
ALHETEARRS) -

TESEBAEEE12H The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
31 HIEFE 2 Fmia is detailed as follows:
T
2019 2018
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Hem -~ HA IS T Salaries, other short-term employee
TR SR IRAEAR] benefits and post-employment benefits 48,484 33,851
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42. BRI EEZSE 42, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
Bk
(a) IR (a) Statement of financial position
12 31 H As at 31 December 2019 2018
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE ASSETS
JER A7 B 4B B A7 SR A T e Ho At <6 il Cash and balances with banks and other
{ iaiNESS financial institutions 18,228,791 15,446,012
TESRAT R H A SRR — 2+ Placements with banks and other financial
&l 5 N2 HH 2 E I institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 4,819,212 6,302,563
it = Derivative financial instruments 122,133 122,680
BRET R E B Advances to customers and trade bills 76,986,891 49,934,290
BEE Investment in securities 46,760,270 28,627,506
&M A E Investment in subsidiaries 195,713 11,713
FEMS bR 8 2 B0 Amounts due from subsidiaries 192,040 163,636
&Y Investment properties 237,150 233.350
YI2E ~ s KeEtis Properties, plant and equipment 1,909,471 1,628,187
IEIERR IR Deferred tax assets 640 12,298
HoAtr& Other assets 520,449 454,578
B LR Total assets 149,972,760 102,936,813
=i LIABILITIES
SRAT R HoAth B RS > K R Deposits and balances from banks and
&hex other financial institutions 17,747,463 11,933,270
Pr4em T A Derivative financial instruments 40,361 43.268
F P Deposits from customers 116,443,676 78,417,282
JEAST i Jag 2 W1 7KH Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,795 824
HAMRIE R 1 Other accounts and provisions 1,272,603 746,119
JERT R Current tax liabilities 186,248 63,050
IRIEFRHE E Deferred tax liabilities 179,674 135,254
=tk Total liabilities 135,871,820 91,339,067
[-C.:3 EQUITY
&N Share capital 3,245,980 1,772,988
ekt Reserves 8,917,248 7,887,046
AR T R R MBS R AR G Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 12,163,228 9,660,034
HINEART R Additional equity instruments 1,937,712 1,937,712
BARLEEH Total equity 14,100,940 11,597,746
Bl ARG Total liabilities and equity 149,972,760 102,936,813

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, using modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2020 and signed on behalf of the Board

by:
LYU Yaoming ZHENG Wei
Director Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. BRI EREZSE 42, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
(continued)

#r (&)

(b) EZBH*E

H2019E1 H1H

R
HoAtr s -

B
DL TS (L3 A
Sl % T 2
B3RS T EL

BLA P EEEETA
Hith 2w a2
EBTE

ST
M EEET
235

FATESNAR T AR
AHEFE

PRI B Do P E AL
s AH A 2
ZHR R TR
HH

2019412 H31H

VR DL A bt A A SR
T Z il T ERNIET

(b) Statement of changes in equity

BRI AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
i
Reserves
Eﬁiﬁ /A\WE{EZ . .
2% G R EEEE RERE gzan @t BIMNEATR  EANE
Premises Additional
Share revaluatioq Fair value Regulatorg Translatiorl Retained equity Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total instruments equity
BETT B¥TT BETT AT BT AT BET BETT AWTT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2019 1,772,988 1,203,829  (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,539,494 9,660,034 1,937,712 11,597,746
Profit for the year - - - - - 1,247,784 1,247,784 - 1,247,784
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - 23,338 - - - - 23,338 - 23,338
Equity instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - 15,108 - - - 15,108 - 15,108
Debt instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - 201,297 - - - 201,297 - 201,297
Currency translation
difference - - 1,164 - (56,687) - (55,523) - (55,523)
Total comprehensive
income - 23,338 217,569 - (56,687) 1,247,784 1,432,004 - 1,432,004
Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,992 - - - - - 1,472,992 - 1,472,992
Transfer to retained
earnings - - - 105,610 - (105,610) - -
Dividends - - - - - (298,920)  (298,920) - (298,920)
Distribution to the
holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,882) (102,882) - (102,882)
Release upon disposal
of equity instruments
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income - - 1,369 - - (1,369) - - -
At 31 December 2019 3,245,980 1,227,167 588 519,987  (108,991) 7,278,497 12,163,228 1,937,712 14,100,940

LA BATTRA -

ARGEBIELR 2019 4 1 F 1 H R
S EATHY L TR B BH 15

RIS 16 5 - RIS

[EREERTGEY -
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this approach, comparative information is not restated.

because the investment was no longer to be held for strategic purpose.

The release upon disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income was made

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, using modified retrospective approach. Under
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(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity

BRI AR TR
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
=47
Reserves
F’%Eéﬂ% L\WE{%‘ s .
A i " EEGET REEE T wwEam gt ENEATE  wAuuE
Premises Additional
Share revaluatioq Fair valug Regulatorg Translatiog Retained equity Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total _ instruments equity
BT OBMTOT  OBETOT  OBWTT BT OBMTT BT BT OBETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
#2018 41 H 1 HZ At 1 January 2018, as
FHAZIHR previously reported 300,000 1,104,169 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,916,657 7,581,335 1,937,712 9,519,047
& FA & % 5 &5 %8 Adjustment on initial
RIS 9 SfAyHRe application of
HKFRS 9* - - 15,760 - - (4,548) 11,212 - 11,212
#2018 421 H 1 HZ At1 January 2018, as
Ecedl restated 300,000 1,104,169 (69,125) 325,391 20,003 5,912,109 7,592,547 1,937,712 9,530,259
esticyinyill Profit for the year _ B R R . 1044220 1,044,220 . 1.044.220
HAM A LS - Other comprehensive
income:
FREE Premises R 99,660 - _ B B 99,660 ) 99,660
PLAEE (s A Equity instruments
4 T U 26 2 at fair value
Byt T E through other
- comprehensive
income - - (2,466) - - - (2,466) - (2,466)
DA fE#Z s A Debtinstruments
HAth 2wk s>~ at fair value
HBTHE through other
T comprehensive
income - - (147,171) - - - (147171) - (147171)
B S Currency translation
difference - - 412 - (72,307) - (71,895) - _ (71,895)
LU HEEH Total comprehensive
income - 99,660  (149,225) - (72,307) 1,044,220 922,348 - 922,348
FTU R Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,988 - - - - - 1,472,988 - 1,472,988
WS ETEA Transfer to retained
earnings - - - 88,986 - (88,986) - - -
i Dividends - - - - - (225000) (225,000) - (225,000)
ZATHESNE AR T B Distribution to the
HEFE holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (102,849) (102,849) - (102,849)
2018 4212 5 31 H At 31 December 2018 1,772,988 1,203,829  (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,539,494 9,660,034 1,937,712 11,597,746

R T 5 T T R R A
YT (5 F FHIE R AR AR
@ -

ATEE GRS EUATE
(5 AL 4 s 62 TR
B EWE R Rt AT
4 -

PR AT AR O Yt
SERERHURERMSL - TR
TR B R SR
FEST— AR > I (ffisk
SRR SR TR ) -
LB BT TL R R A
WA SR I 3 R -

Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for the revaluation of investment properties and premises.

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income held until the financial instruments are
derecognised.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking
risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment
allowances recognised under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.

Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for foreign currency translation.
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43. BT B A 43. Subsidiaries of the Bank

42019 4F 12 H 31 HASR(T The particulars of direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2019 are

B R R I A E Y B as follows:
BERFIRATT
B EER i€ Stk -d=E L] TR FrA L TR
Place and date of Issued Interest
Name incorporation/operation share capital held Principal activities
EREMT (KRB ARAE &8 Eepiiliah) 100% RERAR I S B2
1981411 H3H 100,000 7t
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited 3 November 1981 HK$100,000 investment holding
HEEFEARAF & Lepiiliah) 100% e elicra S (R E S
19614£12 5 11H 2,800,000 &t HE
Seng Sun Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding and
Company, Limited 11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties
to group companies
flCsAIRAE i Eepiiliah) 100%* PE PR,
20014E5H4H 2 #r
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Investment holding
4 May 2001 HK$2
ERBIEERBRAF i Ryt 100% e Rl R M A s
201743 13 H 5,000,000 #7C
Chiyu International Capital Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Corporate finance
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$5,000,000 advisory
EREEEHARAF i Eepiiliah) 100% BT
201743 13 H 186,800,000 7T
Chiyu Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Asset management
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$186,800,000
i Eepiiliah) 100%* ERREEUES
2018 423 H 29 H 1 5T
Sun King Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Property holding
29 March 2018 HK$1
EREEGEIIEAE AT 2SS By 100%* EETHAH
201941 H22H 100 ¢
Chiyu Fund Segregated Cayman Islands Management shares 100%* Fund vehicle

Portfolio Company

22 January 2019

usSD100

*ARSRT TR RER A R * Shares held indirectly by the Bank

44. B NREIER AT

H20194E12 H 31 H &
TZHBER AT RER
BRI A IR A ] - 3%
ANEIPE TR - Ho
SR =) Ry JE PR SR
1T & AER—FTRPEEA
B HL AR EE M B I HY T
PSEIRAT -

44. Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2019, the immediate holding company of the Bank is Chiyu International
Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
company is Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., a Chinese commercial bank incorporated in
the PRC.
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45. EEABEFRHBEIE  45. Events after the balance sheet date

H 2020 FEWILASKE » #HiH The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought about additional uncertainties in
YR 55 B B S T 2 IR the Group’s operating environment and has impacted the Group’s operations.
FOHAREESCERERN

AT R AR EHY

SRR

RN R A7) bR Rk The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the recent developments on the

%E’jé%@%f%%ﬁzgz Group’s business and has put in place contingency measures. The Group performed
B WHIE T eSS o A

S A S A £ A asse.ssment on the potential impact t? lthe (.‘:roup‘s loan por.tfollio.s and. the .exr.Jected
TR FIAB 5 BB RS credit losses. The results showed that it is unlikely to have a significant financial impact
BT T AR o 4EERIETAE on the consolidated financial statement at the current stage. The Group will closely
PR PE Exﬂ;t;{juxyzgéaﬁk monitor its contingency measures and risk management controls as the situation
BB E R E - R evolves. Whenever necessary, prompt actions will be undertaken to mitigate potential
%H@Eﬁ%ﬁfé&%i&iﬁm impacts. While the circumstances of the outbreak are evolving rapidly, an estimate of its

IS 242 2 L R 4
#H] o HEFEHES - ‘@%[@ﬁf@% )
AT EIL LR B R - material change.
el B T T%EﬁF
N L
el FE AT E A

overall financial impact to the Group may not be appropriate as it will be subject to

s o

46. EEEF 46. Comparative figures
b K =R DR Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement
EARFE R presentation adopted in the current year.

47. BB 47. Approval of financial statements
KA TG 2020 F4H The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
24 [ 4T m s AR on 24 April 2020.
A o
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1. EEEE
1.1 MR 3 (EH 255K

a3 EH Z SR
BUTHTATE -

- A 3 HEA S
CRIEDE!

- A 6 (i HE S
14

-

Al 3l H 2 &K

L AR R A

e G A 2R
FER AR i {E

RHCEEA A E T S
&k

RHCZ AR EE
FHER

S B EOR R BRI
lin ERAIERAFEREF
TH TR B A AP 2 K
FEEETEARZERHT
HETTEEYIE -

B2 2019412 A 31 H34
Al 3 ME2E5
SR (2018 5 < i) -

Credit Risk

1.1 Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:
2019 2018
& FERK % P &R
S8 =P &5 HEEESE

% of gross
advances to

% of gross
advances to

Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:
- six months or less but
over three months 2 0.00% 65,729 0.14%
- one year or less but
over six months 79,847 0.10% 30,438 0.06%
- over one year 120,262 0.16% 52,697 0.11%
Advances overdue for over
three months 200,111 0.26% 148,864 0.31%
Specific provisions made in
respect of such advances 193,198 132,589
2019 2018
BT AETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 28,358 101,192
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 10,372 70,103
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 189,739 78,761

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2019, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three

months (2018: Nil).
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(continued)
1. E5EE (8) 1.  Credit Risk (continued)
1.2 KEHER 1.2 Rescheduled advances
2019 2018
g FERK & F &K
S8 YEEE Tt SEH HEEEEE
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEHE R EHFE Rescheduled advances
(CHIREER T to customers net of
Hﬁﬁ}ﬁ 3 1ﬁ Zg%’\ | amounts included in
;B P R “Advances overdue
H for more than three
months” - - 96,953 0.20%
K EHEATIHEEA Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
[R] B A I R S B f BE renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the
WA & T [E = inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
ERERENGTE S advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
e BETEFGTEIR repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
K EH SR s
W 3{EA > HIEIEE &
gk 3 {E A 2 &K
7 e
1.3 UgE&EE 1.3 Repossessed assets
AREE 2019 £ 12 F There were HK$144,240,000 repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
31 HIFAUWIEIERE A& December 2019 (2018: HK$157,770,000). The repossessed assets represent
W& 144,240,000 ¢ properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through
( 2018 & @ #& & court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for release in full
157,770,000 ) - Ug[=] or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

A EE A S B WS R
P HUAS b T AR HY
Yt (i A AR P el
X H B R S
T A ) I ERARY
(RS AT 2 BB 03 ik
Bk -
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(continued)

2,

Currency Risk

%ﬁ;ﬁ&Zﬁ?ﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬂ Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading and non-trading and is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

R4 -

MEHE
HEaHR
BHIEA
BHE

£/ (L) 158

HATE
AR
HELA
L

£/ (HL) 158

2019
BETLEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

ESIn EXTT g BT HTFERT AR¥  HisME  SMELRAE

New Other Total

us Euro Pound Australian Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars  Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

Spot assets 46,012,705 1,500,071 293,429 950,833 284,305 33,853,064 425,138 83,319,545

Spot liabilities (39,018,355) (1,153,791)  (274,677)  (931,162)  (289,392) (34,009,374)  (240,428) (75,917,179)

Forward purchases 1,316,677 11,569 69,564 31,098 6,695 836,191 330,056 2,601,850

Forward sales (7,667,061)  (354,869) (85,932) (46,156) (4,843)  (493,329)  (514,649) (9,166,839)
Net long/(short)

position 643,966 2,980 2,384 4,613 (3,235) 186,552 117 837,377

2018
BT LEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

ESVH BT BigE HIT WEETT AREE  HAmyME  SMsLeEE

New Other Total

us Euro Pound Australian  Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars Sterling Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

Spot assets 32,457,407 732,951 202,114 914,071 310,418 14,201,504 243,815 49,062,280

Spot liabilities (22,683,073)  (371,915)  (191,515)  (892,329)  (309,073) (15,817,853)  (255,384) (40,521,142)

Forward purchases 1,338,671 19,293 21,822 22,293 2,389 2,598,631 393,811 4,396,910

Forward sales (10,750,983)  (369,051) (31,604) (43,188) (2,499) (1,040,463)  (407,490) (12,645,278)
Net long/(short)

position 362,022 11,278 817 847 1,235 (58,181)  (25,248) 292,770
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R A LR P ER A
IRRE IR TE A LA 4480
HYR B S L ARA R
BRAEBRBMEIRZ 28
ARV BT A R e et

s
°
i

2018 £ 1 HZE 9 HvR#E
EEILRIHGETIRE (R
173 OrEnte) #RL) RIEE
EemEdE CSER ) B
BB R AR T 2 A,
YRR FOBS N AT A O
EHERTE -

2018410 HE 2019412 A
HY BN LR HSE )Y
R CERITE CREn:) A
Fodi B e R E HUE R
AT Z AHREIE ~ BIMT
(ERd A SRR =
ST - it > HEEEE R
REELIEMES TEERE -

BRI EE LRI RN
BN AARRITHEE
www.chiyubank.com 1 &z

EWEE ) AT -

(continued)
3. RIMEEELLE 3. Liquidity coverage ratio
2019 2018
SRENMEE SRR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
Tl
S EORE - First quarter 218.71% 152.06%
| EoFE - Second quarter 191.46% 186.29%
- BEEE - Third quarter 205.53% 250.75%
- PBIUZERE - Fourth quarter 210.17% 244.69%

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean of
the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the calculation
methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which
comprises the positions of local offices and overseas branches from January to September
2018 of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) for its regulatory
purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which
comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries starting from
October 2018 to December 2019 of the Bank specified by the HKMA for its regulatory
purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules. Hence, the comparative
information is not directly comparable.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under section
“Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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4. REREFHELER 4. Net stable funding ratio

d

2019 2018
TEEE R FRHEE R Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
ZIELRESE
- BT - First quarter 123.50% 121.23%
- BOFE - Second quarter 127.14% 124.96%
- BEFE - Third quarter 131.08% 134.05%
- FIUERE - Fourth quarter 142.42% 140.22%
BEE S FEL R4S The quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
HEARNEREBEES > methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.
BB RIS E A R
RS -
2018 4F FR4AE R H 2018 FF The net stable funding ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which comprises
AE B EE 4 R TR the positions of local offices and overseas branches in the first half of 2018 and

consolidated basis which comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches

SRTTEE OmEh ll s )
B (RIS Crts) 570) and subsidiaries starting from the second half of 2018 of the Bank specified by the

5 2 R BA A o
}S\Z%’Dj”%/{iﬁ SISk E'%EE% HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
SRHASRT Z AR R Hence, the comparative information is not directly comparable.

ST & R R R A
AT ZARRERIE ~ INITT
i E A SR S AR A

H oo it HEEEE R A AE

E PRI TELES -
B E L FHEtb= B The additional information of net stable funding ratio disclosures is available under
W R N AR T E section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

www.chiyubank.com I 5%
TedE ) —HREE
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(continued)
5. E¥AEH 5. Capital management
5.1 EEEOHEELRE 5.1 Basis of regulatory combination
2019 FEEEHIESF O A The consolidated basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
BETIRE GRITHE (BEA) Bank’s local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries specified by
KA RiZeERREE the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking
FiE ZR AR T Z A (Capital) Rules in 2019.
MR ~ BN T RIEE
P AR 5
G ITH - B For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with
TR s AR A SR A B HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in Note 43.
J&ATE] - HAA B
43 -
FLFETE & 5T 48 I 4% & i The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
E > NSRS RE consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as
EOFHE NI E AT follows:
R
2019 2018
HEGRH B - a HARLEE
Etid Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity
BT BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEEEARFRAE Chiyu International Capital
Limited 105,981 73,053 60,996 47,424
EREEEHARAE Chiyu Asset Management
Limited 186,826 174,720 6,803 5,347
ERFEESEIIEEUE/AE  Chiyu Fund Segregated e N N
Portfolio Company Not Not
1 1 applicable applicable
DA F- BT a8 2 SR B The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 43.
AT 43 -
2019412 H 31 H » There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
TN fe] B 2 . ] [E] 1 1 scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of combination where the
FEAE TR RIE SR E methods of consolidation differ as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

G RE AN E AR FSR &
J7i% (2018 42 12 A 31

H:fE) -
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(continued)
5 RBAEH (&) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 HEALER 5.2 Capital ratio
2019 2018
R AL CET1 capital ratio 13.59% 15.30%
—EEARLER Tier 1 capital ratio 16.19% 19.13%
HEEAREER Total capital ratio 17.71% 20.99%

MPEtRU B

The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

HURRHI S OFE A LR 7 capital ratios is analysed as follows:
T
2019 2018
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB —REA TR CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
FefE R
BEFBTEERSGIER Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
FE—AR AT instruments 3,245,980 1,772,988
PREFEF] Retained earnings 7,220,972 6,479,035
[0 Disclosed reserves 1,661,469 1,368,455
B TR 2 i A A s A CET1 capital before regulatory
—HEAR deductions 12,128,421 9,620,478
LR REA R CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
E{AV:
i Valuation adjustments (8,610) (11,493)
ETIRR AR AL A TH & {5 Y Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax
EIER I S liabilities (640) (12,298)
AN HEEGESEE Gains and losses due to changes in own
PRI A B 1 {5 68 i i 2 credit risk on fair valued liabilities
BT EAITEL (60) (1,527)
R+ 3 sy (B Cumulative fair value gains arising from
RIS EHR) #TE the revaluation of land and buildings
(B 25 5 T 7 2 ) 27 (own-use and investment properties)
INHEE G (1,452,133) (1,422,114)
— AR SR AT S R b B Regulatory reserve for general banking
B risks (519,987) (414,377)
BSR4 B A EE Total regulatory deductions to
B YARE CET1 capital (1,981,430) (1,861,809)
LR — A CET1 capital 10,146,991 7,758,669
FHN—EEAR AT1 capital 1,937,712 1,937,712
—EEAR Tier 1 capital 12,084,703 9,696,381
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(continued)
5. EXEH (#) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 HARER (&) 5.2 Capital ratio (continued)
2019 2018
BT HRETT
HK$°000 HK$’000
TEER R R RS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
EERRET A ZYERN Collective impairment allowances and
B IR — % regulatory reserve for general banking
Bt risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
SR B capital 484,445 306,970
EEAR Z AT A Tier 2 capital before regulatory
deductions 484,445 306,970
THCEAR BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
holEl & &ERET A T E Add back of cumulative fair value gains
YR 4 M R e Es arising from the revaluation of land
) (8 RIEEER) and buildings (own-use and
investment properties) eligible for
Uﬂgﬁifﬂﬁh\f inclusion in Tier 2 capital
1Y B E AU 653,460 639,951
HREANEE Total regulatory deductions to
R Ha%H Tier 2 capital 653,460 639,951
TAREAR Tier 2 capital 1,137,905 946,921
Lk Total capital 13,222,608 10,643,302
FEETEARLLEROT The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
2019 2018
FEEsR ErEALL®R Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.500% 1.875%
eI WS TERE B Higher loss absorbency ratio - -
W R IARETE AR bR Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 1.426% 1.448%

2019412 A 31 H &
BT RRCE BRI
g %k & # & CCyB
(JCCYB) tE# £ 2.0% »
2019410 A 14 H &
& JCCyB th#rf 2.5% 1
HZE 2.0% » AITR NN
15 P U bR SE Fr fE Y He iR
AAEREEY T JCCyB
EE# R 0% -

As at 31 December 2019, the applicable jurisdictional CCyB (JCCyB) ratio in
Hong Kong was 2.0% as set by the HKMA. The ratio reduced to 2.0% from 2.5%
effective on 14 October 2019. For the rest of the jurisdictions in which the Bank
had private sector credit exposures, the applicable JCCyB ratios were 0%.

5.3 fEIELER 5.3 Leverage ratio

FEFREESR AT ¢ The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:
2019 2018
BT HEEETTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
— 4B Tier 1 capital 12,084,703 9,696,381
TEFREER B R E Leverage ratio exposure 154,471,671 105,325,379
fEfREER Leverage ratio 7.82% 9.21%

BB AR AR LR,

B R A AR T4

H www.chiyubank.com tf1
MEEDEE | —HEREE

The additional information of capital disclosures and leverage ratio disclosures are
available under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
www.chiyubank.com.

195



4 A 2K

elﬁyu %anlzing eorporation Lrd.

5[(%&;%&2@3’5%?%%% Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(continued)
6. ERERE 6. International claims
DUR 4y #7592 B A R PR SR 1T The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
¥tz BB FWMERAVERIE HKMA return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
ANIE eSSt R o) counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the
FArAEEt AR 1R LIS counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of
Gy 2 A E R B Y cross-border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim
Gyff  HAESRIEIEFTE B 25 guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will
R RE R A3 &/ NS R < 5 be transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
ME 2 WEOR N FTEHLELAS 5 bank whose head office is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the
FIAERIANTE] » AR\ Es 24 country where its head office is located.
TRAZ st - B w7~
AT HE bR e S 2
AT ST -
A A {8 A R R B I L Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more
B R R AL 1% A [ P (R4 of the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:
HE10%E L B (T
2019
JESRITRNE S
Non-bank private sector
FESRIT il R
ST Bt SRR FNHRE gt
Non-bank Non-financial
Official financial private
Banks sector _institutions sector Total
AT BT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
o [5] A Mainland China 17,019,000 1,028,000 3,333,000 18,959,000 40,339,000
T Hong Kong 762,000 1,000 2,018,000 10,091,000 12,872,000
2018
FESRITRA NS
Non-bank private sector
B FET FEHl R
AT =Wl TRl (TN |- Hast
Non-bank
Official financial  Non-financial
Banks sector Institutions  private sector Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o [5] A HE Mainland China 21,282,000 348,000 769,000 6,409,000 28,808,000
Tk Hong Kong 840,000 - 1,644,000 14,772,000 17,256,000
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d

7. JERfTHNHEERE 7.

Non-bank Mainland exposures

HIEIRIT A 2 B TIPS B
R AYEZ T2 AR A
WSERs 2 BB R A AR
TRFTE Z AR U e L T
FER M - PR R AR T

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

Z R AR
2019
HEAR HEAR
B8R KA FHMNY
wWEIEH [E bR E ElsEE  AERRRE
Items in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RO E T~ HRREUFRAARY  Central government, central
s LB AT REE government-owned entities and their
3% subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 11,391,905 109,021 11,500,926
HE TR ~ 5 EURFAERY  Local governments, local
s LB AT REE government-owned entities and their
3% subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 20,609,771 342,688 20,952,459
g NE R HAFEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
NEEHTRRS - HiE A or other entities incorporated in
Ei)dsy=site Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 13,177,149 616,563 13,793,712
REFEAE FiltsE—IEd 2B Other entities of central government
TFN A EL Al pA not reported in item 1 above 4 1,794,349 429,278 2,223,627
NEFEIE FiE I8 58 Other entities of local governments not
JEF P HoA e reported in item 2 above 5 677,452 ) 677,452
NS REFEESNE  PRC nationals residing outside
fitatsts - FEAIREEAR Mainland or entities incorporated
(B outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 11,023,885 491,581 11,515,466
HAth 32 5 F i E g &S Other counterparties where the
BT R I ESRAT Y PN 3 exposures are considered to be
TRE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 437,719 - 437,719
4Gt Total 8 59,112,230 1,989,131 61,101,361
FRE R B AR Total assets after provision 9 149,909,318
BEAEENEKZYE On-balance sheet exposures as
(GE R E rth percentage of total assets 10 39.43%
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7. JERfTHNHEEEE 7.

Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

(&)
2018
HEAR EEAR
SER TAW FAINT
WEIEH JE A EFmAEE SR REE
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT HARTIT HARTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FR R~ HRORBURERFATY Central government, central
i - HifE AT NEE government-owned entities and their
i subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 8,573,727 30,368 8,604,095
HOTER ~ HOTEU AT Local governments, local
e - @A E e’ government-owned entities and their
i subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 5,621,339 774,532 6,395,871
R EERE A E R EH M EEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
NEERETHERS - EFfE/Y  or other entities incorporated in
HREGERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 9,147,661 721,633 9,869,294
NEFEIE FtsE—Igh iy Other entities of central government
JF N E At i RS not reported in item 1 above 4 345,922 22,100 368,022
NEFEIE FaiEs I8 J5E; - Other entities of local governments not
FHY HoAt i reported in item 2 above 5 187,720 - 187,720
A NE R FESMNE  PRC nationals residing outside
TR - EAREEAR Mainland or entities incorporated
(535 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 9,714,819 822,205 10,537,024
HAxr FE FimEmEfE&E  Other counterparties where the
A T ESRA T A I exposures are considered to be
HRYE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 1,028,808 - 1,028,808
st Total 8 34,619,996 2,370,838 36,990,834
HIBEHBRITEELEE  Total assets after provision 9 102,916,742
BEAEENEFEE On-balance sheet exposures as
(EERELEEEE otk percentage of total assets 10 33.64 %
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8. [REipEHE 8. Risk Management

B A B R R SR B
PR EASER  fe Tl VR HUS P - A
MRy b B B BRI
SR (B ERIEING - SR e T
BERZAVKEZN - AR A KESE
LAY R L [ PR A - AR SR I
B AT AT EE S T R AR B Y e 25
TUEAREE - DAET S TSk e H A Z T
*Um*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬂﬂt‘” AR A S e

HUEGAERIREAE R - o8 R
e 4 -

EEEEEE
HRIAEEE SRS E
o 5 R BRI 4.1 -

G E
BRSBTS E b s A
o 5 R BRI 4.2 -

FlRE e
9 7 25 L o L B
o S RARRNIE 4.2 -

RETE &R EE

oA S B 54 < B 7
FR o R AR 4.3

BRIEERER

$RF B 2 A T e 35 BOH TR
SRR ~ NB ~ 280 DURSMISEARAT
ARV - SRER PR SE TS
FRIER) S EERAT - R ALEETE A #RE
JE) T YR -

REEBEL T AN ERERIRE R - R
HPTAEREHET FBUR R B
it R AT S TR RE AR

/%#E’Jﬁzliﬁ?_ﬁﬁ K%I%Fﬁ%ﬁfkﬂ
Bafate - BT - R IER RS
Y&y e NN {’Eﬂfﬁi THLTHE
JTEAGHR ~ G - BRI
FEE AN - [FRE
B ORBRREARAE TR AR R - #
71 B B S T R I SR TS A
AFEERSE T AR TR AR
(R B S HE T U 4R

Overview

The Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business
development. The Group’s risk management objective is to maintain risk
exposures within acceptable level amid the Group’s efforts made to enhance
shareholders’ wealth. The Group has a defined risk appetite statement
approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk
that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its business goals and to
meet the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk
management governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial
Statements.

Credit risk management

For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to
the Financial Statements.

Market risk management

For details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to
the Financial Statements.

Interest rate risk management

For details of the Group’s Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note
4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3
to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or external events. The risk is inherent in
every aspect of business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to
-day operational activities.

The Group has put in place effective internal control processes and has
formulated relevant policies and control procedures for all the key activities.
The Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of
duties and authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk
management tools or methodologies such as key risk indicators,
self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify,
assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and
products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable
operational risks. Business continuity plans are established to substantiate
business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster. Adequate
backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.
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8. EEHE (&) 8.

Risk Management (continued)

EREREE

5\ 15 PR B S B SR s K A o)
HIEEHRE (TimeEaEE ) WaEs|
B P~ A SRR RRAERIL
ARV - 5 R ey At
b B S SER R IREN - W R JEEEDZ -

BESN > BRI SE B A RO 5
RSP R A E R B S - DLAE
B R ERE RSB B A
B o ARAEINE Bl A R
FzHRE PR E R - HIL I A RS
O RBIIAER R A RIES -

EER AR EE
EEREBERRA T AL ~ SRR
RIS T T A (o A S I A A s 51K
DUHBUR EL S AV - SR
b 5 BRI R A B ST i i O B e
S TR BE R AR A S AR
HER ~ IR S E R R AV R - A
FEEE A RRE K A AR B B
W

SRt b L

SRS JR e 15 A S A BT 25 TR -
FETTBBIS SR - DUR Ry h 7okl £
BORTIHIE S HE AR #] - T2
JERS > EHRFESRISHIE - B R R i
BRPRE  EmEAERNEN - &
A~ (FENIT G AL Z B R
T e A L SRS R i A L
R - BRI I SR = A E L B
HEREGNRSTHEEEEREIL -

AEEGNTEEHT TSI - E
it SRR ORI -

- Z.N
A A SR » 4
B HEITRE 4.4 -

iyap:iEe

AR ] DUBE i B 5 T R B A 4
M LAF - B R — T e e
5o HLIEHEE 5 s OB N ZR &
P8 L 1 7 2 R it R ) 4 BRI I
HRAT P A EE RIS L A< B PN 25
BRI EERREEBERTM "B
B PEIER - AT R -
HEAREHZR TR RREHEE
BEHUERY T SR FRIRE - EHEE ST
ST R P - R A A
FY R EREHE SRR AR
GREEEER

Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, causes a potential decline in the customer
base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is
inherent in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and
covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry, so as to
effectively manage and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident.
The Group also adopts robust disclosure mechanism to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps to build confidence in the Group and to
establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial
conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory
sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may suffer as a
result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The
Group has put in place relevant rules and procedures for legal and compliance
risk management.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor strategic decision-making, improper
implementation of strategies and inadequacies in response to the changing
market conditions. The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk
management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and
properly endorsed by the senior management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.

Capital management

For details of the Group’s Capital management, please refer to Note 4.4 to the
Financial Statements.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress
testing. Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures
under stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Senior Management

Executive Director
Lyu Yaoming

Executive Director and Chief Executive
Zheng Wei

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Chan Yiu Fai

Deputy Chief Executive
Fung Chi Lap Pierre

Chief Risk Officer
Ye Xin

Chief Financial Officer

Wong Siu Man
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Branch Network

PAXRE
BRANCH (Br.)

EHE

HONG KONG ISLAND

PIEST
Central Br.

EAstT
North Point Br.

BF5 T
Wanchai Br.

ERST
Sheung Wan Br.

PEEE ST
Western Br.

SR
Quarry Bay Br.

EHRFOIT
Aberdeen Br.

U
KOWLOON

ALH 1T
Hung Hom Br.

B (T
Kwun Tong Br.

T T
Sham Shui Po Br.

W T
San Po Kong Br.

SRR T
Yau Ma Tei Br.

FUET

Castle Peak Road Br.

SIS
Kowloon Bay Br.

HIES T

Tokwawan Br.

BT
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

Hrsk
ADDRESS

R IR R E T 78 5
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

FEidb AL i 390-394 GRi T
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Point, H.K.

B EsTE 323-331 gt N C#1D &f
Shop C & D, G/F, No. 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

s PERE S AET 315-319 ST 3 S
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

EHHEEGAIET 443-445 5530 T 13 544

Shop 13, G/F, No. 443-445 Queen's Road West, Western District, H.K.

TR R S 1065 SEEESU M N C B
Unit C, G/F, Eastern Centre, 1065 King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

FEEATAE 138-140 5E T
G/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

JURE AT L% 23-25 S 1
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUHEBIREIE 398-402 S T A Hifi
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUREA KIS 751 78 235-237 St T
G/F, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JUBERTH R FE9R1E 61-63 SRt T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

JURE R B 117-119 §f3th
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kin.

TR KIS LI 226-228 ST
G/F, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

TUBES BB SRR et T 10 K2 10A 5

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

JUE LIS 78-80W gt~ 11-13 S
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

JUREZEE LT, 7 14 TO3A 55
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.

202

Bk
TELEPHONE

(852) 3556 9730

(852) 3556 9731

(852) 3556 9734

(852) 3556 9737

(852) 3556 9739

(852) 3556 9743

(852) 3556 9753

(852) 3556 9732

(852) 3556 9733

(852) 3556 9735

(852) 3556 9736

(852) 3556 9738

(852) 3556 9740

(852) 3556 9741

(852) 3556 9742

(852) 3556 9751
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Branch Network (continued)

PAXRE
BRANCH (Br.)

CiIE D
NEW TERRITORIES

T
Tuen Mun Br.

ZEEAL ST
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

KRIFAFE 1T
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br.

REWACE T
Belvedere Garden Br.

EBT
Tsuen Wan Br.

YOHBERSET
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

BliatT
Ma On Shan Br.

Tt
Sheung Tak Estate Br.

TP,
MAINLAND CHINA

&5 T
Xiamen Br.

FERIAT

Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

B IEAT
Guanyinshan Sub-Br.

wINGTT
Fuzhou Br.

FEINT
Shenzhen Br.

Hifk Bk
ADDRESS TELEPHONE

A tipgze D HAN.D.S N & 148 N-125 &

Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T. (852) 3988 9508
TSRS S L AR 1 S

Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T. (852) 3556 9745
FSOR AR Z2 IR 112-114 54

Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T. (852) 3556 9746
FrR S = I T BA SRl

Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,  (852) 3556 9747
N.T.

HrREEE VIHIE 131-135 S T

G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T. (852) 3988 9518
5D BRSO E; 1 4 F7 5

Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T. (852) 3556 9749

WS CE SRS 3 1 313 Sk
Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T. (852) 3556 9750

ST SR R A e RS 2 1 238 S
Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate,
Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

(852) 3556 9752

B R P SRR i 90 R17(E 45 101-103 ~ 202 BT
Unit 101-103 and 202 » Lixin Plaza, No.90 Hubin South Road, Siming District,

Xiamen, Fujian Province, China (86-592) 585 6288

R G T SRR AL E 68-71 5

No. 68-71 Lehai Bei Li, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China (86-592) 619 3300

o Bt T R TR S 170 5% O 57AS 17 g 1702E K 1703A =
Unit 1702E & 1703A, No. 9 Building, No. 170 Tapu East Road, Siming District, (86-592) 599 0520
Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

HE R A RN T FLURS 210 SREIMERNE 1 1%
1/F, International Building, No. 210 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
China

(86-591) 8781 0078

rhEDZEY TR HE s i 6003 SEAGsEpHsT L A B 1 Jg 01 Bt
Unit 1, Level 1, Block A, Rongchao Business Center, No. 6003 Yitian Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen, China

(86-755) 3690 8888
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